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All references to us, we, our, the Compangt Kratos refer to Kratos Defense & Security Sohg, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, and its
subsidiaries.

PART |
ltem 1. Business

This Annual Report (including the sectiegarding Management's Discussion and Analysisrmdrigial Condition and Results of
Operations) contains forward-looking statementargimg our business, financial condition, resuftsmerations and prospects. Words such as
"expects," "anticipates,” "intends," "plans,” "l@sles," "seeks," "estimates” and similar expressiwnariations of such words are intended to
identify forward-looking statements, but are no¢ighed to represent an all-inclusive means of idgngifforwardiooking statements as dena

in this Annual Report. Additionally, statements ceming future matters are forward-looking statetsen

Although forward-looking statements in dumual Report reflect our good faith judgment, satdtements can only be based on facts anc
factors currently known by us. Consequently, fovimoking statements are inherently subject tosriskd uncertainties and actual results and
outcomes may differ materially from the results antcomes discussed in or anticipated by the fat@oking statements. Factors that could
cause or contribute to such differences in resultsoutcomes include, without limitation, thosecsfieally addressed in Item 1A—"Risk
Factors" below, as well as those discussed elsewhehis Annual Report. Readers are urged notatcepundue reliance on these forward-
looking statements, which speak only as of the datair Annual Report. We undertake no obligatiomevise or update any forward-looking
statements in order to reflect any event or cirdamse that may arise after the date of this AnRegort. Readers are urged to carefully review
and consider the various disclosures made throughetentirety of this Annual Report, which attertpidvise interested parties of the risks
and factors that may affect our business, finaremallition, results of operations and prospects.

We were incorporated in the state of Newkyan December 19, 1994 and began operations ichBE95. We reincorporated in the state
of Delaware in 1998. On September 12, 2007, wegddiour name from Wireless Facilities, Inc. to iisaDefense & Security Solutions, Inc.

Overview

We are an innovative provider of missioitical engineering, information technology (IT) gees and warfighter solutions. We work
primarily for the U.S. government and federal goweent agencies, but we also perform work for sdatélocal agencies and commercial
customers. Our principal services are relatedubabe not limited to, Command, Control, Commundaat, Computing, Combat Systems,
Intelligence, Surveillance, and Reconnaissance§RJ5Iweapons systems lifecycle support and suseitirmilitary weapon range operations
and technical services; missile, rocket and weaggstem test and evaluation; missile and rockesiomnslaunch services; public safety,
security and surveillance systems; modeling andilsition; unmanned aerial vehicle (UAV) systems; addanced network engineering and
information technology services. We offer our cusos solutions and expertise to support their miissfitical needs by leveraging our skills
across our core service areas.

We derive a substantial portion of our rexefrom contracts performed for federal governnagmncies, including the U.S. Departmer
Defense (DoD), with the majority of our revenuereutly generated from the delivery of mission-catiwarfighter solutions, advanced
engineering services, system integration and systestainment services to defense and other nonddalXxivilian government agencies. We
believe our diversified and stable client baseargjrclient relationships, broad array of contragttieles, considerable employee base posse
government security clearances, extensive listst performance qualifications, and significant egggment and operational capabilities
position us for continued growth.
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Prior to 2008, we were also an indepengentider of outsourced engineering and network @pknt services, security systems
engineering and integration services and othemieahservices for the wireless communications #tdy the U.S. government and enterprise
customers. In 2006 and 2007, we undertook a tramsfiion strategy whereby we divested our commerviia@less-related businesses and
chose to pursue business with the federal goverfjmpemarily the DoD, through strategic acquisisoi®n September 12, 2007, we changed
our name from Wireless Facilities, Inc. to Kratosf@nse & Security Solutions, Inc. Our new nameef our revised focus as a defense
contractor and security systems integrator forf¢itieral government and for state and local agenkieonnection with our name change, we
changed our NASDAQ Global Market trading symbolKd OS".

Current Reporting Segments

We operate in two principal business segméfratos Government Solutions (KGS) and Publifefaand Security (PSS). We organize
our business segments based on the nature ofrfieeseoffered. Transactions between segmentsarerglly negotiated and accounted for
under terms and conditions similar to other goveanihand commercial contracts and these intercomgangactions are eliminated in
consolidation. The financial statements in this AairReport are presented in a manner consistehtowit operating structure. For additional
information regarding our operating segments, sete N3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemdfrom a customer and solutions
perspective, we view our business as an integrakede, leveraging skills and assets wherever plessib

Kratos Government Solutions (KGS) Segment

The Kratos Government Solutions segmentiges engineering, information technology and weapsystems to federal, state, and local
government agencies, but primarily the DoD. Ourkiacludes weapon systems sustainment, lifecyghpaert and extension; C5ISR services;
military range operations and technical servicessite, rocket, and weapons systems test and di@iyanission launch services; modeling
and simulation, unmanned aerial vehicle (UAV) praduand technology, and advanced network engingand information technology
services; and public safety, security and survei#asystems integration. Our KGS segment also gesvpublic safety, security and
surveillance systems products and services todheetand security market with products and servéteged at supporting first responders.

Public Safety and Security (PSS) Segment

The Public Safety and Security segmentiges/system design, deployment, integration, manigcand support services for public saf
security and surveillance networks for state amdllgovernments and commercial customers. Pulfigtysand security networks have been
traditionally segregated into systems such as ydia&, access control, video surveillance, tentpeaontrol and fire and life safety. We
provide services that combine such systems and iotisgrated solutions on both Ethernet and IP datetforms. We also offer solutions that
combine voice, data, electronic security and bogdautomation systems with fixed or wireless cotimigg solutions. Our target markets are
healthcare, government, data centers, large stdilestrial and manufacturing, correctional faciifieducation and sports and entertainment.
Our commitments to these markets and our abilifyravide feature-rich, cost-effective solutions éaiowed us to become one of the larger
independent integrators for these types of systévesmaintain regional office locations comprisedoétos Mid Atlantic, Kratos Southeast,
and Kratos Southwest. On June 24, 2009, as a @stdintinued losses in the Southeast division®$ Pour Board of Directors approved a |
to sell and dispose of this division. The busingsis was classified as held for sale and repometdiscontinued operations in the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements.




Table of Contents
Industry Background
U.S. Department of Defense Drives Strategic Prim# for the Company

The delivery and execution of our missioiti@al engineering and support services are drivgthe priorities of the U.S. federal
government and primarily the Department of Defefi$ strategic priorities of the DoD are basedgé part on the Quadrennial Defense
Review (QDR), the first conducted in an era of gldlerrorism, which identifies key strategic prt@s$. These priorities are currently focused
on mission critical capabilities of the U.S. arnfertes and providing the support infrastructureassary to sustain these forces in a time of
heightened warfare readiness and deployment.

The 2010 Fiscal Year DoD budget is $63@I®b, an increase of $11.0 billion over Fiscalaf€2009. The total budgetary increase of
approximately 2% represents a significant oppotyuta key federal government contractors in suppbthe DoD's war fighter, information
technology, and other operational priorities. TB&@budget includes supplemental funding of $128l®n to support overseas contingency
operations, primarily in Iraq and Afghanistan. Waiéve there will be significant market opportuedifor providers of system sustainment, IT
and engineering services and solutions to federaigmnment agencies over the next several yearscyarly those in the defense and
homeland security communities. The President'snte2@11 DoD Budget Request and the QDR are consigli¢h this outlook.

Focus on Federal Government Transformation

The federal government, and the DoD inipaldr, is in the midst of a significant transforioa that is driven by the federal government's
need to address the changing nature of globaltthrAssignificant aspect of this transformatiothe use of C5ISR, and information technol
to increase the federal government's effectiveardsefficiency. The result is increased federalegpment spending on information technol
to upgrade networks and transform the federal gowent from separate, isolated organizations irmgela enterprise level, network-centric
organizations capable of sharing information brgadid quickly. While the transformation initiatiisedriven by the need to prepare for new
world threats, adopting these IT transformatiotiatives will also improve efficiency and reducérastructure costs across all federal
government agencies.

An additional aspect of the military tramshation includes significantly enhancing militagadiness in areas such as missile defense,
weapons system sustainment and extension, and/énallostrengthening of intelligence and secutfitygr example, the objective of the DoD as
it relates to missile defense is to continue toeltgy, test, and field missile defense systemsdtept America, its allies and deployed forces.

Competitive Strengths

We have robust past performance qualificetin our respective business areas; includingrit force with significant experience on the
various systems and for the customers we serve.

Significant and Highly Specialized Experience

Through existing customer engagements ladovernment focused acquisitions we have complater the past several years, we have
amassed significant and highly specialized expeeén areas directly related to weapon systentiifde extension and sustainment; missile,
rocket and weapons system test and evaluation;RG5tflitary range operations and technical servared other highly differentiated services
and solutions. This collective experience, or p&sformance qualifications, is a requirement onnttagority of contract vehicles and customer
engagements we are
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involved in. We believe this presents a significlaatrier to entry and positions us for long-terracss.
In-Depth Understanding of Client Missions

We have a history of providing mission4cat services and solutions to our clients, enaplia to develop an in-depth understanding of
their missions and technical needs. In additicsigaificant number of our employees are locatediant sites, giving us valuable strategic
insights into clients' ongoing and future prograguirements. Our in-depth understanding of ountleissions, in conjunction with the
strategic location of our employees, enables wdfey technical solutions tailored to our cliergpecific requirements and consistent with their
evolving mission objectives.

Diverse Base of Key Contract Vehicles

As a result of our business developmenigamn securing key contracts, we are a preferrattactor on numerous multi-year government-
wide acquisition contracts and multiple award caciis that provide us with the opportunity to bidhemdreds of millions of dollars of busine
each year against a discrete number of other paéfigd companies each year. These contracts iecBehport-e, GSA, Passive RFID EPC-1,
PES, IT, LOG World, Mobis Millennia Lite, AMCOM Expss, Alliant, Stocll, Consolidated AcquisitionPrfofessional Services (CAPS),
Support Services for Aviation, Air Defense and MesSystems, Systems Engineering and Technicalsfessie Contract, Specialized
Engineering, Development and Test Articles/Modeld &heoretical Studies and Engineering ResearclieWhe federal government is not
obligated to make any awards under these vehigledelieve that holding preferred positions on ¢hesntract vehicles provides us an
advantage as we seek to expand the level of serviegrovide to our clients.

Strategic Geographic Locations and BRAC

The federal government's Base RealignmeshtGlosure (BRAC) Act of 2005 is the congressignalithorized process the Department of
Defense has implemented to reorganize its basetsteuto more efficiently and effectively supportSJarmed forces, increase operational
readiness and facilitate new ways of doing businkss result of the DoD's BRAC transformation, lriee’e concentrated part of our business
strategy on building a significant presence in BRAC receiving locations where the federal governnig relocating its personnel as well as
related technical and professional services. Asavetinue to entrench in these key locations, weeekihis to be a significant competitive
advantage.

Highly Skilled Employees and an Experienced Managemh Team

We deliver our services through a highlijis@t workforce of approximately 1,800 full-timeag-time and on-call employees in our on-
going business. Our senior managers have overaduandred years of collective experience with falgovernment agencies, the U.S.
military, and federal government contractors. Merslg# our management team have experience growismésses organically, as well as
through acquisitions. The cumulative experiencediffdrentiated expertise of our personnel in corecfocus areas along with our sizable
employee base, the majority of which hold governinsecurity clearances, allow us to qualify for ddl on larger projects in the prime
contracting role.

Services and Solutions

We provide a range of integrated enginggrtivar fighter, security and information technolagyrvices and solutions by leveraging our
core service offerings: weapons systems lifecygtasnment,
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support, and extension; C5ISR; military range opi@na and technical services; missile and rockstdaad evaluation; security systems
integration; and advanced network engineering angktvices.

Weapon Systems Lifecycle Sustainment, Supportx@edgion

We provide weapons systems life cycle sostant, support, and extension services for the Bod foreign governments. These services
focus on maintaining, testing and repairing certe@i@pons systems for the war fighter.

C5ISR (Command, Control, Communications, Compu@ugnbat Systems, Intelligence, Surveillance andReissance)

In the area of C5ISR, we are involved imide range of services, including installation, tgme and maintenance of command, control,
computing, and surveillance systems for customaeh as the Joint Inter Agency Task Force-southB)Athe Naval Undersea Warfare
Center (NUWC) and the Space and Naval Warfare 8ysteenter (SPAWAR). We are also involved in thegtuesearch and development of
exotic sensors, including EO/IR sensors, for owt@mers.

Missile Range Operations and Technical Serv

A key area of differentiation for us is kit the range and technical service areas we dfferhave resources stationed at many major
weapons and targets range locations throughouttiited States, including Naval Air Warfare CenterNMugu, Hawaii Pacific Missile Range,
Fort Bliss, Texas, and White Sands Missile Rangmy Mexico. Our services include aerial targets api@ns and maintenance, surface targets
operations and maintenance, missile systems opesatind maintenance, range operations planningggbrt, hazardous materials
management, supply and logistics support, and naatwring.

Missile and Rocket Test and Evaluat

Through the acquisitions of Haverstick Qdtisg, Inc. and Digital Fusion, Inc. (DFI), we agrpd expertise in the area of missile and
rocket test and evaluation services. This incligesusive rights to the design and manufacturéefbotor on the Oriole Rocket System and
ancillary hardware for sounding rockets, suborbigakarch and target services together with bogiéctual property and subject matter
expertise in sensors and modeling and simulatiencated with a wide range of missile technologhetditionally, this area of our business
develops and produces low-cost ballistic missiliense targets. These ballistic missile targetsBGFS Readiness Assessment Vehicles
(ARAVS) are a key element in U.S. ballistic missiefense forces.

Security Systems Integration

We have broad experience integrating sgcservices and solutions across a number of nétaod communications platforms. In
particular, our non-federal business has long-stanexperience and has developed significant custoglationships by providing best-ifas:
systems integration services on a variety of ptatincluding digital (IP) surveillance and securhuilding automation systems and controls,
fire and life safety systems, access control amiigger protection, and service and maintenan¢heofforementioned systems.

We have comprehensive experience providirgineering services at any phase of a projeayiifie including program management,
engineering design, system engineering, C51 Syf#D0O, operations and maintenance, integrated telewanications, and warfare systems
training.

We also develop and produce network manageand protection proprietary products—Neural8tat dopplerVUE.

8
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Learning, Performance and Training Solutic

Our learning, performance and training sohs consist of a broad range of products andses\capabilities to deliver training solutions
and web-enabled or satellite based interactivewggt learning for customers in the DoD, other gowemt agencies, universities and
commercial organizations. Our training solutionsude services, product development, and toolsemsitig a breadth of related disciplines
that include human performance factors, job ankl aaslysis, competencies definition, skills andwlemige building via multiple delivery
mediums, tracking, assessment, evaluation, and @ealysis. In addition, we develop and providssiaom based and e-learning training and
education programs and Net-Centric Human Systetagiation (HSI) solutions.

We also offer a range of IT services andtgms from conceptual network planning to systarmvice and maintenance. We also offer our
proprietary software based network management ptedia software license and maintenance saleswvdigo serve as a platform for
incremental network based services work. We hatensive experience building complex and secure ordtsvfor the federal government, and
we possess in-depth experience with network omeraitenters. Our services include network opersti@mters, help desks, system
maintenance, system upgrades, configuration managetata warehousing, COTS selection and integraéind high performance computi

Our Strategy

Our strategy is to aggressively grow owibess as a leading provider of highly differemtibservices in our core areas of focus as noted
above by delivering comprehensive, high-end engingeservices, technical solutions and informatechnology solutions to federal
government agencies while improving our profitahiliTo achieve our objective, we intend to:

Accelerate Internal Growth

We are focused on accelerating our integnalvth rate by capitalizing on our current contia@se and customer relationships, expanding
services provided to our existing clients, expagdior client base and offering new, complementaryises.

Capitalize on Current Contract Base We are aggressively pursuing task orders uexisting contract vehicles to maximize our revenue
and strengthen our client relationships, thougheti®eno assurance that the federal governmentweike awards up to the ceiling amounts or
that we will be awarded any task orders under thebéles. We have developed several internal thaisfacilitate our ability to track,
prioritize and win task orders under these vehigEsnbining these tools with our technical expettmur strong past performance record and
our knowledge of our clients' needs, should pasitis to win additional task orders.

Expand Services Provided to Existing Cient We are focused on expanding the services wéd®do our current clients by leveraging
our strong relationships, technical capabilitied past performance record, and by offering a widage of solutions as we continue to acquire
companies with new areas of specialization. Weslelbur understanding of client missions, proceaadseeds, in conjunction with our full
lifecycle IT offerings, positions us to capture nesrk from existing clients as the federal governtmeontinues to increase the volume of IT
services contracted to professional services pesgidMoreover, we believe our strong past perfosaaecord positions us to expand the level
of services we provide to our clients as the feldgoaernment places greater emphasis on past peafare as a criterion for awarding contre

Expand Client Base. We are also focused on expanding our clier¢ br@s areas with significant growth opportunitissleveraging our
capabilities, industry reputation, long-term clieefationships and diverse contract base. We aatieithat this expansion will enable us both to
pursue additional higher value work and to furttiigersify our revenue base across the federal gowent. Our

9
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long-term relationships with federal governmentragies, together with our GWAC vehicles, give usaymnities to win contracts with new
clients within these agencies.

Improve Operating Margins. We believe that we have significant opport@sitio increase our operating margins and improve
profitability by capitalizing on our corporate iaBtructure investments and internally developetstamproving efficiencies and reducing
costs, and concentrating on high value-added pcionéracts.

Capitalize on Corporate Infrastructure Istments. In recent periods, we have made significanéstments in our senior management
and corporate infrastructure in anticipation ofifetrevenue growth. These investments includeddsenior executives with significant
experience with federal IT services companiesngtiening our internal controls over financial reppg and accounting staff in support of
public company reporting requirements, expandingSmnsitive Compartmented Information Facilitied ather corporate facilities, and
expanding our backlog and bid & proposal pipelWwe will be allocating additional resources in ourguit of new and larger contract
opportunities, leveraging our increased scale abdst past performance qualifications. We beliaversanagement experience and corporate
infrastructure are more typical of a company withach larger revenue base than ours. We thereftigate that, to the extent our revenue
grows, we will be able to leverage this infrastumetbase and increase our operating margins.

Concentrate on High Value-Added Prime Cacts. We expect to improve our operating margins astsive to increase the percentage
of revenue we derive from our work as a prime awttr and from engagements where contracts areladi@n a best value, rather than on a
low cost, basis. The federal government's move td\warformancdsased contract awards to realize greater retuitsonvestment has resuli
in a shift to greater utilization of best value agg We believe this shift will enable us to expand operating margins as we are awarded 1
contracts of this nature.

Pursue Strategic Acquisitions

We intend to supplement our organic grolmthidentifying, acquiring and integrating businestgat meet our primary objective of
providing us with enhanced capabilities to pursbecader cross section of the DoD, DHS and otheegonent markets, complement and
broaden our existing client base and expand ourgrsi service offerings. Our senior management teasrsignificant acquisition experience.

On December 31, 2007, we completed theisitipm of Haverstick Consulting, Inc., an Indiawéip, Indiana based privateheld providel
of rocket and missile test and evaluation, weapystems support, and professional services to t8e Afmy, U.S. Air Force, U.S. Navy,
NASA, and other federal, state and local agen€esJune 28, 2008, we acquired San D-based C4ISR and net-centric warfare solutions
provider SYS in a stock-for-stock transaction. dldiion, on December 24, 2008, we acquired Huresvlllabama based Digital Fusion, Inc.
(DFI) in a stock-for-stock transaction. DFI provédechnical engineering services and Unmanned Aéelaicle (UAV) products and
technology. We continue to evaluate potential agitjon targets. To the extent any future acquisiiiovolves cash consideration, we will need
to obtain additional financing through the saleqfiity or debt securities to fund any such acqaoisst

Customers

A representative list of our customersum KGS segment during 2009 included the U.S. AircépU.S. Army, U.S. Navy, Missile
Defense Agency, the Department of Homeland SeGWNiSA, FMS, the U.S. Southern Command, and US énmunity. In our PSS
segment, our customers in 2009 included BritisiidRaim, Atlanta's Hartsfield-Jackson Airport, Loekdd Martin, City of Philadelphia,
DuPont Fabros Technologies, Anadarko, Houston ComitipnCollege, Shire

10
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Pharmaceuticals, Memorial Hermann Hospital Syst€l#y,Motors, Capital Health, and National Alabamar@aration.

The following table presents our custonies whom we receive more than 10% of our revenue:

% of Total

Key Customer Revenue Revenue
2007
U.S. Navy $ 38.7 20%
U.S. Army $ 46.7 24%
2008
U.S. Navy $ 106.: 37%
U.S. Army $ 49.C 17%
2009
U.S. Navy $ 100.¢ 30%
U.S. Army $ 72C 22%

Backlog

As of December 27, 2009, and December @88 2our total backlog was approximately $565 milland $750 million, respectively, of
which $124 million was funded as of December 2028nd $160 million was funded as of December 8882Backlog is our estimate of the
amount of revenue we expect to realize over thexnaimg life of awarded contracts and task ordeas We have in hand as of the measurement
date. Our total backlog consists of funded and maéal backlog. We define funded backlog as estinfatede revenue under government
contracts and task orders for which funding hasitaggropriated by Congress and authorized for ediphee by the applicable agency, plus
estimate of the future revenue we expect to reédama our commercial contracts that are under fanalers. Our funded backlog does not
include the full potential value of our contradiscause Congress often appropriates funds to loebysan agency for a particular program of a
contract on a yearly or quarterly basis, even thahg contract may call for performance over a nemnaf years. As a result, contracts typically
are only partially funded at any point during theirm and all or some of the work to be performedar the contracts may remain unfunded
unless and until Congress makes subsequent apgtioprand the procuring agency allocates fundintdpéocontract.

Unfunded backlog reflects our estimateutdife revenue under awarded government contradttaak orders for which either funding has
not yet been appropriated or expenditure has rtdigen authorized. Our total backlog does not oelestimates of revenue from government-
wide acquisition contracts, or (GWAC) contracts@Ganeral Services Administration (GSA) schedulgshd awarded or funded task orders,
but our unfunded backlog does include estimateswenue beyond awarded or funded task orders lier ¢¢pes of indefinite delivery,
indefinite quantity (IDIQ) contracts, based on emperience under such contracts and similar castremfunded backlog also includes priced
options, which consist of the aggregate contrasmaes expected to be earned as a result of anteisexercising an option period that has
been specifically defined in the original contraatard.

Contracts undertaken by us may extend lebpoe year. Accordingly, portions are carried fadvizom one year to the next as part of
backlog. Because many factors affect the schedolimgojects, no assurance can be given as to whemue will be realized on projects
included in our backlog. Although funded backlogresents only business which is considered torbg fve cannot guarantee that
cancellations or scope adjustments will not oc€he majority of funded backlog represents contrantier the terms of which cancellation by
the customer would entitle us to all or a portiéor costs incurred and potential fees.
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Management believes that year-to-year coisas of backlog are not necessarily indicativéutdire revenues. The actual timing of
receipt of revenues, if any, on projects includedacklog could change because many factors affectcheduling of projects. In addition,
cancellation or adjustments to contracts may odgacklog is typically subject to large variatiomsrfi quarter to quarter as existing contracts
are renewed or new contracts are awarded. Addltioradl United States government contracts incllidiebacklog, whether or not funded, n
be terminated at the convenience of the UniteceStgdvernment.

Employees

As of December 27, 2009, including the esypes from the Haverstick Consulting, Inc., SYShiredogies, and Digital Fusion, Inc.
acquisitions, we employed approximately 1,800 fatle, part-time and on-call employees. We haveamtlective bargaining unit of
approximately 20 employees which is representethéynternational Association of Machinists & Agoase Workers, AFICIO, White Sand
Local Lodge 2515, Alamogordo, New Mexico.

Competition

Our market is competitive, and includesftiierange of federal and non-federal engineednd IT service providers. Many of the
companies that we compete against have significgnéater financial, technical and marketing resesy and generate greater revenues than
we do. Competition in the federal business segrimehides tier one, large federal government cotracsuch as Northrop Grumman, SAIC,
ITT Industries, Inc., Computer Sciences Corporat®RINC, Raytheon Corporation, BAE, and CACI. While view government contractors
as competitors, we often team with these companigsnt proposals or in the delivery of our seesdor customers. Tier two competitors
include smaller and mid-tier government contracsush as NCI, Inc., Stanley, Inc., and Dynamicse@esh Corp. Competition in the PSS
segment includes Siemens Building Technology, Jam@ontrols, Ingersoll Rand, Convergent, VSE Caxion and Global Defense
Technology & Systems, Inc.

We believe that the principal competitigetbrs in our ability to win new business includetpperformance qualifications, domain and
technology expertise, the ability to replace carttkeehicles, the ability to deliver results withindget (time and cost), reputation,
accountability, staffing flexibility including thiarge number of personnel with government secuatégrances, and project management
expertise. We believe our ability to compete alepahds on a number of additional factors includiregability of our customers to perform the
services themselves, and competitive pricing fonilar services.

Available Information

We file reports with the SEC. We make afali on our website under "Investor Relations/SHiBds," free of charge, our annual reports
on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, carreports on Form 8-K and amendments to those't®pe soon as reasonably practicable
after we electronically file such materials withfornish them to the SEC. Our website addressnss.kratosdefense.com

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the followirigk factors and all other information containestdin as well as the information included in
this Annual Report, and other reports and filingedewith the SEC in evaluating our business andpats. Risks and uncertainties, in
addition to those we describe below, that are neggntly known to us or that we currently beliekeienmaterial may also impair our business
operations. If any of the following risks occur rdausiness and financial results could be
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harmed and the price of our common stock couldiecyou should also refer to the other informatimmtained in this report, including our
Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes

Our business could be adversely affected by charigegke contracting or fiscal policies of the fed@rgovernment and governmental entiti

We derive a significant portion of our raue from contracts with the U.S. federal governnagmt government agencies and subcontracts
under federal government prime contracts, andubeess of our business and growth of our businé@ssamtinue to depend on our successful
procurement of government contracts either direatlihrough prime contractors. Accordingly, chanigegovernment contracting policies or
government budgetary constraints could directlg@fbur financial performance. Among the factoet ttould adversely affect our business
are:

. changes in fiscal policies or decreases in avalgblernment funding, including budgetary constsadtffecting federal
government spending generally, or specific depantmer agencies in particular;

. the adoption of new laws or regulations or changesisting laws or regulations;

. changes in political or social attitudes with rege security and defense issues;

. changes in federal government programs or requingsnancluding the increased use of small busipesegiders;
. increases in the federal government initiativeates to il-sourcing;

. changes in or delays related to government resinigton the export of defense articles and seryices

. potential delays or changes in the government gpjations process; and

. delays in the payment of our invoices by governnpayiment offices

These and other factors could cause govemtsrand government agencies, or prime contratitatsise us as a subcontractor, to reduce
their purchases under existing contracts, to egerttieir rights to terminate contracts at-will@abstain from exercising options to renew
contracts, any of which could have an adverse effeour business, financial condition and resotsperations. Many of our government
customers are subject to stringent budgetary caingst The award of additional contracts from goweent agencies could be adversely
affected by spending reductions or budget cutbatkisese agencies.

Our ability to make payments on our debt will bentimgent on our future operating performance, whichill depend on a number of factors
that are outside of our control.

Our debt service obligations are estimadeoe approximately $10 million in 2010, includiagproximately $4.5 million of principal
repayments. This debt service may have an adves&ct on our earnings and cash flow, which couldiin negatively impact our stock price.

Our ability to make principal and interpalyments on our debt is contingent on our futuerajing performance, which will depend on a
number of factors, many of which are outside of @umtrol. The degree to which we are leverageddchal/e other important negative
consequences, including the following:

. we must dedicate a substantial portion of our ¢asts from operations to the payment of our inddbtss, reducing the fun
available for future working capital requiremerdapital expenditures, acquisitions or other genesgborate requirements;
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. a significant portion of our borrowings are, andl wontinue to be, at variable rates of interedtjcli may result in higher inter
expense in the event of increases in interest atessthe interest rate floor in our credit agreetne

. we may be more vulnerable to a downturn in the stries in which we operate or a downturn in theneooy in general;

. we may be limited in our flexibility to plan fory oeact to, changes in our businesses and thetinekigr which we operate;

. we may be placed at a competitive disadvantage aoedpto our competitors that have less d

. we may determine it to be necessary to disposertdio assets or one or more of our businessesitae our debt; ar

. our ability to borrow additional funds in excessooir current financing may be limited.

We may not generate sufficient cash flomnfroperations and future borrowings may not belalks in amounts sufficient to enable us to
pay our indebtedness or to fund our other liquidiéeds. Moreover, we may need to refinance allporion of our indebtedness on or before
maturity. In such a case, we cannot make assuranaewe will be able to refinance any of our indelmess on commercially reasonable terms
or at all. If we are unable to make scheduled gaptnents or comply with the other provisions of debt instruments, our various lenders 1
be permitted under certain circumstances to actel¢he maturity of the indebtedness owed to thednexercise other remedies provided fc
those instruments and under applicable law.

Our new credit facility contains restrictive covents that could limit our ability to operate our busess and, if not satisfied, could result in
the acceleration of the amounts due under the ciddkility.

The agreements governing our credit facditbject us to various financial and other covéhanith which we must comply. These
financial covenants include a maximum total levereagio, a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, amiinimum net asset coverage ratio. In
addition, this agreement contains covenants thgtsigmificantly restrict our future operations. Fotample, these covenants include
restrictions on our ability to:

. incur additional debt

. create or incur liens;

. bid on or perform work due to limits on the amoahperformance bonds that may be secured by latfereedit;
. pay dividends or make other equity distributionsto stockholders

. make investment:

. sell assets;

. issue or become liable on a guarantee;

. create or acquire new subsidiari

. effect a merger or consolidation of, or sell alsabstantially all of our assets; a

. raise capital using our equity.

Upon the occurrence of any event of defantter our credit agreements, our lenders coultt &dedeclare all amounts outstanding on our
credit facility, together with accrued interestb®immediately due and payable. If our lenderewerrccelerate payment of these amounts, we
may not
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have sufficient assets to repay them in full. Idiadn, if we fail to comply with these financiahd other covenants, or are otherwise unable to
make scheduled debt payments or comply with thergitovisions of our debt instruments, our lendeay be permitted under certain
circumstances to deny future access to liquidéjzescontrol of substantially all of our assets ardrcise other remedies provided for in those
agreements and under applicable law.

We may need additional capital to fund the growthaur business, and financing may not be availalda favorable terms or at all.

We currently anticipate that our availatédgital resources, including our credit facilitydamperating cash flows, will be sufficient to meet
our expected working capital and capital expenditequirements for at least the next 12 months.d¥ew such resources may not be
sufficient to fund the long-term growth of our busss. If we determine that it is necessary to radshktional funds, either through an expansion
or refinancing of our credit facility or throughlgic or private debt or equity financings, additfinancing may not be available on terms
favorable to us, or at all. Disruptions in the ¢alpand credit markets may continue indefinitelyraensify, which could adversely affect our
ability to access these markets. We could fallafwompliance with financial and other covenantstamed in our credit facility which, if not
waived, would restrict our access to capital angldoequire us to pay down our existing debt urtbercredit facility. Our lenders may not
agree to extend additional or continuing creditemalr credit facility or waive restrictions on cagcess to capital. If we were to conduct a
public or private offering of securities, any neffeang would be likely to dilute our stockholdeegjuity ownership. If adequate funds are not
available or are not available on acceptable tewasnay not be able to take advantage of availapertunities, develop new products or
otherwise respond to competitive pressures andwsiness, operating results or financial conditionld be materially adversely affected.

Our ability to utilize our net operating loss carfyrwards and certain other tax attributes may benited.

Federal and state tax laws impose resiriston the utilization of net operating loss anddedit carryforwards in the event of an
"ownership change" for tax purposes as defineddmnti@n 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. Underi@e&32 of the Internal Revenue Code,
if a corporation undergoes an "ownership changefiégally defined as greater than 50% change (lyeYyéh its equity ownership over a three
year period), the corporation's ability to usepits-change net operating loss carryforwards and gifeechange tax attributes to offset its post-
change income may be limited. At December 27, 20@9¢do not believe that any "ownership changesélmcurred which would materially
limit the utilization of the loss carryforwards. Wever, future equity offerings or acquisitions thave equity as a component of the purchase
price could result in an "ownership change”. If'awnership change" does occur in the future, w@tilan of the net operating loss or other tax
attributes may be limited.

We derive a substantial amount of our revenues fréime sale of our solutions either directly or indictly to U.S. government entities
pursuant to government contracts, which differ mai@ly from standard commercial contracts, invohampetitive bidding and may
subject to cancellation or delay without penaltynyaof which may produce volatility in our revenu@sd earnings.

Government contracts frequently includevigions that are not standard in private commetciaisactions, and are subject to laws and
regulations that give the federal government rigimg remedies not typically found in commercialtcacts, including provisions permitting t
federal government to:

. terminate our existing contracts;

. reduce potential future income from our existingtcacts;
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. modify some of the terms and conditions in our taxgscontracts;

. suspend or permanently prohibit us from doing bessnwith the federal government or with any spegjivernment agenc

. impose fines and penalties;

. subject us to criminal prosecution;

. suspend work under existing multiple year contracts related task orders if the necessary fundearappropriated b
Congress;

. decline to exercise an option to extend an existindfiple year contract; and

. claim rights in technologies and systems inventiedeloped or produced by us.

In addition, government contracts are feagly awarded only after formal competitive biddimgpcesses, which have been and may
continue to be protracted and typically impose fmions that permit cancellation in the event thetessary funds are unavailable to the public
agency. Competitive procurements impose substartss and managerial time and effort in orderépare bids and proposals for contracts
that may not be awarded to us. In many cases, oessiul bidders for government agency contractpereded the opportunity to formally
protest certain contract awards through variousieigs, administrative and judicial channels. Thetgst process may substantially delay a
successful bidder's contract performance, reswdaircellation of the contract award entirely argtrdict management. We may not be awarded
contracts for which we bid, and substantial delaysancellation of purchases may follow our sudteg$sds as a result of such protests.

Certain of our government contracts alsat@o "organizational conflict of interest" claughat could limit our ability to compete for
certain related follow-on contracts. For examplaewwe work on the design of a particular solutise,may be precluded from competing for
the contract to install that solution. While weiagly monitor our contracts to avoid these conéljate cannot guarantee that we will be able to
avoid all organizational conflict of interest issue

We may not receive the full amounts estimated unttex contracts in our backlog, which could reducerarevenue in future periods below
the levels anticipated and which makes backlog arcertain indicator of future operating results.

As of December 27, 2009, and December @88 2our total backlog was approximately $565 willand $750 million, respectively of
which $124 million was funded as of December 2028nd $160 million was funded as of December 28882Funded backlog is estimated
future revenue under government contracts anddades for which funding has been appropriated byggEess and authorized for expenditure
by the applicable agency, plus our estimate ofuh&e revenue we expect to realize from our conesimécontracts that are under firm orders.
Although funded backlog represents only businessiwis considered to be firm, cancellations or gcagjustments may still occur. Unfunded
backlog reflects our estimate of future revenueenravarded government contracts and task orderstimh either funding has not yet been
appropriated or expenditure has not yet been aizéthrUnfunded backlog does not include estimateswenue from GWAC contracts or G
schedules beyond awarded or funded task ordersidastinclude estimates of revenue beyond awandiohded task orders for other types of
IDIQ contracts. The amount of unfunded backlogdsexact or guaranteed and is based upon, amoegthihgs, management's experience
under such contracts and similar contracts, theécpigar clients, the type of work and budgetary entations. Our management may not
accurately assess these factors or estimate teauewve will realize from these contracts, andunfunded and total backlog may not reflect
the actual revenue ultimately received from thesgracts.
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Backlog is typically subject to large vdioas from quarter to quarter and comparisons oklog from period to period are not necesse
indicative of future revenues. The contracts cosipg our backlog may not result in actual revemuaniy particular period or at all, and the
actual revenue from such contracts may differ frambacklog estimates. The timing of receipt oferayes, if any, on projects included in
backlog could change because many factors affect¢heduling of projects. Cancellation of or adjestts to contracts may occur.
Additionally, all United States government contsaicicluded in backlog, whether or not funded, maydsminated at the convenience of the
United States government. The failure to realit@mlounts in our backlog could adversely affectr@wenues and gross margins. As a result,
our funded and total backlog as of any particutednay not be an accurate indicator of our fuéamings.

We face intense competition from many competitdratthave greater resources than we do, which corgdult in price reductions, reduced
profitability or loss of market share

We operate in highly competitive marketd generally encounter intense competition to wint@ets from many other firms, including
mid-tier federal contractors with specialized cédfit#s and large defense and IT services providémmpetition in our markets may increase
as a result of a number of factors, such as thramce of new or larger competitors, including thfisened through alliances or consolidation.
These competitors may have greater financial, ieahrmarketing and public relations resourcegdaclient bases and greater brand or name
recognition than we do. These competitors couldyragrother things:

. divert sales from us by winning very large-scalgggament contracts, a risk that is enhanced bydbent trend in government
procurement practices to bundle services into tazgatracts;

. force us to charge lower prices;

. adversely affect our relationships with currengwts, including our ability to continue to win coetiively awarded
engagements in which we are the incumbent.

If we lose business to our competitorsrerfarced to lower our prices, our revenue andaparating profits could decline. In addition, we
may face competition from our subcontractors whamftime-to-time, seek to obtain prime contractatiss on contracts for which they
currently serve as a subcontractor to us. If onaare of our current subcontractors are awardedepdontractor status on such contracts in the
future, it could divert sales from us or could fnrgs to charge lower prices, which could causemangins to suffer.

Recent acquisitions and potential future acquisiti® could prove difficult to integrate, disrupt olnusiness, dilute stockholder value al
strain our resources

We continually evaluate opportunities tq@ce new businesses as part of our ongoing strated we may in the future acquire additic
companies that we believe could complement or expam business or increase our customer base. gitiqus involve numerous risks,
including:

. difficulties in integrating operations, technolagji@ccounting and personnel;

. difficulties in supporting and transitioning custera of acquired companies;

. difficulties or delays in transitioning federal ggmment contracts pursuant to federal acquisiggulations

. diversion of financial and management resourcas &gisting operation:

. potential loss of key employees;

. federal acquisition regulations may require usrieeinto government novation agreements, a paintime-consuming

process; and

. inability to generate sufficient revenue to offaeguisition costs.
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Acquired companies may have liabilitiesadwerse operating issues that we fail to discdwaugh due diligence prior to the acquisition.
In particular, to the extent that prior owners nf acquired businesses or properties failed to ¢pmijth or otherwise violated applicable laws
or regulations, or failed to fulfill their contragtl obligations to the federal government or othlients, we, as the successor owner, may be
financially responsible for these violations anilii@s and may suffer reputational harm or otheeviie adversely affected. Acquisitions also
frequently result in the recording of goodwill aoither intangible assets which are subject to pikinipairment in the future that could harm
our financial results. In addition, if we financegaisitions by issuing convertible debt or equiggurities, our existing stockholders may be
diluted, which could affect the market price of atwck. Acquisitions and or the related equity ficiags could also impact our ability to utilize
our net operating loss carryforwards. As a redulte fail to properly evaluate acquisitions or @#ments, we may not achieve the anticipated
benefits of any such acquisitions, and we may ilcogts in excess of what we anticipate. Acquisgtivequently involve benefits related to
integration of operations. The failure to succelbsintegrate the operations or otherwise to reatiny of the anticipated benefits of the
acquisition could seriously harm our results ofraiens.

Our financial results may vary significantly fromuwgarter to quarter.

We expect our revenue and operating resuliary from quarter to quarter. Reductions ineraye in a particular quarter could lead to
lower profitability in that quarter because a riefglly large amount of our expenses are fixed insthert-term. We may incur significant
operating expenses during the start-up and eaxjestof large contracts and may not be able t@réze corresponding revenue in that same
quarter. We may also incur additional expenses vwoatracts expire, are terminated or are not redewe

In addition, payments due to us from fetlgewernment agencies may be delayed due to bidlimdes or as a result of failures of
government budgets to gain congressional and adtration approval in a timely manner. The fedemlegnment's fiscal year ends
September 30. If a federal budget for the nextrf@descal year has not been approved by that ideg¢@ch year, our clients may have to sus
engagements that we are working on until a budasetieen approved. Any such suspensions may reducev@nue in the fourth quarter of
that year or the first quarter of the subsequeat.yehe federal government's fiscal year end csm taigger increased purchase requests from
clients for equipment and materials. Any incregsethase requests we receive as a result of tleedlegovernment's fiscal year end would
serve to increase our third or fourth quarter rereetout will generally decrease profit marginstfaat quarter, as these activities generally are
not as profitable as our typical offerings.

Additional factors that may cause our ficiahresults to fluctuate from quarter to quartesliide those addressed elsewhere in these Risk
Factors and the following, among others:

. the terms of customer contracts that affect théntinof revenue recognitiol

. variability in demand for our services and solusipn

. commencement, completion or termination of congrdctring any particular quarter;

. timing of award or performance incentive fee natijt

. timing of significant bid and proposal cos

. variable purchasing patterns under GSA Schedukorifracts, government wide acquisition contract/&&s), blanket

purchase agreements and other indefinite delivedgfinite quantity contracts;

. restrictions on and delays related to the expodedénse articles and servic
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. costs related to government inquiries;

. strategic decisions by us or our competitors, agchcquisitions, divestitures, s-offs and joint ventures

. strategic investments or changes in business gyrate

. changes in the extent to which we use subcontrgctor

. seasonal fluctuations in our staff utilization &¢

. changes in our effective tax rate including charigesir judgment as to the necessity of the vaduasillowance recorded agai

our deferred tax assets; and

. the length of sales cycles.

Significant fluctuations in our operatirgsults for a particular quarter could cause uafiamfit of compliance with the financial covenants
contained in our credit facility, which if not waid by the lender, could restrict our access totabaind cause us to take extreme measures to
pay down our debt under the credit facility. In gidd, fluctuations in our financial results coudduse our stock price to decline.

If we fail to establish and maintain important reteonships with government entities and agencies astder government contractors, ot
ability to bid successfully for new business maydub/ersely affected.

To develop new business opportunities, vimgrily rely on establishing and maintaining redaships with various government entities
and agencies. We may be unable to successfullytaiiour relationships with government entities agencies, and any failure to do so could
materially adversely affect our ability to compstecessfully for new business. In addition, werofiet as a subcontractor or in "teaming"
arrangements in which we and other contractorddgdther on particular contracts or programs ferfédderal government or government
agencies. As a subcontractor or team member, e itk control over fulfillment of a contract, apdor performance on the contract could
tarnish our reputation, even when we perform asired. We expect to continue to depend on relakippsswith other contractors for a portion
of our revenue in the foreseeable future. Moreower revenue and operating results could be méteadversely affected if any prime
contractor or teammate chooses to offer a cliemices of the type that we provide or if any prioantractor or teammate teams with other
companies to independently provide those services.

We derive a significant portion of our revenues froa limited number of customers.

We have derived, and believe that we vdtitinue to derive, a significant portion of our eeues from a limited number of customers. To
the extent that any significant customer usesdéssir services or terminates its relationship wish our revenues could decline significantly.
As a result, the loss of any significant client lcoseriously harm our business. For the year efilszember 27, 2009, two customers compi
approximately 60% and 52% of our federal businessmues and total revenues, respectively, andwitargest customers accounted for
approximately 72% and 62% of our total federal bess revenues and total revenues, respectivelye Noour customers are obligated to
purchase additional services from us. As a rethdtyolume of work that we perform for a specificstomer is likely to vary from period to
period, and a significant client in one period nmay use our services in a subsequent period.
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Our margins and operating results may suffer if veaperience unfavorable changes in the proportionaafst-plus-fee or fixed-price
contracts in our total contract mix.

Although fixedprice contracts entail a greater risk of a redymedit or financial loss on a contract comparedatioer types of contracts
enter into, fixed-price contracts typically providigher profit opportunities because we may be @bleenefit from cost savings. In contrast,
cost-plus-fee contracts are subject to statutomjtdion profit margins, and generally are the Igasfitable of our contract types. Our federal
government customers typically determine what typpeontract we enter into. Cost-plus-fee and fixeite contracts in our federal business
accounted for approximately 36% and 31%, respdgtio¢ our federal business revenues for the yaded December 27, 2009. To the extent
that we enter into more cost-plus-fee or less figgde contracts in proportion to our total contranix in the future, our margins and operating
results may suffer.

Our cash flow and profitability could be reducedéipenditures are incurred prior to the final reqaiof a contract.

We provide various professional service$ ssmetimes procure equipment and materials onlfbefaur federal government customers
under various contractual arrangements. From tarigrte, in order to ensure that we satisfy our @usrs' delivery requirements and
schedules, we may elect to initiate procuremeativance of receiving final authorization from tlevgrnment customer or a prime contractor.
If our government or prime contractor customerguieements should change or if the government®mptime contractor should direct the
anticipated procurement to a contractor other tigar if the equipment or materials become obsaetequire modification before we are
under contract for the procurement, our investnirettie equipment or materials might be at risk & gannot efficiently resell them. This could
reduce anticipated earnings or result in a losgatieely affecting our cash flow and profitability.

Loss of our GSA contracts or GWACs would impair oalility to attract new busines:

We are a prime contractor under several G&#racts and GWAC schedule contracts. We belieatour ability to provide services
under these contracts will continue to be importardgur business because of the multiple oppoisifor new engagements each contract
provides. If we were to lose our position as prizoatractor on one or more of these contracts, wéddose substantial revenues and our
operating results could suffer. GSA contracts ahe@rGWACS typically have a one or twear initial term with multiple options exercisalait
the government client's discretion to extend thareat for one or more years. We cannot be asshegdur government clients will continue
to exercise the options remaining on our currentregts, nor can we be assured that our futuretsligill exercise options on any contracts
may receive in the future.

Failure to properly manage projects may result inlditional costs or claims.

Our engagements often involve large sdatghly complex projects. The quality of our perf@mnee on such projects depends in large part
upon our ability to manage the relationship with oustomers, and to effectively manage the praadtdeploy appropriate resources,
including third-party contractors, and our own jpersel, in a timely manner. Any defects or erroréadlure to meet clients' expectations could
result in claims for substantial damages againsbus contracts generally limit our liability foachages that arise from negligent acts, error,
mistakes or omissions in rendering services tocbants. However, we cannot be sure that theseaachual provisions will protect us from
liability for damages in the event we are suedaddition, in certain instances, we guarantee custstinat we will complete a project by a
scheduled date. If the project experiences a pedoce problem, we may not be able to recover tb#ianal costs we will incur, which could
exceed revenues realized from a project. Findllgei underestimate the resources or time we needrplete a project with capped or fixed
fees, our operating results could be seriously lbdrm
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The loss of any member of our senior managementlddmpair our relationships with federal governmeitients and disrupt the
management of our business.

We believe that the success of our busiardsour ability to operate profitably dependstom ¢ontinued contributions of the members of
our senior management. We rely on our senior manageto generate business and execute programassficdy. In addition, the
relationships and reputation that many membersiopenior management team have established andaimaivith federal government
personnel contribute to our ability to maintairosty client relationships and to identify new busepportunities. We do not have any
employment agreements providing for a specific teframployment with any member of our senior manag&. The loss of any member of
our senior management could impair our abilitydentify and secure new contracts, to maintain gdieet relations and to otherwise manage
our business.

If we fail to attract and retain skilled employees employees with the necessary security clearanegsmight not be able to perform und
our contracts or win new business.

The growth of our business and revenue rtdpan large part upon our ability to attract aetain sufficient numbers of highly qualified
individuals who have advanced information technglagd/or engineering skills. These employees aggeat demand and are likely to remain
a limited resource in the foreseeable future. @efederal government contracts require us, andesohour employees, to maintain security
clearances. Obtaining and maintaining securityralezes for employees involves a lengthy procegsbitas difficult to identify, recruit and
retain employees who already hold security cleaanin addition, some of our contracts contain {gions requiring us to staff an engagement
with personnel that the client considers key tosuacessful performance under the contract. letest we are unable to provide these key
personnel or acceptable substitutions, the clieayt tarminate the contract and we may lose revenue.

If we are unable to recruit and retain fiigent number of qualified employees, our abilitymaintain and grow our business could be
limited. In a tight labor market, our direct lalmmsts could increase or we may be required to enlgage numbers of subcontractor personnel,
which could cause our profit margins to suffer. @ensely, if we maintain or increase our staffingels in anticipation of one or more projects
and the projects are delayed, reduced or terminatednay underutilize the additional personnel,cihivould increase our general and
administrative expenses, reduce our earnings assilgp harm our results of operations.

If our subcontractors fail to perform their contracal obligations, our performance and reputation asprime contractor and our ability ti
obtain future business could suffer.

As a prime contractor, we often rely updimeo companies to perform work we are obligategeidorm for our clients as subcontractors.
As we secure more work under our GWAC vehiclesewgect to require an increasing level of suppamnfisubcontractors that provide
complementary and supplementary services to oerioffs. Depending on labor market conditions, wg n@t be able to identify, hire and
retain sufficient numbers of qualified employeepénform the task orders we expect to win. In stades, we will need to rely on subcontracts
with unrelated companies. Moreover, even in faviergddor market conditions, we anticipate enterirtig more subcontracts in the future as
we expand our work under our GWACs. We are resjptm$dr the work performed by our subcontractovgrethough in some cases we have
limited involvement in that work.

If one or more of our subcontractors faikatisfactorily perform the agreed-upon servigea timely basis or violate federal government
contracting policies, laws or regulations, our iaptio perform our obligations as a prime contractomeet our clients' expectations may be
compromised. In extreme cases, performance or defaiencies on the part of our subcontractordaeesult in a client terminating our
contract for default. A termination for default ¢d@xpose us to liability,
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including liability for the agency's costs of proement, could damage our reputation and coulddwrability to compete for future contracts.

Our contracts and administrative processes and sys are subject to audits and cost adjustmentshigyfederal government, which could
reduce our revenue, disrupt our business or othesevadversely affect our results of operations.

Federal government agencies, includingtefense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA), routinely #uehd investigate government contracts
and government contractors' administrative proceasd systems. These agencies review our perfosrancontracts, pricing practices, cost
structure and compliance with applicable laws, l&tipns and standards. They also review the adgopfamur compliance with government
standards for its accounting and management afnakteontrol systems, including: control environmand overall accounting system, general
information technology system, budget and plansiygjem, purchasing system, material managemerda@malinting system, compensation
system, labor system, indirect and other directscegstem, billing system and estimating systend éisepricing on government contracts. B
contractors and the U.S. Government agencies ctindubese audits and reviews have come underasecescrutiny. The current audits and
reviews have become more rigorous and the stantardsich contractors are being held are being rstietly interpreted, increasing the
likelihood of an audit or review resulting in arvadse outcome.

While we have submitted all applicable imed cost claims, the actual indirect cost audjtshie DCAA have not been completed for fis
2005 and subsequent fiscal years. Although we hes@rded contract revenues subsequent to fiscal B@Sed upon costs that we believe will
be approved upon final audit or review, we do maiw the outcome of any ongoing or future auditeeerews and, if future adjustments
exceed our estimates, our profitability would beeadely affected.

Our failure to comply with complex procurement lavesid regulations could cause us to lose businesd anbject us to a variety of penalti

We must comply with laws and regulatiorlatieg to the formation, administration and perfarme of federal government contracts,
which affect how we do business with our clientime contractors, subcontractors and vendors andimigose added costs on us. Our role as
a contractor to agencies and departments of the@b®ernment results in our being routinely subjedhvestigations and reviews relating to
compliance with various laws and regulations, idolg those associated with organizational conflidtsiterest. These investigations may be
conducted without our knowledge. Adverse findingshiese investigations or reviews can lead to créicivil or administrative proceedings
and we could face civil and criminal penalties addhinistrative sanctions, including terminatiorcoftracts, forfeiture of profits, suspension
of payments, fines and suspension or debarmentdi@ing business with federal government agencieadtlition, we could suffer serious
harm to our reputation and competitive positioallégations of impropriety were made against ustivlr or not true. If our reputation or
relationship with federal government agencies vimgaired, or if the federal government otherwisassal doing business with us or
significantly decreased the amount of busineseeasdvith us, our revenue and operating profit walddline.

If we experience systems or service failure, oupuéation could be harmed and our clients could agsalaims against us for damages
refunds.

We create, implement and maintain IT sohsithat are often critical to our clients' openasi. We have experienced, and may in the fi
experience, some systems and service failuresdatzher
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delivery delays and other problems in connectiahwur work. If we experience these problems, wg:ma

. lose revenue due to adverse client reac

. be required to provide additional services to artliat no charge;

. receive negative publicity, which could damage reputation and adversely affect our ability toaadtror retain clients; and
. suffer claims for substantial damag

In addition to any costs resulting fromglwot or service warranties, contract performancequired corrective action, these failures may
result in increased costs or loss of revenue éintti postpone subsequently scheduled work or caorcilil to renew, contracts.

While many of our contracts limit our lifityi for consequential damages that may arise fregligence in rendering services to our
clients, we cannot ensure that these contracto&igions will be legally sufficient to protect usane are sued. In addition, our errors and
omissions and product liability insurance coveragg/ not be adequate, may not continue to be avaitabreasonable terms or in sufficient
amounts to cover one or more large claims, orrtearer may disclaim coverage as to some typegwfeficlaims. The successful assertion of
any large claim against us could seriously harmbmsiness. Even if not successful, these claimklaegult in significant legal and other co
may be a distraction to our management and may barmeputation.

Security breaches in sensitive federal governmergtems could result in the loss of clients and néga publicity.

Many of the systems we develop, install arantain involve managing and protecting inforroatinvolved in intelligence, national
security and other sensitive or classified fedgoalernment functions. A security breach in oneheke systems could cause serious harm t
business, damage our reputation and prevent usbedng eligible for further work on sensitive oassified systems for federal government
clients. We could incur losses from such a sectmigach that could exceed the policy limits undererrors and omissions and product
liability insurance. Damage to our reputation aritations on our eligibility for additional work salting from a security breach in one of the
systems we develop, install and maintain could riedhg reduce our revenue.

Our employees may engage in misconduct or otherriomer activities, which could cause us to lose aaiats.

We are exposed to the risk that employaedior other misconduct could occur. Misconduceimployees could include intentional
failures to comply with federal government procuegrnregulations, engaging in unauthorized actisitiefalsifying time records. Employee
misconduct could also involve the improper usewfdients' sensitive or classified information,iefhcould result in regulatory sanctions
against us and serious harm to our reputation anlficesult in a loss of contracts and a redudtiorevenues. It is not always possible to deter
employee misconduct, and the precautions we takesteent and detect this activity may not be effecin controlling unknown or unmanaged
risks or losses, which could cause us to lose aot#or cause a reduction in revenues. In addisibeged or actual employee misconduct could
result in investigations or prosecutions of empésyengaged in the subject activities, which coetdiit in unanticipated consequences or
expenses and management distraction for us regardfevhether we are alleged to have any respditgibi
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Our business is dependent upon our ability to kgegee with the latest technological changes.

The market for our services is characterizg rapid change and technological improvemeragufe to respond in a timely and cost
effective way to these technological developmerdsald result in serious harm to our business andatipg results. We have derived, and we
expect to continue to derive, a substantial portibaur revenues from providing innovative engimegservices and technical solutions that
based upon today's leading technologies and tbategrable of adapting to future technologies. Assalt, our success will depend, in part, on
our ability to develop and market service offeritigat respond in a timely manner to the technokdgidvances of our customers, evolving
industry standards and changing client preferences.

If we are unable to manage our growth, our businessuld be adversely affecte

Sustaining our growth has placed signifiaemands on our management, as well as on ountrative, operational and financial
resources. For us to continue to manage our gromghmust continue to improve our operational, fciahand management information
systems and expand, motivate and manage our woekftirwe are unable to manage our growth whilentaéming our quality of service and
profit margins, or if new systems that we implemeendssist in managing our growth do not produeectkpected benefits, our business,
prospects, financial condition or operating resodtsld be adversely affected.

We may be harmed by intellectual property infringent claims and our failure to protect our intelleaal property could enable competitors
to market products and services with similar feadst.

We may become subject to claims from ouplegrees or third parties who assert that softwackather forms of intellectual property that
we use in delivering services and solutions todhients infringe upon intellectual property riglaissuch employees or third parties. Our
employees develop some of the software and otmersfof intellectual property that we use to provide services and solutions to our clients,
but we also license technology from other vendidigur employees, vendors, or other third partieseat claims that we or our clients are
infringing on their intellectual property rightsgveould incur substantial costs to defend thosensldf any of these infringement claims are
ultimately successful, we could be required to eesdling or using products or services that inotafe the challenged software or technology,
obtain a license or additional licenses from ouplkayees, vendors, or other third parties, or regtesur products and services that rely on the
challenged software or technology.

We attempt to protect our trade secreteriigring into confidentiality and intellectual pesty assignment agreements with third parties,
our employees and consultants. However, these mgrgs can be breached and, if they are, there widyenan adequate remedy available to
us. In addition, others may independently discawgrtrade secrets and proprietary information anslich cases we could not assert any trade
secret rights against such party. Enforcing a clhiat a party illegally obtained and is using agade secret is difficult, expensive and time
consuming, and the outcome is unpredictable. lareeunable to protect our intellectual property, @ampetitors could market services or
products similar to our services and products, tisiculd reduce demand for our offerings. Any litiga to enforce our intellectual property
rights, protect our trade secrets or determinev/#tlieity and scope of the proprietary rights ofethcould result in substantial costs and
diversion of resources, with no assurance of siscces

If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal controls, we may not be able to accurately retpmur financial results or prevent fraud

Effective internal controls are necessarnyus to provide reliable financial reports. If s@nnot provide reliable financial reports, our
operating results could be misstated, our reputatiay be
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harmed and the trading price of our stock coulddgatively affected. Our management has conclusEdtiere are no material weaknesses in
our internal controls over financial reporting december 27, 2009. However, there can be no asserthat our controls over financial
processes and reporting will be effective in theifel or that additional material weaknesses orifsggimt deficiencies in our internal controls
will not be discovered in the future. Any failueremediate any future material weaknesses or imgaié required new or improved controls
difficulties encountered in their implementatioouéd harm our operating results, cause us todaihéet our reporting obligations or result in
material misstatements in our financial statementsther public disclosures. Inferior internal cotg could also cause investors to lose
confidence in our reported financial informatiorhieh could have a negative effect on the tradirnigepof our stock. In addition, from time to
time we acquire businesses which could have limitédstructure and systems of internal controls.

Our stock price may be volatile, which may resuitlawsuits against us and our officers and direcsor

The stock market in general and the stoep of government services companies in partichive experienced volatility that has often
been unrelated to or disproportionate to the opeyaterformance of those companies. The markeemiour common stock has fluctuated in
the past and is likely to fluctuate in the futufeactors which could have a significant impact aanarket price of our common stock include,
but are not limited to, the following:

. quarterly variations in operating results;

. announcements of new services by us or our coropsi

. the gain or loss of significant custome

. changes in analysts' earnings estimates;

. rumors or dissemination of false information;

. pricing pressures

. short selling of our common stoc

. impact of litigation and government inquiries;

. general conditions in the market;

. political and/or military events associated withremt worldwide conflicts; an
. events affecting other companies that investorsnde@mmparable to us.

Companies that have experienced volaiititthe market price of their stock have frequebtien the subject of securities class action
litigation. We and certain of our current and forro#ficers and directors have been named defendiatass action and derivative lawsuits.
These matters and any other securities class ditgation and derivative lawsuits in which we miag involved could result in substantial
costs to us and a diversion of our managemengstaih and resources, which could materially haomfimancial condition and results of
operations.

Our charter documents and Delaware law may detetgudial acquirers and may depress our stock price.

Certain provisions of our charter documemd Delaware law, as well as certain agreementsawe with our executives, could make it
substantially more difficult for a third party toguire control of us. These provisions include:

. authorizing the board of directors to issue pref@gistock;

. prohibiting cumulative voting in the election ofelitors;
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. prohibiting stockholder action by written consent;

. establishing advance notice requirements for notising for election to our board of directors or fwoposing matters that c.
be acted on by stockholders at meetings of oukktiders;

. Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation,baich prohibits us from engaging in a businegsalzimation with an
interested stockholder unless specific conditioesnaet; and

. a number of our executives have agreements withaientitle them to payments in certain circumsgarfollowing a change in
control.

We have a stockholder rights plan which may disagearcertain types of transactions involving anaau potential change in control and may
limit our stockholders' ability to approve transans that they deem to be in their best interéstsa result, these provisions may depress our
stock price.

We have incurred and may continue to incur goodwithpairment charges in our reporting entities whiatould harm our profitability.

A significant portion of our net assets efrom goodwill and other intangible assets. Inoadance withFASB ASC Topic 350
Intangible—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350)e periodically review the carrying values of omogdwill to determine whether such carrying
values exceed the fair market value. Our acquicedp@nies are subject to annual review for goodwmilairment. If impairment testing
indicates that the carrying value of a reporting arceeds its fair value, the goodwill of the rep@ unit is deemed impaired. Accordingly, an
impairment charge would be recognized for that répg unit in the period identified.

In 2008, as a result of our annual review recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $106iion related to our Kratos Government
Solutions (KGS) segment, to reflect the decliningrket and economic conditions through DecembeR@88. In the beginning of 2009, we
performed another impairment test for goodwill @z@rdance witlTopic 350as of February 28, 2009. The test indicated ttebtiok value for
the KGS segment exceeded the fair values of thimésses and resulted in our recording a chargbnot®41.3 million in that segment for the
impairment of goodwill. The impairment charge waisnarily driven by adverse equity market conditidhat caused a decrease in current
market multiples and our average stock price @ebfuary 28, 2009, compared with the test perforagedf December 28, 2008. Future
reviews could result in further impairment chargekich could have a significant effect on our fineah results.

The commercial business arena in which we operags elatively low barriers to entry and increasedngpetition could result in margin
erosion, which would make profitability even mordfttult to sustain.

Other than the technical skills requiredim commercial business, the barriers to entthimarea are relatively low. We do not have any
intellectual property rights in this segment of business to protect our methods, and businedsugtanosts do not pose a significant barrier to
entry. The success of our commercial businessgsrient on our employees, customer relations andubcessful performance of our
services. If we face increased competition as altre§ new entrants in our markets, we could exgrere reduced operating margins and loss of
market share and brand recognition.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Iltem 2. Properties

Our principal executive offices for all lnisss segments are located in approximately 9360@re feet of office space in San Diego,
California. The lease for such space expires inl&Rm10. In
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anticipation of the expiration of this lease, ind@mber 2009, we executed a sublease agreememipianxémately 34,000 square feet of office
space beginning on May 1, 2010, and expiring orte®eper 30, 2018. Other corporate resource offioesomated in the following locations:
Washington, D.C.; Marietta, Georgia; Newport, Dedagy Houston, Texas; Dayton, Ohio; Huntsville, Alata; Alexandria, Virginia; and
Indianapolis, Indiana. We also lease office spagarovide local support services to our customergrious regions throughout the United
States. The leases on these spaces expire atwvérims through August 2016. We continually evauatr current and future space capacity in
relation to current and projected future staffiagdls. We believe that our existing facilities aniable and adequate to meet our current
business requirements.

ltem 3. Legal Proceedings
IPO Securities Litigation

Beginning in June 2001, the Company anthteof its officers and directors were named dsmigants in several parallel class action
shareholder complaints filed in the United Statéstriat Court for the Southern District of New Ygnkow consolidated under the caption, In re
Wireless Facilities, Inc. Initial Public OfferingeBurities Litigation, Case 01-CV-4779. In the amemhdomplaint, the plaintiffs allege that the
Company, certain of its officers and directors, #relunderwriters of the Company's initial publftedang (IPO) violated section 11 of the
Securities Act of 1933 and section 10(b) of theusiies Exchange Act of 1934 based on allegatibas the Company's registration statement
and prospectus failed to disclose material fagianging the compensation to be received by, andttek allocation practices of, the IPO
underwriters. The plaintiffs seek unspecified mangtlamages and other relief. Similar complaintseviided in the same court against
hundreds of other public companies (Issuers) tbatlacted IPOs of their common stock in the late05%nd 2000. These complaints have
been consolidated into an action captioned Init@lfPublic Offering Securities Litigation, 21 M@ (the IPO Cases).

In June 2004, the Issuers (including then@any) executed a partial settlement agreementthétiplaintiffs that would have, among other
things, resulted in the dismissal with prejudicalbtlaims against the Issuers and their offi@erd directors and the assignment of certain
potential Issuer claims to the plaintiffs. On Fedrgul5, 2005, the district court issued a decisienifying a class action for settlement purpc
and granting preliminary approval of the settlermirtiject to modification of certain bar orders eomplated by the settlement. On August 31,
2005, the court reaffirmed class certification luf settlement class and preliminary approval oftbdified settlement in a comprehensive
Order. On February 24, 2006, the court dismisdéeghtion filed against certain underwriters in ceation with certain claims to be assigned
under the settlement. On April 24, 2006, the distourt held a Final Fairness Hearing to determihether to grant final approval of the
settlement, and the court reserved decision atithat While the partial settlement was pendingrapgl, the plaintiffs continued to litigate
against the underwriter defendants. The distriaticdirected that the litigation proceed withinwnber of "focus cases" rather than all of the
310 cases that had been consolidated. The Compasgds not one of these focus cases. On Oct@8h@004, the district court certified the
focus cases as class actions. The underwriter dafies appealed that ruling and on December 5, 2886econd Circuit Court of Appeals
reversed the district court's class certificatiecidion. On April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit dernidaintiffs' rehearing petition, but clarified
that the plaintiffs could seek to certify a momaitied class in the district court. In light of t8Becond Circuit opinion, liaison counsel for all
issuer defendants, including the Company, infortheddistrict court that the settlement could noaipproved because the defined settlement
class, like the litigation class, could not be ified. On June 24, 2007, the district court enteardrder terminating the proposed settlement.

Plaintiffs filed second consolidated ameahdemplaints in the six focus cases on August 0872and, on September 27, 2007, again
moved for class certification. On November 12, 20®ftain of the
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defendants in the focus cases moved to dismissettend consolidated amended class action compl@ntMarch 26, 2008, the district court
denied the motions to dismiss except as to sedtlotlaims raised by those plaintiffs who sold ttseicurities for a price in excess of the initial
offering price and those who purchased outsidgtheiously certified class period. The motion ftass certification was withdrawn without
prejudice on October 10, 2008. On April 2, 2008tipulation and agreement of settlement among ldiatjifs, issuer defendants and
underwriter defendants was submitted to the Caurpfeliminary approval. The Court granted the igiéfis’ motion for preliminary approval
and preliminarily certified the settlement claseaslune 10, 2009. The settlement fairness hearasgheld on September 10, 2009. On
October 6, 2009, the Court entered an opinion grgriinal approval to the settlement and directiingt the Clerk of the Court close the IPO
Cases. Notices of appeal of this decision have blesgh Due to the inherent uncertainties of litiga and because the settlement remains
subject to appeal, the ultimate outcome of theen&tuncertain.

2004 and 2007 Derivative Securities Litigation

In August 2004, following the Company's anncement on August 4, 2004 that it intended ttatests financial statements for the fiscal
years ended December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and #2@98o0mpany and certain of its current and foraficers and directors were named
defendants (Defendants) in several securities aetssn lawsuits filed in the United States Didt@ourt for the Southern District of Californ
These actions were filed on behalf of those whalpased, or otherwise acquired, the Company's constoai between April 26, 2000 and
August 4, 2004. The lawsuits generally alleged, thating that time period, Defendants made falskraisleading statements to the investing
public about the Company's business and finanegllts, causing its stock to trade at artificiatiffated levels. Based on these allegations, the
lawsuits alleged that Defendants violated the SeesfExchange Act of 1934, and the plaintiffs dotugnspecified damages. On January 13,
2009, following a motion by the parties, the Carented final approval of the settlement of thdaéns, issued its final judgment on the
matter, and entered an order dismissing the cabepngjudice.

In 2004, two derivative lawsuits were filledthe United States District Court for the SouthBistrict of California against certain of the
Company's current and former officers and directBeglicini v. Wireless Facilities, Inc., Case 04®83; and Roth v. Wireless Facilities, Inc.,
Case 04CV1810. These actions were consolidatediisbogle action in In re Wireless Facilities, IDerivative Litigation, Lead Case No
04CV1663-JAH. These lawsuits contain factual alliege that are substantially similar to those miadiae class action lawsuits, but the
plaintiffs in these lawsuits assert claims for lofeaf fiduciary duty, gross mismanagement, abusmnfrol, waste of corporate assets, viola
of Sarbanes Oxley Act section 304, unjust enrichtraed insider trading. The plaintiffs in these laits seek unspecified damages and
equitable and/or injunctive relief. The lead pléfrfiled a consolidated complaint on March 21, 30®n May 3, 2005, the defendants filed
motions to dismiss this action, to stay this acflending the resolution of the consolidated norivdéive securities case pending in the
Southern District of California, and to dismiss ttemplaint against certain non-California residgefiendants. Pursuant to a request by the
court, the defendants' motions were withdrawn withgrejudice pending a decision on defendants'ondt dismiss the complaint against the
non-California resident defendants. On March 2@72@he court ruled that it lacked personal judgdin over five of the six non-California
defendants and dismissed them from the federalatére complaint. On March 27, 2007, plaintiffefil an amended derivative complaint
setting forth all of the same allegations from dhigiinal complaint and adding allegations regardimg Company's stock option granting
practices. The amended complaint names all of tigénal defendants (including those dismissed &mklof jurisdiction) as well as nine new
defendants. On July 2, 2007, the non-Californiégdezg defendants moved to dismiss the complaintafdk of personal jurisdiction. On
October 17, 2007, the court took the motion undénsssion without oral argument. On February 2®8@he court again ruled that it lacked
personal jurisdiction over five of the six non-Gathia
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defendants and dismissed them from the amendedafatkrivative complaint. Plaintiffs subsequentlgvad the court for certification and
entry of final judgment of the court's order dissiig) the non-residents for lack of personal judgdn so that the plaintiffs may seek
immediate appellate review of the matter. On J@ly2D08, the court granted plaintiffs' motion fertification, which was not opposed by
defendants. On August 12, 2008, the plaintiffifigenotice of appeal of the personal jurisdicticoraler. In light of the proposed settlement of
all derivative litigation, discussed below, the ddwas stayed all other matters except as necegsdgcument and consummate the proposed
settlement, pending final approval of the proposettiement. Similarly, the appellate court hasestlagll matters related to plaintiffs’ notice of
appeal of the personal jurisdictional order pendlisgrict court approval of the proposed settlement

In August and September 2004, two virtuadntical derivative lawsuits were filed in Califda Superior Court for San Diego County
against certain of the Company's current and fowffezers and directors. These actions containuicallegations similar to those of the
federal lawsuits, but the plaintiffs in these casesert claims for violations of California's insidrading laws, breaches of fiduciary duty, abuse
of control, gross mismanagement, waste of corp@sdets and unjust enrichment. The plaintiffs @s¢éhactions seek unspecified damages,
equitable and/or injunctive relief and disgorgemafrall profits, benefits and other compensatiotaoted by defendants. These lawsuits have
been consolidated into one actioir+e Wireless Facilities, Inc. Derivative Litigati, California Superior Court, San Diego Countyadl€ast
GIC 834253. The plaintiffs filed a Consolidated &teolder Derivative Complaint on October 14, 20Ddis action has been stayed pending a
decision in federal court on a motion to dismissféderal derivative lawsuit. In October 2009, plagties notified the Court of the status of the
federal action and stipulated to stay the matteafoadditional six months. The Court subsequegriyted the parties' stipulation and stay
request and ordered the parties to file an updsteeds report in April 2010.

In October 2009, following a voluntarily diation and subsequent negotiations related tofalie above-described derivative litigation,
the parties reached an agreement in principlette sl claims in the federal and state derivatitigation. The district court granted the part
joint motion for preliminary approval of their proped settlement in January 2010 and will hold aihgan March 29, 2010 to determi
whether the proposed settlement should be apprasdéidal and whether the court should enter a fudgment order dismissing the matter
with prejudice. The details of the settlement aieferth in the settlement papers filed with thertoThere is no guarantee, however, that the
settlement ultimately will be approved by the courtaddition, defendants continue to believe tiaintiffs’ allegations lack merit and intenc
vigorously defend all claims asserted if the setdat is not approved as final and the case dishissis impossible at this time to assess
whether or not the outcome of these proceedingshaile a material adverse effect on the Company.

The Company has recorded an accrual fonéngent liability associated with the legal predigs related to the derivative actions of
$0.1 million based on the Company's estimate optitential amount it would have to pay in relatiorthe settlement of these derivative
lawsuits. The Company deposited the $0.1 millido escrow with the court in January 2010. The Camxpects the majority of any
additional costs incurred in connection with thilement of these lawsuits to be paid by its Dioestand Officers' liability insurer(s).

Other Litigation and Government Reviews and Investjations

In addition to the foregoing matters, frime to time, the Company may become involved ifoees claims, lawsuits and legal
proceedings that arise in the ordinary course sfrtmss. However, litigation is subject to inheremtertainties, and an adverse result in the:
other matters may arise from time to time that fmaym the Company's business. The Company is ciymeoit aware of any such legal
proceedings or claims that it believes will havelividually or in the aggregate, a material advef§ect on our business, financial condition,
operating results or cash flows.
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PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Skbolder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities
Market Information

Our Common Stock is listed on the NASDAQ®I&I Select Market and has traded under the sytfIaDS" since September 17, 2007.
Our common stock traded under the symbol "WFIItrfrNovember 5, 1999 through September 14, 2007.

The following table sets forth the high dog sales prices for our Common Stock for theqmisiindicated, as reported by NASDAQ. S
guotation represents inter-dealer prices withotailrenarkup, markdown or commission and may notsearily represent actual transactions.

High Low

Year Ended December 27, 20I

Fourth Quarte $ 11.9C $ 6.01

Third Quartel $ 92C $ 6.6C

Second Quarte $ 94C $ 6.5¢C

First Quarte $ 14.0C $ 5.8C
Year Ended December 28, 20t

Fourth Quarte $ 20.4C $ 9.0C

Third Quartel $ 21.4C $ 13.3(

Second Quarte $ 20.5C $ 15.7C

First Quartel $ 23.5( $ 15.0C
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On March 5, 2010 the last sale price of@ammon Stock as reported by NASDAQ was $14.0Gpare. On March 5, 2010, there were
372 shareholders of record of our Common Stock.

We have not declared any cash dividendsediecoming a public company. We currently intencetain any future earnings to finance
growth and development of the business and, thexeflm not anticipate paying any cash dividendténforeseeable future. In addition, our
credit facility restricts our ability to pay dividds. Any future determination to pay cash dividewdkbe at the discretion of our Board and \
be dependent upon the future financial conditiesults of operations, capital requirements, germrsihess conditions and other relevant
factors as determined by our Board.

Performance Graph

The following performance graph is a congar of the five year cumulative stockholder retamour common stock against the
cumulative total return of the NASDAQ Compositeérgdand a peer group composed of the Russell 2@k $rdex and ATS Corporation,
Dynamic Research Corporation, Stanley, Inc., VSEpGa@tion, and WPCS International, Inc. for theiggicommencing December 31, 2004
and ending December 27, 2009. The performance grsglmes an initial investment of $100 in our comistock and in each of the indices
and peer group. The comparison also assumes thiwidends are reinvested and all returns are stackp weighted. The historical
information set forth below is not necessarily aative of future performance.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.

$180+
5160+
5140+

$1204

5401

F204

1204 1205 12e 1207 1208 1209

—8B— Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc — A — Russell 2000

== & - - NASDAQ Composite —&— Peer Group

* $100 invested on 12/31/04 in stock or index, inzlgdeinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year endireg@&nber 31

* The chart reflects the-for-10 reverse stock split of Kratos common stock opt&aber 10, 200¢
Copyright© 2009 S&P, a division of The M@&®rHill Companies Inc. All rights reserved.

The performance graph above and relatedatexbeing furnished solely to accompany this AghiiReport on Form 10-K pursuant to
Item 201(e) of Regulation S-K, and are not beitegffor purposes of Section 18 of the Securitieshaxge Act of 1934, as amended, and are
not to be incorporated by reference into any filbigurs, whether made before or after the datedferegardless of any general incorporation
language in such filing.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated finahciata should be read in conjunction with our @tidated Financial Statements and related
notes thereto and with "Management's Discussionfaradlysis of Financial Condition and Results of @i®ns" which are incorporated in
Item 7 or included elsewhere in this Report on F&f#. Our historical results are not necessarily iatliee of operating results to be expec
in the future.

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 28, December 27,
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
(All amounts except per share data in millions)

Consolidated Statemer
of Operations
Financial Data

Revenue! $ 130.7 $ 138.2 $ 180.7 $ 286.2 $ 334.
Gross profit 29.¢ 26.2 29.7 58.2 69.8
Loss from continuing

operations (0.9 (25.9 (23.¢ (93.29) (27.0
Provision (benefit) fo

income taxe! (1.8 14.5 1.3 (0.7) 1.C
Income (loss) fron

continuing operatior 1.2 (41.2) (27.2) (204.0 (38.9)

Income (loss) from

discontinued

operations 04 (16.7) (13.¢) (7.2 3.2
Net income (loss $ 1€ $ (57.9 $ (40.9) $ (111.0) $ (41.5)
Income (loss) fron

continuing operation:

per common shait
Basic $ 0.1€ $ (5.56¢) $ (3.67) $ (11.19) $ (2.76)
Diluted $ 0.1€ $ (5.56) $ (3.67) $ (11.1¢9) $ (2.76)
Income (loss) fron

discontinued

operations per

common shar
Basic $ 0.0e $ (2.2¢) $ 1.84) $ 0.77) $ (0.29)
Diluted $ 0.0¢ $ (2.2¢) $ (1.84) $ 0.77) $ (0.29)
Net income (loss) pe

common shar

Basic $ 0.2: $ (7.82) $ (551 $ (1199 $ (2.99)

Diluted $ 02z $ (782 $ (550 $  (11.99 $ (2.99

Weighted average

shares

Basic 74 74 74 9.3 13.€

Diluted 74 74 74 9.3 13.€
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 28, December 27,

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

(All amounts in millions)
Consolidated Balance

Sheet Data
Cash and cash

equivalents $ 74 $ 56 $ 89 §$ 37 $ 9.¢
Working capital 67.4 (3.9 23.4 35.C 37.1
Total asset 342.( 337.7 335.2 312.¢ 241.¢
Shor-term debi 0.7 51.4 2.7 6.1 4.7
Long-term debi — — 74.C 76.¢ 51.€
Total stockholders'

equity $ 229.7 $ 187.1 $ 167.2 $ 146.¢ $ 124.¢
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

This report contains forward-looking statementse3éstatements relate to future events or our éuimancial performance. In some
cases, you can identify forward-looking statemégtterminology such as "may,” "will," "should,” '[gect,” "plan,” "anticipate,” "believe,"
"estimate," "predict,” "potential” or "continue,he negative of such terms or other comparable t@otogy. These statements are only
predictions. Actual events or results may diffetemially. Factors that may cause our results tdefifinclude, but are not limited to: changes
the scope or timing of our projects; changes obegks in spending by the U.S. Department of Defetseh could cause delays or
cancellations of key government contracts; thertgnrescheduling or cancellation of significant tmmer contracts and agreements, or
consolidation by or the loss of key customersyfaito successfully consummate acquisitions ognate acquired operations; failure to
establish and maintain important relationships wgttwvernment entities and agencies and other govenhigontractors could limit our ability
to bid successfully for new business; and compatiti the marketplace which could reduce revenuespofit margins.

Although we believe that the expectations reflectetle forward- looking statements are reasonate cannot guarantee future results,
levels of activity, performance or achievementsrédweer, neither we, nor any other person, assurapassibility for the accuracy and
completeness of the forward- looking statementsal@nder no obligation to update any of the fardvdooking statements after the filing of
our Annual Report on Form 10-K to conform suchestegnts to actual results or to changes in our etgtiens.

Certain of the information set forth herein, incllugl costs and expenses that exclude the impatbcif-based compensation expense,
amortization expense of purchased intangibles 6872 2008 and 2009, and the stock option investgatnd related costs in 2007 and
recovery of a portion of these costs in 2008, nagdnsidered non-GAAP financial measures. We leetldg information is useful to investors
because it provides a basis for measuring the dpeggerformance of our business and our cash flaxejuding the effect of stock-based
compensation expense that would normally be induléhe most directly comparable measures caledand presented in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)r @anagement uses these non-GAAP financial meaaloeg with the most directly
comparable GAAP financial measures in evaluatingaperating performance, capital resources and céew. NonGAAP financial measur
should not be considered in isolation from, or auastitute for, financial information presenteccmmpliance with GAAP, and non-financial
measures we report may not be comparable to silypitdled amounts reported by other companies.

The following discussion should be read in conjiomctvith our audited Consolidated Financial Statentseand the related notes and
other financial information appearing elsewherehis Report and other reports and filings made wlith Securities and Exchange
Commission. Readers are also urged to carefulljekeand consider the various disclosures made byhish attempt to advise interested
parties of the factors which affect our businessluding without limitation the disclosures madelenthe caption "Management's Discuss
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©glerations," and ltem 1A—Risk Factors.

Overview

We are an innovative provider of missioitical engineering, information technology (IT) gees and warfighter solutions. We work
primarily for the U.S. government and federal goweent agencies, but we also perform work for sdatélocal agencies and commercial
customers. Our principal services are relatedubabe not limited to, Command, Control, Communaat, Computing, Combat Systems,
Intelligence, Surveillance and Reconnaissance (Rpl®eapons systems lifecycle support and sustaitimalitary weapon range operations
and technical services; missile, rocket and weaggstem test and evaluation; missile and rockesiornislaunch services; public safety,
security and surveillance systems; modeling andisition; unmanned aerial vehicle (UAV) products and
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technology; and advanced network engineering afodniration technology services. We offer our custmrsmlutions and expertise to support
their mission-critical needs by leveraging ourIskdicross our core service areas.

We derive a substantial portion of our rexefrom contracts performed for federal governnagmncies, including the U.S. Departmer
Defense (DoD), with the majority of our revenuereutly generated from the delivery of mission-catiwarfighter solutions, advanced
engineering services, system integration and systestainment services to defense and other nonddalXxivilian government agencies. We
believe our diversified and stable client baseargjrclient relationships, broad array of contragttieles, considerable employee base posse
government security clearances, extensive listst performance qualifications, and significant agament and operational capabilities
position us for continued growth.

Prior to 2008, we were also an indepengemtider of outsourced engineering and network @gpknt services, security systems
engineering and integration services and othemieahservices for the wireless communications sty the U.S. government and enterprise
customers. In 2006 and 2007, we undertook a tramsfiion strategy whereby we divested our commerviia@less-related businesses and
chose to pursue business with the federal goverfjmpemarily the DoD, through strategic acquisiio®n September 12, 2007, we changed
our name from Wireless Facilities, Inc. to Kratosf@nse & Security Solutions, Inc. Our new nameerf our revised focus as a defense
contractor and security systems integrator forf¢igieral government and for state and local agenkieonnection with our name change, we
changed our NASDAQ Global Market trading symbolk@ OS".

Current Reporting Segments

We operate in two principal business sedméfratos Government Solutions (KGS) and Publife§a& Security (PSS). We organize our
business segments based on the nature of theegffered. Transactions between segments areallgneegotiated and accounted for under
terms and conditions similar to other governmert @mmercial contracts and these intercompanydrdimss are eliminated in consolidation.
The Consolidated Financial Statements in this AhRegoort are presented in a manner consistentauttoperating structure. For additional
information regarding our operating segments, sete N3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemdfrom a customer and solutions
perspective, we view our business as an integrakede, leveraging skills and assets wherever plessib

Kratos Government Solutions Segment (KGS)

Our Kratos Government Solutions segmentiges engineering, information technology and técdirservices to federal, state, and local
government agencies, but primarily the DoD. Ourkniacludes weapon systems lifecycle support andresibn; C5ISR; military range
operations and technical services; missile, rockad, weapon systems test and evaluation; missiorchaservices; public safety and security
services; advanced network engineering and infaamaechnology services; and public safety, segunitd surveillance systems integration.
Our KGS segment also focuses on the homeland sgowairket with products and services aimed at stpppfirst responders.

Public Safety & Security Segment (PSS)

Our Public Safety & Security segment pregidystem design, deployment, integration, momigoaind support services for public safety,
security and surveillance networks for state amdllgovernments and commercial customers. Pulfitysand security networks have been
traditionally segregated into systems such as ydia&®, access control, video surveillance, anghézature control and fire and life safety. We
provide services that combine such systems and iotiegrated solutions
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on both Ethernet and IP based platforms. We alfy sblutions that combine voice, data, electrasicurity and building automation systems
with fixed or wireless connectivity solutions. Ctarget markets are healthcare, government, daterseifarge scale industrial and
manufacturing, correctional facilities, educatiodaports and entertainment. Our commitments teetinearkets and our ability to provide
feature-rich, cost-effective solutions have allowsdo become one of the larger independent integréor these types of systems. We
maintain regional office locations, comprised oftts Mid-Atlantic, Kratos Southeast, and KratostBaest.

On June 24, 2009, as a result of the coatiroperating losses in the Southeast divisioruoPaiblic Safety & Security segment, our Bc
of Directors approved a plan to sell and disposth@fSoutheast division. In accordance VAKXSB ASC Topic 205 Presentation of Financial
Statementghis business unit has been classified as helddierand reported in discontinued operations. Werded a $2.0 million impairme
charge in the second quarter of 2009 related tcagement's estimate of the fair value of the busines

Recent Acquisitions

On December 31, 2007, we completed ouriaitijun of Indianapolis, Indiana headquartered Hatrek Consulting, Inc. (Haverstick) as
part of our KGS segment. Haverstick provides roeket missile test and evaluation, weapons systapsost, and professional services to the
U.S. Army, U.S. Air Force, U.S. Navy, NASA, and ettiederal, state and local agencies. Through theeks$tick acquisition, we expanded our
customer relationship within the DoD and enhanagadpoesence with the U.S. Air Force, a key growtador Haverstick.

The total purchase price for the Haversticguisition was $92.0 million, including transaaticosts incurred by us of $0.8 million. The
purchase price paid to Haverstick of $91.2 milleas paid in a combination of $70.3 million of castd common stock valued at $19.4 mill
based on 748,000 shares at a price of $26.00 pee,dhe average closing price of Kratos shareswimon stock for the two days prior to,
including, and the two days subsequent to the palihouncement of the acquisition on November 8728nd a working capital adjustmen
$1.5 million. We held back $8.6 million, $1.2 milii in cash and $7.4 million in stock, to secure aegative working capital adjustments
required by the merger agreement and our indemigitys. The holdback consideration, which accrugdrest in accordance with the terms of
the agreement until paid, was to be initially rekshon the 12th month and 21st month after theafdtes acquisition. As a result of a claims
notice we filed in relation to an indemnity clainiigh could have exceeded the amount of the holdbackideration payable due to
Haverstick, we did not make the December 2008 faallipayment. In March 2009, our indemnity claimiagHaverstick was resolved and
the December holdback payment of $4.3 million waisl pThe final holdback payment of $4.3 million waade in October 2009.

In addition to the indemnity holdback, tigreement also called for a post closing workingtehdadjustment. In February 2008, we and
Haverstick agreed on the working capital calcutatalled for in the agreement. The calculation lteduin a working capital adjustment due to
Haverstick in an amount of $1.5 million. The woricapital adjustment was paid in April 2008 with &8l shares of common stock valued at
$1.3 million and cash of $0.2 million. To fund thequisition, we secured a new credit facility ob&Bmillion arranged by KeyBanc Capital
Markets. The credit facility, which included a $2%nillion line of credit and $60.0 million in ternotes, replaced a previous credit facility,
which had an outstanding principal balance of $6ildlon on December 31, 2007. Until the date onathihe shares of stock issued to
Haverstick became saleable interest accrued ovatlie of the closing stock at a floating rate o-enonth LIBOR plus four percent (4%) per
annum. The shares became saleable on June 30a2008,769 additional shares were issued in setisfaof the accrued interest.
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On June 28, 2008, we completed our merdar8¥ S, a San Diego-based company. The mergemeerldaour position as a premier mid-
tier federal, state and local government contraicttine United States in the areas of C4ISR, |Tises and public safety and homeland sec
solutions. The merger created a broad, complemestdrof business offerings, and positions us tivelecapabilities to a wider spectrum of
customers.

We issued 2.5 million shares to SYS shddae in the acquisition, for a total purchase @€ $55.9 million including direct transaction
costs of $2.4 million. Each share of SYS commonglsteas converted into the right to receive 0.1288&res of Kratos common stock. The
value of the Kratos common stock issued in the a@tpn was derived from the number of shares d@itils common stock issued, or
2.5 million, at a price of $20.22 per share, therage closing price of Kratos shares of commorkdtarcthe two days prior to, including, and
the two days subsequent to the public announceaig¢hé acquisition on February 21, 2008. Followihg closing of the acquisition, we
implemented a plan to restructure and/or exit geftasiness activities of SYS. The plan includesbmprehensive assessment of personnel,
relocation of personnel, facility consolidation amdt strategies for certain lines of business. pla@ provided for approximately $2.0 million
of restructuring costs associated with personmal,alditional costs of $0.5 million for facilitieensolidation. The restructuring costs were
primarily associated with businesses subsequeoltiyand are accounted for in discontinued operatinrthe accompanying Consolidated
Financial Statements. As of December 27, 2009,cgpiately $1.6 million of the restructuring and ifai@es consolidation costs have been
paid.

In addition, we identified three businesgsiof SYS that were not core to our businesgesfsaand/or were dilutive to profitability. We
completed the sale of these businesses in thafiester of 2009 for an aggregate cash considerafiapproximately $0.4 million. We expect
the divestiture of these businesses to slightlycedevenues going forward, and increase profitatsihd cash flow. These businesses have
been classified as discontinued operations in amnsGlidated Financial Statements for each of tlasym the three year period ended
December 27, 2009.

On December 24, 2008 we acquired Hunts\lllabama based Digital Fusion, Inc. (DFI). DFI yides C4ISR and technical engineering
services, Unmanned Aerial Vehicle (UAV) products &achnology and has significant engineering, modeind simulation capabilities. The
acquisition of DFI provides us with new customand an expanded contract vehicle portfolio, in dddito expanding the range of service
offerings to our existing customers. Principal oust¢rs of DFI include the Army Aviation and MissResearch, Development and Engineering
Center (AMRDEC), Army Space and Missile Defense @mnd/Army Forces Strategic Command (ARSTRAT), NABArshall Space Flight
Center, and certain classified customers.

The total stock for stock transaction wakied at approximately $37.0 million, includingrisaction costs of $0.9 million. We issued
2.3 million shares to DFI shareholders and assuméstanding DFI options, which resulted in the agstion of options to acquire
approximately 1.0 million Kratos shares. The vadfi¢he purchase price related to the common stsikeid was derived from the number of
shares of Kratos common stock issued of 2.3 milloased on 12.8 million shares of DFI common stmgktanding and the exchange ratio of
0.17933 for each DFI share, at a price of $12.%#Gpare, the average closing price of Kratos shafreemmon stock for the two days prior to,
including, and the two days subsequent to the painouncement of the merger on November 24, 28 fair value of the options assumed
that were allocated to goodwill based upon the IBlacholes pricing model was $7.0 million. The feafue of unvested options which are
related to future service will be expensed as #neice is performed.
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Divestiture of Wireless Network Business

On December 28, 2006, our Board approveldmto divest portions of our business whereaaitmass had not been achieved. This plan
involved the divestiture of our European, Middlestean, and African (EMEA) operations and our rermgjrSouth American operations. The
EMEA operations were sold to LCC International,.IicCC) on March 9, 2007 for $4.0 million in ca§t8.3 million of which was received on
that date. We also received approximately $1.8aniffrom our EMEA operations prior and subsequerihe closing date as payment on
outstanding intercompany debt. The balance of hé fillion sales price was withheld as securitytf@ satisfaction of certain
indemnification obligations and was payable on M&3&, 2008. Based upon our review of the finanstialements of the buyer, as of
December 31, 2007, we had concern about theityabilipay this holdback, due to their availablaiidity. We recorded a reserve of
$0.7 million for this receivable. In May 2008, waached an agreement with LCC for the payment o$€hé million holdback amount, under
which LCC agreed to pay the outstanding balan&®it million increments each month commencing BMhe&008. We have not yet received
any payments due according to the agreement. Wilgiletend to vigorously pursue collection of thecamts, there is a substantial likelihood
that we will not receive payment of the amount dadight of LCC's apparent available liquidity.

On April 20, 2007, we entered into an Egtirchase Agreement to sell our wholly-owned slibsy WFI de Brazil Techlogia en
Telecommunications LTDA to Strategic Project Seegid_LC (SPS). The consideration included the aptiom of substantially all outstandi
liabilities of WFI Brazil, nominal cash considerat, and additional earodt consideration based on 25% of net receivaldbsated subseque
to the closing date. With respect to the additiaraah-out consideration, we have not received andlod anticipate receiving any payments.

On May 29, 2007, we entered into an Assetiitase Agreement with LCC International, Inc.tfoe sale of all of the assets used in the
conduct of the operation of our engineering ses/lmasiness of our Wireless Network Services segthanprovided engineering services to
the non-government wireless communications industtiie United States, for aggregate consideraifdg6.0 million. LCC delivered a
subordinated promissory note for the principal antai $21.6 million (the Subordinated Promissoryt®ppaid $17.0 million at closing and
paid final working capital adjustments of $2.4 ioitl through an amendment to the Subordinated PeamjisdNote. We retained an estimated
$5.0 million in net working capital. The transactiwas completed on June 4, 2007. On July 5, 206%o0Md the $21.6 million Subordinated
Promissory Note to Silver Point Capital, L.P. (8iWoint) in a transaction arranged by KeyBanc t@aplarkets ("KeyBanc"). We received
approximately $19.6 million in net cash proceedflecting a discount from par value of less thae fbercent and aggregate transaction fees of
approximately $1.0 million, which includes a $0.8lion fee to KeyBanc, an affiliate of our lend€&n January 30, 2008, we received net
proceeds of approximately $2.3 million on the wogkcapital adjustment from Silver Point, net ofdal$million discount from par value. We
did not provide any guaranty for LCC's paymentgdgiions under the note.

On July 7, 2007, we entered into a defiritigreement with an affiliate of Platinum Equitysell our deployment services business of our
Wireless Network Services segment for total comrsitiien payable of $24.0 million, including $18.0llion in cash at closing (subject to typi
post closing working capital adjustments) and agregate $6.0 million in a three-year earn-out ayesment. The transaction closed on July 24,
2007. As a result of these engineering and deployservices divestitures in 2007, the Wireless NekvServices segment has been classified
as a discontinued operation in this Annual Repartfl prior years presented in accordance WASB ASC Topic 205 Presentation of
Financial Statement:

On July 16, 2008, we came to an agreeméhtRlatinum Equity on a working capital adjustmeh$5.0 million. In connection with that
agreement, the earn-out arrangement was terminBedadjustment was to be paid in installmentsh wie final installment paid on August 4,
20009.
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Key Financial Statement Concep
As of December 27, 2009, we consider thieviong factors to be important in understanding fimancial statements.

Kratos Government Solutions' business #ithU.S. government and prime contractors is gégererformed under cost reimbursable,
fixed-price or time and materials contracts. Ceghbursable contracts for the government providedonbursement of costs plus the payment
of a fee. Some cost reimbursable contracts indluckntive fees that are awarded based on perforenam¢he contract. Under fixed-price
contracts, we agree to perform certain work faxed price. Under time and materials contractsaveereimbursed for labor hours at negoti
hourly billing rates and reimbursed for travel atlder direct expenses at actual costs plus apgéedral and administrative expenses. Our
Public Security and Safety contracts are primdidgd-price contracts whereby revenue is recognirmedg the percentage-of-completion
method of accounting under the provision$8SB ASC Topic 605 Revenue Recognitieor contracts offered on a time and materiald)agé
recognize revenues as services are performed.

Cost of revenues includes direct compeosaliving, travel and benefit expenses for projedated personnel, payments to third-party
subcontractors, cost of materials, project-reléedntive compensation based upon the successifigvament of certain project performance
goals, allocation of overhead costs and other tpesject-related expenses. Selling, general andirgddtrative expenses include compensation
and benefits for corporate service employees andasicosts for billable employees whose time axgkeases cannot be assigned to a project
(underutilization costs), expendable computer safénand equipment, facilities expenses and otheratipng expenses not directly related
and/or allocated to projects. General and admatistr costs include all corporate and administeafisnctions that support existing operations
and provide infrastructure to facilitate our futgm@wth. Additionally, our sales personnel and senorporate executives have, as part of their
compensation packages, periodic and annual bomagsi@sion incentives based on the attainment ofiipd@erformance goals.

We consider the following factors when deti@ing if collection of a receivable is reasonabsured: comprehensive collection history;
results of our communications with customers; tineent financial position of the customer; and télevant economic conditions in the
customer's country. If we have had no prior expeewith the customer, we review reports from wasioredit organizations to ensure that the
customer has a history of paying its creditors ieleble and effective manner. If the financiahddion of our customers were to deteriorate,
and adversely affect their financial ability to nregkayments, additional allowances would be requi#elditionally, on certain contracts
whereby we perform services for a prime/generatreator, a specified percentage of the invoiceddraccounts receivable may be retained by
the customer until we complete the project. Wequicially review all retainages for collectabilitpcirecord allowances for doubtful accounts
when deemed appropriate, based on our assessntaetagsociated risks.

We believe that our Kratos Government Sohg segment will build and expand our customeati@hships within the DoD, Department
of Homeland Security and other non-DoD state andllagencies by taking advantage of the signifiogportunities for companies with
substantial expertise in advanced engineering @fiodmation technology. We believe we will experiersontinued growth in revenues and
operating income from this operating segment. Tdra@itions of Haverstick on December 31, 2007, $vSune 28, 2008, and DFI on
December 24, 2008 resulted in the addition of dy@@0 highly skilled technical professionals andieaers with expertise in the areas of
military weapons and target range support as vedlhegets and missile operations and maintenance.
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Results of Operations
Comparison of Results for the Year Ended December& 2008 to the Year ended December 27, 2009

Revenues. Revenues by operating segment for the yearsceDdcember 28, 2008 and December 27, 2009 acdl@sd (in millions):

2008 2009 $ change % change
Kratos Government Solutions Segm $ 246.7 $ 304.: $ 57.¢ 23.2%
Public Safety & Security Segme 39.t 30.2 (9.9 (23.5%
Total revenue $ 286.2 $ 3345 $ 48.: 16.9%

Revenues increased $48.3 million from $286illion in 2008 to $334.5 million in 2009. Theciease of $57.6 million in our Kratos
Government Solutions segment was partially dudecatquisitions of DFI on December 24, 2008 and 8iYSune 28, 2008 which resulted in
an increase in revenue of $88.6 million. This imasein revenue was partially offset by reductioms @ the substantial completion of two
weapons systems contracts, the planned reductfamjaired small business set aside contract waags through work and other contract
work in the Kratos Government Solutions segmené FPhblic Safety & Security segment was negativelyacted by the current adverse
economic environment as a result of delays in ahpitprovement projects and the construction of bevidings.

As described in the section "Critical Acoting Principles and Estimates” and in the NoteSdasolidated Financial Statements, a portion
of our revenue is derived from fixed-price contsawhereby revenue is calculated using the perceragompletion method based on the ri
of total costs incurred to date compared to es@oh&tdtal costs to complete the contract. Thesenastis are reviewed monthly on a contract-by-
contract basis, and are revised periodically thnowg the life of the contract such that adjustmémisrofit resulting from revisions are made
cumulative to the date of the revision. Significar@nagement judgments and estimates, includingdtimated costs to complete projects,
which determine the project's percent complete tib@snade and used in connection with the reveac@gnized in any accounting period.
Material differences may result in the amount amdrtg of our revenue for any period if managemeakes different judgments or utilizes
different estimates. During the reporting periodstained herein, we did experience revenue andimadjustments of certain projects based
on the aforementioned factors, but the effect chsadjustments, both positive and negative, wheatuated in total were determined to be
immaterial to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cost of revenues. Cost of revenues increased $37.2 million o8%6from $228.0 million for the year ended Decen2#r2008 to
$265.2 million for the year ended December 27, 200@arily due to the increase in total revenudte crease was primarily attributable to
cost of revenues of approximately $74.5 millioratetl to the DFI and SYS acquisitions, partiallyseffby reduced costs related to the
reductions in revenues described above. Gross mdtging the year ended December 27, 2009 of 2ng¥%ased slightly from a 2008 gross
margin of 20.3%.

Selling, general and administrative expasnseSelling, general and administrative expens&{s) increased 8.0% from $48.9 million
$52.8 million for the years ended December 28, 2@ December 27, 2009, respectively. The incred$8.9 million was partially due to an
increase in costs of $7.9 million from the acqissis of DFI and SYS, offset by a decrease in cafgoand other expenses in our commercial
divisions due to the implementation of cost redarcinitiatives. Included in the selling, generatiadministrative expenses for 2008 and 2009
are amortization of purchased intangibles of $4ilian and $5.7 million, respectively. The increaseamortization year over year was
primarily a result of the DFI and SYS acquisitioAs.a percentage of revenues, selling, generabdndnistrative expenses decreased from
17.1% in 2008 to 15.8% in 2009. Excluding the intpzc
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the amortization of purchased intangibles, SG&Aanges decreased from 15.4% to 14.1% of revenu@9@@ and 2009, respectively,
reflecting the leverage on increased revenuestantrtplementation of cost reduction initiatives.

Research and development expensd®esearch and development (R&D) expenses inedasm $0.9 million for the year ended
December 28, 2008 to $1.8 million for the year enDecember 27, 2009 as a result of R&D expensesried by DFI and SYS which were
acquired on December 24, 2008 and June 28, 20§}8ectvely.

Recovery of unauthorized issuance of stptions, stock option investigation and relatedsfand litigation settlement. In 2008, we
recovered $4.5 million, through insurance reimbomsets, of costs and losses related to the stodtrojivestigation in 2007. In September
2009, we reached an agreement with the plaintifisettle the outstanding 2004 and 2007 derivatiweslits. The benefit in 2009 of
$0.2 million is a result of the reduction in outiemted accrual related to this litigation, offbgtexpenses related to government inquiries by
the Department of Justice, which was completed®92 related to our historical stock option gragtomactices.

Impairment of goodwill. In December 2008, we concluded that the detisgiexit three businesses obtained with the SY{biaition
and included with our KGS reporting segment metciiiteria to be classified as held for sale and av&riggering event undétASB ASC Topic
350 Intangibles—Goodwill and Oth#rat required a review of goodwill and intangibéesets with indefinite lives. Because the threéniess
units were never integrated into the KGS reporting, and the benefits of the acquired goodwill eveever realized by the rest of the repor
unit, the goodwill of the disposed businesses vaasadjusted based upon the relative fair valugb@businesses disposed and businesses
retained.

Because of the timing of the disposals moeetd above, the required impairment test of theSkf@odwill and intangible assets with
indefinite lives was included with our required aahimpairment test of goodwill. The annual impadmhtest for goodwill was performed
using a discounted cash flow analysis supportecbibyparative market multiples to determine thealues of our segments versus their book
values. The test as of December 28, 2008, indidatetdthe book values for the KGS segment, excly@fl (which was purchased on
December 24, 2008), exceeded the fair values sttbasinesses and resulted in our recording a asimaharge totaling $105.8 million in our
KGS segment for the impairment of goodwill.

The impairment charge is primarily drivendzlverse equity market conditions that causedceedse in market multiples and our average
stock price as of December 28, 2008, compared twé¢himpairment test performed as of December 3Q7 20 our analysis, we use the incc
approach and validate its reasonableness by coimgjdmur market capitalization based upon an averdgur stock price for a period prior to
and subsequent to the date we perform our analyisesaverage market price of our stock as of Deeer28, 2008 was $12.90 which equates
to a 45% drop in our average stock price and cparding market capitalization from December 31,20Mich had an average stock price of
$23.50. We reconcile the fair value of our repaytimits which is calculated using the income apginda our market capitalization. As a result
of this reconciliation, it was noted that investassre requiring a higher rate of return, and trenesfour discount factor which is based upon an
estimated market participant weighted average aosapital (WACC) increased 250 basis points fralvb% in our year end impairment tes
2007 compared to 14% in our year end impairmenine®008. This change was the key factor contiityuto the $105.8 million impairment
charge that we recorded in the fourth quarter @820

During the first quarter of 2009, we detared that a triggering event had occurred in acaocd withFASB ASC Topic 350 Intangibles—
Goodwill and Other This resulted in an impairment charge of $41.Boni during the first quarter of 2009. The impaé&nt charge was
primarily driven by adverse
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equity market conditions that caused a decreas®iket multiples and our average stock price d&ebfuary 28, 2009, compared with the
impairment test performed as of December 28, 2008ur analysis, we use the income approach aridatalits reasonableness by considering
our market capitalization based upon an averageio$tock price for a period prior to and subsegteethe date we performed our analysis.
The average market price of our stock as of Felprd@r 2009 was $7.80 which equates to a 39% dropiraverage stock price and
corresponding market capitalization from Decemt&r2D08 which had an average stock price of $12\89reconcile the fair value of our
reporting units which is calculated using the inecapproach to our market capitalization. As a tesuhis reconciliation, it was noted that
investors were requiring a higher rate of retund therefore, our discount factor which is basedhugn estimated market participant weighted
average cost of capital (WACC) increased 300 hasiists from 14% in our year end impairment te2008 as compared to 17% in our 2009
first quarter interim impairment test. This changgs the key factor contributing to the $41.3 milligoodwill impairment charge that we
recorded in the first quarter of 2009.

Our historical growth rates and operatieguits are not indicative of our future growth saa@d operating results as a consequence of our
transformation from a commercial wireless servigavjger to a U.S. government defense contractoe. décline in revenues on a pro forma
basis after considering recent acquisitions, whietexpected, is primarily due to the impact oftbaversion of our work as a prime contra
under certain legacy small business awards toofhetsubcontractor. This change resulted in an dwhan overall smaller portion of the entire
project as the contracts were recompeted and thmalrterm of the small business contracts werapeted. The conversion of work as a
prime to a subcontractor related to legacy smadlri®ss contracts awarded to acquired companies isncommon in the government defense
contractor industry for companies that have beguiattive. Certain of the contract awards that wegacy small business awards to busine
which we acquired may result in a reduction of rexes when these contracts are completed and retednged awarded to us as a
subcontractor rather than as a prime contractorb®lleve that the expected impact to our reventksiot be material related to this
conversion. Our projected growth rates take intes@teration this anticipated impact on small bussrewards.

Our contracts are long-term in nature ardsapported by significant backlog. Because outragts are of a long-term nature, a majority
of our receivables are with agencies within th&sUgovernment or we are a subcontractor to a custarnose receivables are with the ager
within the U.S. government, we are not subjectigaificant short-term changes in operating castvflMoreover, because of the nature of our
current business, we do not have significant cepikpenditure requirements. In addition, we did asgume a recovery of the global or natic
economy in our cash flow projections in our analyas of December 28, 2008 or in our analysis &ebfuary 28, 2009. The charge does not
impact our normal business operations.

Impairment and adjustments to the liabifdy unused office space. The expense of $0.3 million for the year enBedember 28, 2008
was a result of a change in estimate of our exfaedity accrual for obligations under facility Isas and a write-off of fees related to the
withdrawal of our previously filed S-3 and S-4 gation statements, which were no longer useabéerasult of a change in regulations. The
expense of $0.6 million for the year ended Decer@@eR009, was a result of a change in our ex@ashty accrual due to the consolidation of
space at our corporate headquarters followingdleaf the SYS commercial businesses and a catiogllaf a sublease of one of our tenants
due to financial difficulties.

Other expense, net.For the year ended December 28, 2008, net ettpignse was $11.5 million compared to net othpeese of
$10.3 million for the year ended December 27, 200 decrease in expense of $1.2 million for ther ysded December 27, 2009 as
compared to the year ended December 28, 2008 waarjly driven by a decrease in other expense o8 $iillion as a result of the non-cash
charge to mark the derivative related to our criadillity to market. This decrease in
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other expense was partially offset by an increagnterest expense of $0.7 million related to tbeeteration of the amortization of deferred
financing costs due to a $17.5 million early extirstnment of the first lien term loan in October 20Bor additional information regarding this
extinguishment of debt, see Note 5 of Notes to Clilsted Financial Statements.

Provision (benefit) for income taxesOur effective income tax rate for the year ehBecember 27, 2009 represented a negative 3%
income tax provision compared to a positive 1% imedax benefit for the year ended December 28, .2D08 tax provision for the year ended
December 27, 2009 was primarily related to curs¢atie income taxes of $1.0 million. The tax benaf$0.7 million for the year ended
December 28, 2008 was comprised of current statenie taxes of $1.3 million offset by a benefit 8@Gmillion related to a reduction in
deferred tax liabilities as a result of the gootlimilpairment charge.

Loss from discontinued operationsLoss from discontinued operations decreased fidoss of $7.1 million for the year ended
December 28, 2008 to a loss of $3.2 million forykar ended December 27, 2009.

In December 2008, we made the decisioxitdleree of our acquired SYS businesses that weteore to our stated strategy and that
been dilutive to our profitability. The businessigested or exited provided interactive video sillaece and information analysis products,
digital broadcasting products and incident responaeagement systems. These actions were takemtasf par ongoing integration efforts of
recently acquired companies and cost reductiorativies. In 2008, $4.5 million of the loss is reldtto asset impairments including goodwill
2009, $2.0 million of the loss was related to tin@airment of assets of the Southeast division & RBich reflects management's estimate of
the fair value of the business.

On June 24, 2009, as a result of the coatiroperating losses in the Southeast divisioh@fdompany's Public Safety & Security
segment, the Company's Board of Directors appraveldn to sell and dispose of the Southeast divisinaccordance witfiopic 205, this
business unit was classified as held for sale apdrted in discontinued operations in the accomipgn@onsolidated Financial Statements.
Company recorded a $2.0 million impairment chargehé second quarter of 2009 related to managesresttmate of the fair value of the
business. The Company continues to operate thén&asttdivision while simultaneously seeking a buybe negative cash flow from
discontinued operations is primarily a result a$ ttivision's continuing business activities. Thentpany has taken significant cost reduction
actions throughout 2009 to improve the operatinggina and operating cash flows of this business.

The following table presents the resultglisEontinued operations (in millions):

Year ended Year ended
December 28, December 27,
2008 2009
Revenue $ 131 $ 5.¢
Loss before taxe (8.9 (3.9
Benefit for income taxe (2.9 (0.6)
Net loss $ 7.1y $ (3.9

See Note 8 to the Notes to the Consoliditedncial Statements for a further discussionis¢@htinued operations.
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Comparison of Results for the Year Ended Decemberl3 2007 to the Year Ended December 28, 2008

Revenues. Revenues by operating segment for the yearsceDécember 31, 2007 and December 28, 2008 apfl@sd (in millions):

2007 2008 $ change % change
Kratos Government Solutions Segm $ 1425 $ 246.7 $ 104.C 73.1%
Public Safety & Security Segme 38.2 39.t 1.3 3.4%
Total revenue: $ 180.7 $ 286.2 $ 105.t 58.4%

Revenues increased $105.5 million from $2.8@illion in 2007 to $286.2 million in 2008, refiéng an increase of $104.2 million in our
Kratos Government Solutions segment, primarily thuthe acquisitions of Haverstick on December 3D 72and SYS on June 28, 2008.
Haverstick revenue in 2008 was $85.5 million andSS¥venue was $33.2 million. This combined increxdsgl18.7 million from the acquired
companies was partially offset by decreases inmeee in the KGS segment of approximately $14.5onillThis decrease was a result of the
impact of the conversion of our work as prime tbacantractor on one of our target range projectschvtvas recompeted earlier in the year and
awarded to a small business as well as the timfinglverables and completion on one of our Foréijlitary Sales programs. The increase in
the PSS segment was primarily the result of areame in revenue related to our Southwest division.

As described in the section "Critical Acoting Principles and Estimates” and in the NoteSdasolidated Financial Statements, a portion
of our revenue is derived from fixed-price contsawhereby revenue is calculated using the perceragompletion method based on the ri
of total costs incurred to date compared to es@nhédtal costs to complete the contract. Thesmasts are reviewed monthly on a contract-by-
contract basis, and are revised periodically thnowg the life of the contract such that adjustmémisrofit resulting from revisions are made
cumulative to the date of the revision. Significar@nagement judgments and estimates, includingdtimated costs to complete projects,
which determine the project's percent complete tiesnade and used in connection with the reveacggnized in any accounting period.
Material differences may result in the amount amdrtg of our revenue for any period if managemeakes different judgments or utilizes
different estimates. During the reporting periodstained herein, we did experience revenue andimadjustments of certain projects based
on the aforementioned factors, but the effect shsadjustments, both positive and negative, whatfuated in total were determined to be
immaterial to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cost of revenues. Cost of revenues increased $77.0 million 00%dfrom $151.0 million for the year ended Decenier2007 to
$228.0 million for the year ended December 28, 2008arily due to the increase in total revenudte crease was primarily attributable to
cost of revenues of approximately $90.6 millioratedl to the Haverstick and SYS acquisitions, prtidfset by decreases in cost of revenues
as a result of the reduced revenues in the tworanog as discussed above. Gross margin during tireeyeled December 28, 2008 of 20.3%
increased from a 2007 gross margin of 16.4%. Theease in gross margin primarily resulted from bBigiross margins in our KGS segmer
a result of our Haverstick and SYS acquisitions tutne types of program mix as well as classifarabf costs between cost of sales and
selling, general and administrative expenses in@ence with government accounting standards. diitiad, there was improved operational
performance in our PSS segment, for which margiaseased from 24.3% to 29.1% for the year ende@mber 31, 2007 and December 28,
2008, respectively.

Selling, general and administrative expasnseSelling, general and administrative expenseeased 33.6% from $36.6 million to
$48.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2@y December 28, 2008, respectively. The incref$&2.3 million was primarily due to
an increase in costs reflecting the
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acquisitions of Haverstick and SYS, offset by auaibn in corporate expenses. Included in thersglijeneral and administrative expenses for
2007 and 2008 are amortization of purchased inkdegiof $2.7 million and $4.9 million, respectiveRhe increase in amortization year over
year was also a result of the Haverstick and S¥Yfsiiaitions. As a percentage of revenues, sellirgegal and administrative expen

decreased from 20.3% in 2007 to 17.1% in 2008. &nb the impact of the amortization of purchasedrigibles, SG&A decreased from
18.8% to 15.4% of revenues for 2007 and 2008, ey, reflecting the leverage on increased rexsn

Research and development expensd®esearch and development (R&D) expenses ineddfasm zero for the year ended December 31,
2007 to $0.9 million for the year ended December2B®8 as a result of R&D expenses incurred by @¥Bh was acquired on June 28, 2008.

Recovery of unauthorized issuance of stptions, stock option investigation and relatecsfaed litigation settlement. For the year
ended December 31, 2007 our expenses of $15.®miticluded $14.0 million in legal, accounting aiter professional fees related to our
Equity Award Review which was completed in Septen#7 and the completed government inquiries byibpartment of Justice and the
completed SEC investigation. This amount was fbrtidfset by $3.4 million related to the recovenfassets from our settlement with our
former stock option administrator related to dansafge the theft of our stock options and commorrlstwhich occurred in 2002 and 2003 and
was discovered during our internal review of outi@pgranting practices. Also included in the exgEnof $15.5 million was an estimated
$4.9 million related to the costs for the settletwfrthe 2004 and 2007 securities litigation assult of a tentative agreement reached during a
voluntary mediation in February 2008 and an esénfiait the settlement of our derivative litigation.

During the year ended December 28, 200&ewevered $4.5 million, through insurance reimbarents, of costs and losses related to the
stock option investigation in 2007. We also paigragimately $4.2 million related to the final agneent on the 2004 and 2007 securities
litigation in 2008.

Impairment of goodwill. In December 2008, we concluded that the detigi@xit three businesses obtained with the SYfbiaition
and included with our KGS reporting segment metctiiteria to be classified as held for sale and av&riggering event undétASB ASC Topic
350 Intangibles—Goodwill and Oth#rat required a review of goodwill and intangibéessets with indefinite lives. Because the threéniess
units were never integrated into the KGS reporting, and the benefits of the acquired goodwill aveever realized by the rest of the repor
unit, the goodwill of the disposed businesses vadsadjusted based upon the relative fair valugb@businesses disposed and businesses
retained.

Because of the timing of the disposals moeetd above, the required impairment test of theSkf@odwill and intangible assets with
indefinite lives was included with our required aahimpairment test of goodwill. The annual impagémhtest for goodwill was performed
using a discounted cash flow analysis supportecbioyparative market multiples to determine thealues of our segments versus their book
values. The test as of December 28, 2008, indidatetdthe book values for the KGS segment, excly@fl (which was purchased on
December 24, 2008), exceeded the fair values sktbasinesses and resulted in our recording a asimeharge totaling $105.8 million in our
KGS segment for the impairment of goodwill.

The impairment charge was primarily dril®nadverse equity market conditions that causeecae@dse in current market multiples and
average stock price as of December 28, 2008, cadpaith the impairment test performed as of Decer8tie2007. In our analysis, we used
the income approach and validate its reasonabldryessnsidering our market capitalization basednugo average of our stock price for a
period prior to and subsequent to the date we padd our analysis. The average market price obtngk as of December 28, 2008 was
$12.90 which equated to a 45%

44




Table of Contents

drop in our average stock price and correspondiacket capitalization from December 31, 2007 whiald n average stock price of $23.50.
We reconciled the fair value of our reporting unitsich was calculated using the income approacutanarket capitalization. As a result of
this reconciliation, it was noted that investorgeveequiring a higher rate of return, and therefore discount factor which was based upon an
estimated market participant weighted average afosapital (WACC) increased 250 basis points frahrb% in our year end impairment tes
2007 compared to 14% in our year end impairmenine®008. This change was the key factor contiityuto the $105.8 million impairment
charge that we recorded in the fourth quarter @820

Our historical growth rates and operatieguits are not indicative of our future growth sad@d operating results as a consequence of our
transformation of the Company from a commerciakleiss service provider to a U.S. government defeast&actor. The decline in revenues
on a pro forma basis after considering recent aitipns, which was expected by us, is primarily tuéhe impact of the conversion of our
work as a prime contractor under certain legacylldmiainess awards to that of a subcontractor. Thange resulted in an award of an overall
smaller portion of the entire project as the carttavere recompeted and the original term of thalldmusiness contracts were completed. The
conversion of work as a prime to a subcontractiated to legacy small business contracts awardaeddaired companies is not uncommon in
the government defense contractor industry for comgs that have been acquisitive. Certain of thtraot awards that were legacy small
business awards to businesses which we acquiredasalt in a reduction of revenues when these aotgrare completed and recompeted and
awarded to us as a subcontractor rather than ema pontractor. We believe that the expected irhfraour revenues will not be material
related to this conversion. Our projected growthgdake into consideration this anticipated immacsmall business awards.

Our contracts are long-term in nature ardsapported by significant backlog. Because outregts are of a long-term nature, a majority
of our receivables are with agencies within th&sUgovernment or we are a subcontractor to a custarnose receivables are with the ager
within the U.S. government, we are not subjectigaificant short-term changes in operating castvflMoreover, because of the nature of our
current business we do not have significant capitpenditure requirements.

Impairment and adjustments to the liabifdy unused office space. The expense of $1.2 million for the year enBedember 31, 2007
included $0.8 million for an excess facility acdria our obligations under facility leases withused office space as a result of the divestil
of our wireless network services businesses, $@lBmrelated to the impairment of leasehold impements for these facilities, and
$0.2 million related to an impairment of fixed ass@he expense of $0.3 million for the year enBedember 28, 2008 was a result of a chi
in estimate of our excess facility accrual for ghtions under facility leases and a write-off addeelated to our withdrawal of our previously
filed S-3 and S-4 registration statements, whichewe longer useable as a result of a change ilatgns.

Other Expense, Net. For the year ended December 31, 2007, net ettpanse was $2.3 million compared to net otheeesg of
$11.5 million for the year ended December 28, 200 net other expense of $2.3 million in 2007 wamarily attributable to approximately
$1.8 million of an impairment charge, recordedhe fourth quarter of 2007, related to the carryiafye of investments in unconsolidated
affiliates to fair value as well as $1.2 millionioterest expense incurred on our previous creditify. The significant increase in 2008 was
primarily driven by interest expense of $9.2 million the debt used to finance the acquisition ofdrstick on December 31, 2007 and a non-
cash mark to market adjustment for financial deies of $1.7 million.

Provision (benefit) for income taxesOur effective income tax rate for the year ehBecember 31, 2007 represented a negative 5%
income tax provision compared to a positive 1% imedax benefit for the year ended December 28, .2D08 tax provision for the year ended
December 31, 2007 was comprised of current stataie taxes of $0.7 million and an increase of defetax
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liabilities of $0.6 million. The tax benefit of $0Omillion for the year ended December 28, 2008 eaamprised of current state income taxes of
$1.3 million offset by a benefit of $2.0 millionlaged to a reduction in deferred tax liabilitiessaesult of the goodwill impairment charge.

Loss from discontinued operationsLoss from discontinued operations decreased fidoss of $13.6 million in 2007 to a loss of
$7.1 million during 2008. In December 2008, we m#ddedecision to exit three of our acquired SY Sresses that are not core to our stated
strategy and that have been dilutive to our prbfiity. The businesses divested or exited provitderactive video surveillance and information
analysis products, digital broadcasting productbianident response management systems. Theseswetare taken as part of our ongoing
integration efforts of recently acquired comparaiad cost reduction initiatives. Included in theslésr 2008 are asset impairments including
goodwill of approximately $4.5 million. These losseere partially offset by the favorable resolutaircontingencies related to our wireless
businesses which were divested in 2007.

In 2007, the $13.6 million loss was prinhadue to the impairment of assets related to thielass deployment business of $13.4 million,
an impairment of goodwill of $7.2 million related this business, a $1.9 million loss from the dssp@f our deployment business and a
$1.1 million excess facility accrual. These changese all partially offset by a gain of $14.8 nali on the sale of the wireless engineering
services business operations and a gain of $2l&mdn the sale of the EMEA business.

The following table presents the resultglistontinued operations (in millions):

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 28,
2007 2008
Revenue $ 98.t $ 13.1
Loss before taxe (14.0 (8.9
Provision (benefit) for income tax (0.9 (1.9
Net loss $ (13.¢) $ (7.7

See Note 8 to the Notes to the Consoliditedncial Statements for further discussion ofaliginued operations.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 27, 2009, we had consoltlatesh and cash equivalents of $9.9 million, cadat#d long-term and short-term debt,
including capital lease obligations, of $56.3 miflj and consolidated stockholders' equity of $124ilBon. Our principal sources of liquidity
are cash flows from operations and borrowings undeicredit facility. Our operating cash flow isedsto finance trade accounts receivable,
fund capital expenditures, our ongoing operatititigation and government inquiries, service oubtdgnd make strategic acquisitions.
Financing trade accounts receivable is necessamuise, on average, our customers do not pay us@dyjas we pay our vendors and
employees for their goods and services. Cash framtirtuing operations is primarily derived from awstomer contracts in progress and
associated changes in working capital components.
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Credit Facility

On March 3, 2010, we entered into a neviosesecured credit agreement (the New Credit Agexgjnwith Key Bank National
Association (KeyBank) as Administrative Agent arehtder for a new credit facility (the New Credit Fi&g in the aggregate principal amount
of $60.0 million. The New Credit Facility is comped of (i) a $35.0 million term loan facility anig) & $25.0 million revolving line of credit.
Pursuant to the terms of the New Credit Agreeméstferm loan and revolving credit facility are libtiiree year facilities. The proceeds under
the New Credit Agreement may be used for generalazate purposes including refinancing of existiagk debt, working capital and
acquisitions.

Also on March 3, 2010, we entered into ®ayoff Letters with KeyBank terminating our exigfii85.0 million credit facility (the Prior
Credit Facility). In connection with the refinangiof the Prior Credit Facility, we borrowed $57.8lion under the New Credit Facility.
Approximately $25.0 million of the proceeds werediso pay in full the remaining balance on thet fien term loan under the Prior Credit
Facility held by Silverpoint Capital LP (Silverpajnat par, with no prepayment penalties, purst@athe Settlement Agreement that we entt
into with Silverpoint and KeyBank in October 20@& a result of the refinance, we expect to recordgproximate $2.2 million interest cha
related to the write-off of unamortized financinasts related to the Prior Credit Facility. As ofidta3, 2010, after giving full effect to the
refinancing and repayment in full of the Prior Qtdehcility, we had outstanding debt of $35.0 mifliunder the New Credit Facility term loan
and $22.5 million under the New Credit Facility obxing line of credit.

We may borrow funds under the New Credite®gnent (i) at the base rate, determined as ttaegref (A) the prime loan rate announced
by KeyBank and (B) the sum of the weighted avemagenight federal funds rate published by the Faldeeserve Bank plus 50 basis points,
or (ii) at the offshore rate, determined by KeyBaskhe offered rate for U.S. dollar deposits smdpproximate amount of the requested loan
and having a maturity comparable to such interesbd, which rate appears (A) on the British Bask&ssociation internet web page
(http://www.bba.org.uk/public/libor/), or via (B)driters (BBALIBORS), Bloomberg, Moneyline Telera®a@e 3750) or any other information
provider of the British Bankers' Association ddiippor rates as of 11:00 A.M., London time, on tlaedwhich is the second day on which
banks are open for interbank deposits in Londoorpd the commencement of such interest perioddassted for reserve requirements and
rounded upwards if necessary to the next higheédQ/d Borrowings are subject to a Libor floor ratd5% or a Base Rate floor of 5.25%.
Term loan borrowings and revolver borrowings maybleject to an additional 450 basis points andi&&is points, respectively, based on our
credit ratings. In addition, we must pay a fee magdrom 30 basis points per annum to 75 pointsgpeium, based on our credit ratings, on the
daily amount of the unused commitments under thelveng credit facility. The initial interest ratender the New Credit Facility for the term
loan is 7.25%, compared to the approximate 11.#8&seést rate under the Prior Credit Facility teoan. The initial interest under the New
Credit Facility for the revolving line of credit &pproximately 6.50%, compared to the approximat&% rate under the Prior Credit Facility
revolving line of credit.

Pursuant to certain terms of the New CrAdittement, in certain instances we are requirgaeépay outstanding indebtedness prior to its
stated maturity date. Specifically, certain nordreing cash inflows such as proceeds from asses sgisurance recoveries, and equity
offerings as well as certain annual operating ¢sts may have to be used to pay down indebtedaedsnay not be reborrowed.

The terms of the New Credit Agreement ideleustomary representations and warranties, dssetporting and financial covenants,
customary for financings of this type. The finahciavenants include a quarterly maximum leveragie & 2.75 through December 31, 2010,
reducing to 2.50 thereafter, a quarterly fixed geazoverage ratio of 1.10 through December 31, 2@ith an increase
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to 1.25 thereafter. In addition, the covenantsudela monthly asset coverage ratio of EligibledBilAccounts Receivables, as defined, of 1.25
times for outstanding balances of the revolvinglitriacility.

The New Credit Agreement provides for thaity to increase the revolving line of credit fity by up to $15 million to a total not to
exceed $40 million, in the event that the Admirastre Agent elects to secure additional commitmémoi® existing lenders or from new
lenders.

Prior to the above refinancing, the Prioedit Facility provided for two term loans congigtiof a first lien term note of $50.0 million and
a second lien term note of $10.0 million, as wslhdirst lien $25.0 million revolving line of crigdThe $10.0 million term loan had a five and
one half-year term with principal payments of $2B,0equired quarterly beginning on March 31, 2088ugh March 31, 2013 with the final
balance of $9.5 million due on June 30, 2013. @ @million term loan had a five year term witlingipal payments of $0.6 million required
quarterly beginning on March 31, 2008, $1.3 millior2009, $2.5 million in 2010, and $4.1 million2011 and 2012. The revolving line of
credit had an original four year term which whichsasubsequently extended to December 31, 2012amdics provisions typical in such
arrangements. As of December 27, 2009, the bakamtkee first lien term loan was $24.9 million, thelance on the second lien term loan was
$9.8 million, and the balance on the revolving loieredit was $19.7 million, with $1.5 million tétter of credit outstanding and $3.8 million
available. As of December 27, 2009, weighted awematgrest rate on the debt borrowed during 2008 10a12%.

Convertible Notes

As of December 28, 2008, we had outstandonyertible notes payable totaling $3.1 millioniethwere acquired as a result of the SYS
acquisition, of which $0.8 million was payable &bated parties. The convertible notes payable aseaured and subordinated to our bank debt
and bear interest at 10% per annum payable quarBnihcipal was due February 14, 2009 and theswtre convertible at any time into
shares of common stock at a conversion rate o6$28er share. In February 2009, in the interegre$erving cash due to the macroeconomic
conditions, we provided each note holder with thom to:

(1) be paid cash in accordance with the original agessgy

(2) extend the note for an additional 18 months aettisting 10% rate and modify the conversion feataréhe lower of the existir
conversion price of $28.60 per share or our clositogk price on February 13, 2009; or

3) convert the principal balance into shares of ounmmon stock at the lower of the existing convergidne of $28.60 or oL
closing stock price on February 13, 2009 less a dR&%ount.

As of December 27, 2009, $2.1 million o tiotes had been paid and $1.0 million of the noéelsbeen extended to August 14, 2010,
$25,000 of which is payable to a related party. Bakance of the outstanding notes of $1.0 millighich is potentially convertible into
common stock of Kratos at $10.20 per share or aqipitely 94,000 shares, is reflected in the curpamtion of long-term debt in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Payments in Connection with Acquisitions and Ditasts

In connection with our business acquisiione have agreed to make additional future paysnergellers based on final purchase price
adjustments and the expiration of certain inderoatfon obligations. Pursuant to the provision§ASB ASC Topic 805 Business
Combinations such amounts are accrued, and therefore, recarded the contingency is resolved beyond a reasemmiubt and, hence, the
additional consideration becomes payable. In 20@7paid $4.6 million of working capital adjustmentsd approximately $4.3 million of the
holdback amounts to the former MRC shareholders
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in accordance with the Purchase Agreement. In 208%aid approximately $3.6 million for the finash holdback amounts subject to
indemnity rights due to MRC and Haverstick. As efd@mber 27, 2009, all obligations related to pusehaice holdbacks and indemnification
obligations have been paid in full.

In July 2007, we sold our deployment sexgibusiness of our Wireless Network Services segtadflatinum Equity. On July 16, 2008,
we came to an agreement with Platinum Equity oroeking capital adjustment of $5.0 million. In comtien with that resolution, the earn-out
arrangement provided for in the definitive agreetweas terminated. The adjustment was to be paiigstallments with the first amount of
$2.5 million due on July 31, 2008 and payments@5$nillion monthly thereafter until paid in fulhiDecember 2008. We did not make the
scheduled $2.5 million payment due as of July 808 Payments of $1.0 million were made in August September of 2008, with an
additional $0.5 million paid in December 2008. Imidh of 2009, we paid another $1.5 million and agést 4, 2009, we paid $1.3 million in
full settlement of all amounts due to Platinum Egui

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities

A summary of our net cash provided by (us¢aperating activities from continuing operatidinom our consolidated statement of cash
flows is as follows (in millions):

Years Ended December 31, 2007, December 28, 2008,
and December 27, 2009
2007 2008 2009

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi
from continuing operatior $ 0.8 $ 45 3 26.2

Cash provided by operating activities froomtinuing operations for 2009 increased by $30IBam from 2008 as a result of increased
collections and a reduction in payments relatdddal liabilities of $10.3 million. Days sales diatsding (DSO's) decreased from 107 days
(excluding the receivables of DFI in 2008) to 9%l 2009. In 2008, we made payments of $4.8 omilto fund the securities litigation
settlement and approximately $5.5 million relatedtr internal stock investigation we complete@@07.

Cash used in operating activities from ganhg operations for 2008 increased by $3.7 millilom 2007 primarily due to approximately
$10.3 million in payments related to legal lialidg discussed above. These amounts were partfédigt doy cash receipts of approximately
$4.9 million resulting from our recovery from theett of stock options and other recoveries fromwarious insurance carriers.

Cash used in investing activities

Cash used in investing activities from dmmhg operations are summarized as follows (iHiomk):

2007 2008 2009
Investing activities
Sale/maturity of shc-term investment $ — $ 03 $ —
Cash paid for contingent acquisition considera (8.9 — (3.6)
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acqu (63.9) (1.2 (1.7
Proceeds/(payments) from the disposition of disoortd operation 57.5 (0.2 (2.9
Cash transferred (to) from restricted c 1.C (0.9 —
Capital expenditure (0.9 (0.8 (0.9
Net cash used in investing activities from contirguoperation: $ (1549 $ (2.3 $ (7.5
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Cash paid for acquisitions and contingequisition consideration accounted for the mostificant outlays for investing activities in the
years 2007, 2008 and 2009 as a result of the imgatéation of our strategies to diversify our businesile focusing on our core competenc
Cash paid for acquisitions in 2007 represents tieekbtick acquisition. In 2008, our acquisitiongevprimarily funded with the issuance of
stock; consequently the cash paid for acquisitior)08 relates to transaction costs paid for Hstigk, SYS and DFI, less cash acquired from
DFl and SYS of $6.3 million. In 2009, we made $&dlion in payments related to the final holdbaayments for our Madison Research and
Haverstick acquisitions and $1.1 million in paynerglated to transaction costs associated witD#eacquisition which was completed on
December 24, 2008.

Investing activities in 2007 included preds of $57.3 million, directly attributable to tsale of our discontinued operations. In 2008, we
received $2.4 million in final payment of the noéated to the working capital adjustment for thke ©f our domestic wireless engineering
business to LCC which was offset by payments o8 $2illion to Platinum Equity for the working caplitadjustment related to the sale of our
domestic wireless deployment business. The fingaingats to Platinum Equity of $2.4 million for thekking capital adjustment were made in
2009.

Capital expenditures consist primarily mféstment in computer hardware and software andowepnent of our physical properties in
order to maintain suitable conditions to conduatlmusiness.

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Cash provided by (used in) financing atigg from continuing operations are summarizec#s\iis (in millions):

2007 2008 2009
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net ohrssicost $ — % — % 17¢
Proceeds from exercise of restricted stock unitgleyee stocl
options, and employee stock purchase | — 0.2 0.€
Payments of subordinated d¢ — — (2.7
Borrowings under credit facilit 88.t 7.9 22.t
Repayments under credit facili (64.0 (4.€) (46.9)
Repayment of capital lease obligatic (0.9 (0.2 (0.2
Debt issuance cos (3.0 (0.5) (0.5
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activifiesn continuinc
operations $ 211 $ 28 $ (9.

During 2007, we entered into two amendmantsur then-existing credit facility, one in Marahd the other in June, which reduced the
total facility to $35 million as a result of thevdititures of our wireless network services busieesin December 2007, we successfully
negotiated the Prior Credit Facility, which wasdipeimarily to fund the Haverstick acquisition.2008, we utilized the Prior Credit Facility to
fund acquisition costs associated with the acqaistof SYS and DFI.

On September 2, 2009, we completed theada&det million shares of common stock at $7.20g&re in a registered direct public
offering. The offering provided gross proceeds B8.8 million and net proceeds of $17.5 million. #egesult of a settlement agreement we
executed with certain lenders under our Prior Gredcility, on October 16, 2009, we made a paynoéftl7.5 million on the first lien term
loan at par with no prepayment penalty or make wipalyment. On October 16, 2009, we also paid $dl®min fees to the lenders as a result
of an amendment to the credit agreement enteredrirdonnection with the settlement agreement, lviideing accounted for as deferred
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financing costs and is being amortized over theaieing term of the loans. See Note 5 to the Naidhe¢ Consolidated Financial Statement:
a further discussion of the Settlement AgreemedtTrird Amendment to the Prior Credit Facility.

As a result of the payment of $17.5 millmmthe first lien term loan in October 2009, weederated the amortization of approximately
$0.7 million in deferred financing costs as intéegense in the fourth quarter of 2009. The $GIbam in fees paid to the lenders in October
will be amortized over the remaining term of thedst facility.

Cash used in discontinued operations arerarized as follows (in millions):

2007 2008 2009

Operating cash flow $ — $ (12 % (39
Investing cash flow (1.6 — —
Net cash flows from discontinued operatis $ (1€ % (1.2 % (349

Cash used in discontinued operations

Operating cash flows used by discontinyserations are primarily due to the PSS Southeaiidin. Investing cash flow consists of
capital expenditures incurred primarily by our Méss network services segment.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no off-balance sheet arrangemantefined in Regulation S-K, Item 303(a)(4)(ii).
Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table summarizes our currgmkisting contractual obligations and other commeihts at December 27, 2009, and the effect
such obligations could have on our liquidity andrcélow in future periods (in millions):

Payments due/forecast by Period

Total 2010 20112012 20152014 2015 and After
Debt, net of interest(1 $554 $ 85 $ 374 % 95 $ —
Capital leases(4 1.7 0.4 0.8 0.5 —
Estimated interest on debt( 13.2 6.8 54 1.C —
Purchase orders(. 12.5 9.9 2.4 — —
Operating leases(: 14.C 4.9 5.1 1.7 2.3
Unrecognized tax benefits, includi
interest and penalties( 2.C 1.3 0.7 — —
Total commitments and recorded
liabilities $98€ $31¢& $ 518 $ 127 $ 2.3

@) The Prior Credit Facility. The payments shown corgkate that we will pay off the Prior Credit Fatyilby the due date of June 2013.
See "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement$& Ndor further details. As discussed above, ieaaced the Prior Credit Facility
with the proceeds of our New Credit Facility on ®aB, 2010; as a result, these projected paymeri§ @ecember 27, 2009 do not
accurately reflect our projected payments as ofitite of the filing of this Form 10-K.
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2) Includes interest payments based on current inteatss for variable rate debt and fixed rate deisied upon our swap arrangements.
See "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement$e Ndor further details.

3) Purchase orders include commitments in which aevripurchase order has been issued to a vendahégbods have not been
received or services have not been performed.

(4)  See "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements$€ Bdor further details

(5)  The obligations shown in the above table represer&in uncertain tax positions in accordance WAI$B ASC Topic 740 Income
Taxes. The years for which the uncertain tax positioiisr@verse have been estimated in scheduling Higations in the table above.
See "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement$& Mdor further details.

On February 11, 2008, we entered into therévative financial instruments with Key Bankremluce our exposure to its variable interest
rates on its outstanding debt. These instrumeitalip hedged $70.0 million of its LIBOR-based #lting rate debt with the amounts hedged
decreasing over time. The derivatives mature oncM&1d, 2010 and March 31, 2011 and result in ansapeefixed rate of 3.16% for the term
the agreements. Initially, we designated theseunsnts as cash flow hedges. In March 2008, asudt i&f the amendment to our credit
facility, which included a LIBOR floor rate of 4.25 we determined that these instruments were ngelohighly effective as a hedge. The net
gain (loss) associated with the derivatives forjthars ended December 28, 2008, and December Q9 ,v28s a $1.7 million loss and a
$0.3 million gain, respectively. Future gains aoskks on these derivative instruments will contilouge recognized in our Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

As of December 27, 2009 we have $1.5 mmiltid standby letters of credit outstanding. Outelest of credit are related to our prior workers
compensation program, as support for our performdond program and for our work overseas. Additiarfarmation regarding our financial
commitments at December 27, 2009 is provided imtites to our Consolidated Financial Statements."Setes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, Note 14 Commitments and Contingencies."

Other Liquidity Matters

We intend to fund our cash requirements wésh flows from operating activities, and bormogg under the New Credit Facility. We
believe these sources should be sufficient to meletash needs for at least the next 12 monthslistsissed in Part Il, Item 1A, "Risk Factors
section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our ey and annual operating results have fluctuatettie past and may vary in the future
due to a variety of factors, many of which are maéto our control. If the conditions in our indiysdeteriorate or our customers cancel or
postpone projects or if we are unable to suffidieimicrease our revenues or further reduce our resg® we may experience, in the future, a
significant long-term negative impact to our finecesults and cash flows from operations. In sai@ituation we could fall out of compliance
with our financial and other covenants which, if maived, could limit our liquidity and capital @srces.

Critical Accounting Principles and Estimates

We have identified the following criticad@unting policies that affect our more significardgments and estimates used in the
preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statesieftte preparation of our financial statementsoimf@armity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amarcguires us to make estimates and judgments tfest alfie reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, stockholders' equity, revenues andemges, and related disclosures of contingent aasdtiabilities. On a periodic basis, as dee
necessary, we evaluate our estimates, includirgethelated to revenue recognition, allowance fabtfol accounts, valuation of long-lived
assets including identifiable intangibles and goiigaccounting for income taxes including the teth

52




Table of Contents

valuation allowance, accruals for partial self-irssice, contingencies and litigation, contingentuésition consideration and stock-based
compensation. We explain these accounting polici¢gise notes to the audited Consolidated Finargfalements and at relevant sections in
discussion and analysis. These estimates are basieé information that is currently available amdvarious other assumptions that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstadotgal results could vary from those estimates uiféerent assumptions or conditions.

Revenue recognition. We generate almost all of our revenue fromeligferent types of contractual arrangements:-past-fee
contracts, time-and-materials contracts, and figede contracts. Revenue on cost-plus-fee contiacexognized to the extent of allowable
costs incurred plus an estimate of the applicadds £arned. We consider fixed fees under costfpiisentracts to be earned in proportion to
the allowable costs incurred in performance ofdtetract. We recognize the relevant portion ofakpected fee to be awarded by the custc
at the time such fee can be reasonably estimagseédbon factors such as our prior award experiendeeommunications with the customer
regarding performance, including any interim parfance evaluations rendered by the customer. Revemtime-and-material contracts is
recognized to the extent of billable rates timesrhalelivered for services provided, to the extémhaterial cost for products delivered to
customers, and to the extent of expenses incurrdgkbalf of the customers.

We have three basic categories of fixedgpcontracts: fixed unit price, fixed price-levéleffort, and fixed price-completion. Revenue
recognition methods on fixed-price contracts wdty depending on the nature of the work and théraonterms. Revenues on fixed-price
service contracts are recorded as work is perforimedcordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin 1(RevenueRecognitiorn’ (SAB 104).
SAB 104 generally requires revenue to be deferraiiall of the following have occurred: (1) thasea contract in place, (2) delivery has
occurred, (3) the price is fixed or determinable] &) collectability is reasonably assured. Reesmn fixed-price contracts that require
delivery of specific items may be recorded based price per unit as units are delivered. Revepuéxed price contracts in which we are
paid a specific amount to provide services foragest period of time is recognized ratably overdbevice period.

A portion of our fixed price-completion deects are within the scope of Financial AccountBtgndards Board Accounting Standards
Codification(FASB ASC) Topic 605 Revenue Recognition (Topif 888 these contracts revenue is recognized ubimgércentage-of-
completion method based on the ratio of total cimstgrred to date compared to estimated total dostemplete the contract. Estimates of ¢
to complete include material, direct labor, overtheand allowable indirect expenses for our govemtrnentracts. These cost estimates are
reviewed and, if necessary, revised monthly onrdaraot-byeontract basis. If, as a result of this review,degermine that a loss on a contrac
probable, then the full amount of estimated lossh&rged to operations in the period it is deteedithat it is probable a loss will be realized
from the full performance of the contract. In cartastances in which it is impractical to estimé#te final outcome of the project margin, but it
is certain that we will not incur a loss on thejpob, we may record revenue equal to cost incuaedero margin. In the event that our cost
incurred to date may be in excess of our fundedraonvalue, we may defer those costs until the@ated contract value has been funded by
the customer. Once the final estimate of the oueofithe project margin is determined, we will netcevenue using the percentage-of-
completion method of accounting based on the @ttotal costs incurred to date compared to thienaséd total costs to complete the project.
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Significant management judgments and eséisyancluding but not limited to the estimatedtsde complete projects, must be made and
used in connection with the revenue recognizecdhjnaecounting period. A cancellation, schedule ylaia modification of a fixed-price
contract which is accounted for using the percesvafgcompletion method may adversely affect ousgnmargins for the period in which the
contract is modified or cancelled. Under certanswinstances, a cancellation or negative modificatimuld result in us having to reverse
revenue that we recognized in a prior period, sigsificantly reducing the amount of revenues weognize for the period in which the
adjustment is made. Correspondingly, a positiveifitadion may positively affect our gross margihsaddition, a schedule delay or
modifications can result in an increase in estithatest to complete the project, which would alsuhein an impact to our gross margin.
Material differences may result in the amount amdrig of our revenue for any period if managementimdifferent judgments or utilized
different estimates.

It is our policy to review any arrangemeantaining software or software deliverables anglises against the criteria contained5ASB
ASC Topic 985 Software (Topic 9¢, and related technical practice aids. Under tlogipions ofTopic 985we review the contract value of
software deliverables and services and determlneations of the contract value based on Vendocifipebjective Evidence ("VSOE"). All
software arrangements requiring significant produngtmodification, or customization of the softwane accounted for in conformity with
Topic 605.

Our contracts may include the provisiomafre than one of our services. In these situatimesapply the guidance of FASBspic 605.
Accordingly, for applicable arrangements, revereegnition includes the proper identification opamte units of accounting and the
allocation of revenue across all elements basa@lative fair values, with proper considerationagito the guidance provided by other
authoritative literature.

Under certain of our contractual arrangetsieme may also recognize revenue for out-of-poekpenses in accordance witbpic 605.
Depending on the contractual arrangement, thesensgs may be reimbursed with or without a fee.

Under certain of our contracts, we proddeplier procurement services and materials forcagtomers. The Company records revent
these arrangements on a gross or net basis indacom withTopic 605. Depending on the specific circumstances of thengement we
consider the following criteria, among others, fecording revenue on a gross or net basis:

(1)  Whether we act as a principal in the transact

(2) Whether we take title to the produc

(3)  Whether we assume risks and rewards of ownershdt, s risk of loss for collection, delivery oruets;
(4)  Whether we serve as an agent or broker, with cosgigEm on a commission or fee basis;

(5) Whether we assume the credit risk for the amouleidbio the customer subsequent to deliv

For our federal contracts, we follow U.8vgrnment procurement and accounting standardssigsaing the allowability and the
allocability of costs to contracts. Due to the #igance of the judgments and estimation processeslikely that materially different amounts
could be recorded if we used different assumptmrnisthe underlying circumstances were to chaWge.closely monitor compliance with, and
the consistent application of, our critical accaugipolicies related to contract accounting. Busineperations personnel conduct periodic
contract status and performance reviews. When gu@rgs in estimated contract revenues or costeegréred, any significant changes from
prior estimates are included in earnings in theentrperiod. Also, regular and recurring evaluaion
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of contract cost, scheduling and technical matezsperformed by management personnel who are émdiemt from the business operations
personnel performing work under the contract. Cmetsrred and allocated to contracts with the lg@&ernment are scrutinized for complia
with regulatory standards by our personnel, andsabgect to audit by the DCAA.

From time to time, we may proceed with wbdsed on client direction prior to the completom signing of formal contract documents.
We have a formal review process for approving archavork. Revenue associated with such work isgeieged only when it can be reliably
estimated and realization is probable. We basestimates on previous experiences with the cl@mmunications with the client regarding
funding status, and our knowledge of available fagdor the contract or program.

Allowance for doubtful accounts.We maintain an allowance for doubtful accodatestimated losses resulting from the potential
inability of certain customers to make requiredifetpayments on amounts due to us. Managementrde&s the adequacy of this allowance
by periodically evaluating the aging and past dateire of individual customer accounts receivablari@es and considering the customer's
current financial situation as well as the existimgustry economic conditions and other relevaotdis that would be useful towards assessing
the risk of collectability. If the future financiabndition of our customers were to deteriorateylteng in their inability to make specific
required payments, additions to the allowance &ardful accounts may be required. In additionhéd financial condition of our customers
improves and collections of amounts outstandingroence or are reasonably assured, then we may egpergiously established allowances
for doubtful accounts. Changes to estimates ofraohtalue are recorded as adjustments to revemia@ as a component of the allowance
for doubtful accounts. We write off accounts reedie when they become uncollectible and paymenitsesjuently received on such
receivables are credited to the allowance for doliatcounts.

Long-lived and Intangible AssetsWe account for long-lived assets in accordamitie the provisions o0FASB ASC Topic 360 Property,
Plant, and Equipment ("Topic 360"). Topic 3addresses financial accounting and reporting feiirtipairment or disposal of long-lived assets.
This Statement requires that long-lived assetebiewed for impairment whenever events or changesr¢umstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recover&aleoverability is measured by comparing the cagyimount of an asset to the expected
future net cash flows generated by the assetidfdetermined that the asset may not be recowveratd if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its estimated fair value, an impairmentgehs recognized to the extent of the differeffagic 360requires companies to separately
report discontinued operations, including compos@fian entity that either have been disposedyséte, abandonment or in a distribution to
owners) or classified as held for sale. Assetstdibposed of are reported at the lower of theygagramount or fair value less costs to sell.

In accordance wifhiopic 360, we assess the impairment of identifiable intalegitand long-lived assets whenever events or clsange
circumstances indicate that the carrying value mahybe recoverable. Factors we consider importdmt¢tweould individually or in combinatic
trigger an impairment review include the following:

. significant underperformance relative to expectistbhical or projected future operating resu

. significant changes in the manner of our use ofttguired assets or the strategy for our overalinass
. significant negative industry or economic trends;

. significant decline in our stock price for a suséal period; and

. our market capitalization relative to net book a
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If we determined that the carrying valuéméngibles and long-lived assets may not be rexahle based upon the existence of one or
more of the above indicators of impairment, we waelcord an impairment equal to the excess of éingying amount of the asset over its
estimated fair value.

Goodwill and Purchased Intangibles.The purchase price of an acquired businedtoisaged to the underlying tangible and intangible
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based thearrespective fair market values, with the esaexorded as goodwill. Such fair market
value assessments require judgments and estinhatesain be affected by contract performance aner dfictors over time, which may cause
final amounts to differ materially from originaltesates. For acquisitions completed through Decerfilie2009, adjustments to fair value
assessments are recorded to goodwill over the psecprice allocation period (typically not excegdiwelve months). Adjustments related to
income tax uncertainties through December 27, 26@®e also recorded to goodwill.

We have established certain accruals imeotion with indemnities and other contingenciesnfrour acquisitions. These accruals and
subsequent adjustments have been recorded dugrmutbhase price allocation period for acquisitidrtee accruals were determined based
upon the terms of the purchase or sales agreeraed{sn most cases, involve a significant degrgaagment. Management has recorded tl
accruals in accordance with its interpretationhef terms of the purchase or sale agreements, kfamts) and an estimation of probable future
events based on management's experience.

We perform our impairment test for goodwillaccordance witRFASB ASC Topic 350 Intangibles—Goodwill and Oth&fe assess
goodwill for impairment at the reporting unit leyelhich is defined as an operating segment or emel below an operating segment, referred
to as a component. We determine our reporting Wyitést identifying our operating segments, anertlassess whether any components of
these segments constitute a business for whichedéstinancial information is available and wheegment management regularly reviews the
operating results of that component. We aggregatgoonents within an operating segment that havéasieconomic characteristics. For our
annual and interim impairment assessments, weifiehour reporting units to be our operating segtaavhich are Government Solutions and
Public Safety and Security.

We perform impairment tests for goodwilladighe last day of our fiscal year, or when evidenf potential impairment exists. When it is
determined that impairment has occurred, a charggerations is recorded. In order to test for piaéimpairment, we use the income
approach, specifically the discounted cash flow Fip@ethod, to derive the fair value of each of eporting units and in order to validate the
reasonableness of the income approach, we corthiglenarket approach, which estimates the fair vafuair reporting units based upon
comparable market prices to validate the reasonabteof the implied multiples from the income appio We also consider our market
capitalization based upon an average of our stack prior to and subsequent to the date we perfarmanalysis and reconcile the fair valu
our reporting units to our market capitalizatioswasing a control premium.

In applying the income approach to our iimpant test for goodwill, we make assumptions altbatamount and timing of future expec
cash flows; terminal growth rates, appropriate alistt rates, and the control premium a controllingreholder could be expected to pay:

. The timing of future cash flows within our DCF aysik is based on our most recent forecasts and estienates. Our historic
growth rates and operating results are not indieatf our projected growth rates and operatingltesis a consequence of our
acquisitions and divestitures and the transformaticthe Company from a commercial wireless serpicider to a U.S.
government defense contractor. The decline in neegmn a pro forma basis after considering recaquisitions, which was
expected by us, is primarily due to the impacthef tconversion of our work as a prime contractorenmertain legacy small
business awards to that
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of a subcontractor. This change resulted in an dwhan overall smaller portion of the entire pajas the contracts were
recompeted and the original term of the small lessrcontracts were completed. The conversion of a®@ prime to a
subcontractor related to legacy small businessractstawarded to the acquired companies is notmamzn in the government
defense contractor industry for companies that tees acquisitive. Our projected growth rates tat@consideration this
anticipated impact on small business awards.

The current economic conditions have negativelyaotgd our Public Safety and Security reporting'sipitojected growth rates
and cash flows as customers have delayed or cadasbital expenditures related to the systemsrosdde. However, this
reporting unit has no goodwill, it is significantynaller than our Government Solutions segmentandoodwill impairment
analysis is not materially affected by changeh@&edxpected cash flows for this reporting unit.réatr economic conditions ha
not significantly impacted our estimates of cashiv in our Government Solutions reporting unit vihgcimarily provides
services to the federal government and the DoD.d@ntracts are long term in nature and are supgdntesignificant backlog.
Because our contracts are of a long term naturggjarity of our receivables are with agencies witthie U. S. government or
are a subcontractor to a customer whose receivabdesith the agencies within the U.S. governmemrtare not subject to
significant short term changes in operating casW flAs a result of our current business model, waat have significant capil
expenditure requirements.

. The terminal growth rate is used to calculate thlee of cash flows beyond the last projected panaslr DCF analysis and
reflects our best estimates for stable, perpetuaiidy of our reporting units.

. We use estimates of market participant weightedameecost of capital (WACC) as a basis for deteimgithe discount rates
apply to our reporting units' future expected celivs. The significant assumptions within our WA@€2: (a) equity risk
premium, (b) beta, (c) size premium adjustmenfsc@dt of debt, and (e) capital structure assumptitn addition, we use a
company specific risk adjustment which is a sulbjecadjustment that, by its very nature does nduitie market related data,
but instead examines the prospects of the repoutiitgrelative to the broader industry to deternifrtbere are specific factors
which may make it more "risky" relative to the irstiy.

. We use an estimated control premium in reconctiiirggaggregate value of our reporting units to oarket capitalization. A
discussed imopic 350, control premiums may effectively cause a commaagygregate fair value of its reporting unit(s) to
exceed its current market capitalization due toathiéity of a controlling shareholder to benefibfin synergies and other
intangible assets that arise from such controlaAssult, the measurement of fair value of anemtith a collection of assets a
liabilities that operate together to produce césWg is different from the fair value measuremeinthat entity's individual
securities, hence, the reason a control premiymaiih

To test the sensitivity of our results they outcomes that were reasonably likely to oosersensitized our forecasts for changes to
revenue growth rates and operating margins, disaates and long-term growth rates. None of thessitized forecasts resulted in different
conclusions with respect to goodwill impairment.

Our methodology for evaluating goodwill antangibles for impairment is consistent with thethodology we have used in prior periods.
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As a result of the assumptions used inamatyses, several factors could result in impaiteéour $110.2 million goodwill and $26.5
million long-lived intangibles in future periodsidluding but not limited to:

. a decline in our stock price and resulting marlegtitalization, if we determine the decline is surstd and is indicative of
reduction in the fair value below the carrying \&ahf our government solutions reporting unit;

. decreases in available government funding, inclydiindgetary constraints affecting federal governrspanding generally, or
specific departments or agencies;

. changes in federal government programs or requingsnancluding the increased use of small busipesgiders; and

. our failure to reach our internal forecasts coulgiéct our ability to achieve our forecasted lewélsash flows and reduce the
estimated discounted value of our reporting units.

It is not possible at this time to deterenihan impairment charge would result from thesetdrs, or, if it does, whether such charge would
be material.

Accounting for income taxes and tax corimgies. FASB ASC Topic 740 Income Taxes (Topic pd@Yides the accounting treatment
for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in arergmise's financial statemenipic 740prescribes a recognition threshold and measuremer
attribute for the financial statement recognition aneasurement of a tax position taken or expdotée taken in a tax returfopic 740also
provides guidance on derecognizing, classificatiotgrest and penalties, accounting in interimqusj disclosure and transition.

As part of the process of preparing our €&didated Financial Statements we are requiredtimmate our provision for income taxes in
each of the tax jurisdictions in which we condugsibess. This process involves estimating our actuaent tax expense in conjunction with
the evaluation and measurement of temporary diffee resulting from differing treatment of certiiéms for tax and accounting purposes.
These temporary differences result in the estatlésit of deferred tax assets and liabilities, whighrecorded on a net basis and included in
our Consolidated Balance Sheet. We then assespenogic basis the probability that our net defdrtax assets will be recovered and,
therefore realized from future taxable income anthe extent we believe that recovery is not miedyt than not, a valuation allowance is
established to address such risk resulting in ditiadal related provision for income taxes durthg period.

Significant management judgment is requiredetermining our provision for income taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities, tax
contingencies, unrecognized tax benefits, and agyired valuation allowance, including taking istmsideration the probability of the tax
contingencies being incurred. Management assdsisgarobability based upon information provideditoby our tax advisors, our legal
advisors and similar tax cases. If at a later timeassessment of the probability of these taxiegahcies changes, our accrual for such tax
uncertainties may increase or decrease.

We have a valuation allowance at DecemiBeP@09, due to management's overall assessmesksfand uncertainties related to our
future ability to realize and, hence, utilize certdeferred tax assets, primarily consisting ofop@rating losses, carry forward temporary
differences and future tax deductions resultingficertain types of stock option exercises, befoey expire.

The 2009 effective tax rate at December2BD9 for annual and interim reporting periods ddug impacted if uncertain tax positions that
are not recognized at December 27, 2009 are settlad amount which differs from our estimate. Bynauring 2010 and thereafter, if we are
impacted by a change in the valuation allowancef &ecember 27, 2009 resulting from a change igioent regarding the realizability of
deferred tax assets beyond December 27, 2009 edfexdt will be recognized in the interim periodvitnich the change occurs.
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Accrual for partial self-insurance. We maintain an accrual for our health and warle®mpensation partial self-insurance, which is a
component of total accrued expenses in the CoradelidBalance Sheets. Management determines theadeqf these accruals based on a
monthly evaluation of our historical experience &mehds related to both medical and workers congt@nsclaims and payments, information
provided to us by our insurance broker, industnyezience and average lag period in which claimgaig. If such information indicates that
our accruals require adjustment, we will, corresfiogly, revise the assumptions utilized in our noelitiogies and reduce or provide for
additional accruals as deemed appropriate. Wecalsy stop-loss insurance that provides coveragiifig our total exposure related to each
medical and workers compensation claim incurrediedimed in the applicable insurance policies. frieglical and workers compensation lin
per claim are $50,000 and $250,000, respectively.

Contingencies and litigation. We are currently involved in certain legal predings. We estimate a range of liability relategending
litigation where the amount and range of loss acaediimated. We record our estimate of a loss wieloss is considered probable and
estimable. Where a liability is probable and thisra range of estimated loss and no amount inathger is more likely than any other number in
the range, we record the minimum estimated ligbiiated to the claim in accordance WRASB ASC Topic 450 Contingencié@s.additional
information becomes available, we assess the paldiability related to our pending litigation amdvise our estimates. Revisions in our
estimates of potential liability could materialippact our results of operations. See Part |, Iteire8al Proceedings” for additional
information.

Stock-Based CompensationWe account for stock-based compensation arraages in accordance with the provisiong=8iSB ASC
Topic 718 Compensation—Stock Compensation (To@pwHich requires the measurement and recognitiomoipensation expense for all
stock-based payment awards to employees and disdzadged on estimated fair values.

The valuation provisions ®bpic 718apply to new awards and to awards that are outistgrash the effective date and subsequently
modified or cancelled. We use the Black-Scholefoaptricing model to estimate the fair value of stock options at the grant date. The
Black-Scholes option pricing model was developedi&e in estimating the fair value of traded opgiarhich have no vesting restrictions and
are fully transferable. Our employee stock optiaresgenerally subject to vesting restrictions anedg@nerally not transferable.

Option pricing models require the inpubajhly subjective assumptions including the expgst®ck price volatility over the term of the
award, the expected life of an option and the nurobawards ultimately expected to vest. Changdkése assumptions can materially affect
the fair value estimates of an option. Furthermtire estimated fair value of an option does noesasarily represent the value that will
ultimately be realized by an employee. We usedlicsl data to estimate the expected forfeiture, riatrinsic and historical data to estimate
the expected price volatility, and a weighted-ageraxpected life formula to estimate the expec#ibo life. The risk-free rate is based on the
U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the timegadnt for the estimated life of the option.

Estimates of stock-based compensation esgzeare significant to our Consolidated Finandiate®nents, but these expenses are based or
option valuation models and will never result ie layment of cash by us. For this reason, and bease do not view stock-based
compensation as related to our operational perfoceave exclude estimated stock-based compensatense when evaluating the business
performance of our operating segments.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncement

On July 1, 2009 the Financial Accountingriétards Board officially launched the Accountingri8tards Codificatio(FASB ASCas the
authoritative source of generally accepted accagndrinciples in the United States. Rules and pr&tive releases of the Securities and
Exchange
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Commission (SEC) under federal securities lawsatse sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC regigse=ASB ASC Topic 105 Generally
Accepted Accounting Principlis effective for financial statements issued fageiim and annual periods ending after Septembe?0®9. The
adoption of this standard did not have a matemiglact on our consolidated financial position, resaf operations or cash flows.

In August 2009, the SEC issuaterpretive Release No. 33-9062, "Commission QuideRegarding the Financial Accounting Standards
Board's Accounting Standards Codificaticregarding the impact of the FASB Codification ontaim SEC rules, regulations, and interpretive
releases and staff accounting bulletins. The SBGsead that references to FASB standards in cuB&a text should correspond to the rules in
theFASB ASC TheFASB ASQloes not supersede any SEC rules or regulatioms=A8B ASGhould not be considered the authoritative
source for SEC guidance.

The disclosure requirementsF#SB ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and@isces (Topic 820)which took effect on
January 1, 2008, are presented in Note 9. On Jiu&009, the Company implemented the previousfemied provisions of opic 820for
nonfinancial assets and liabilities recorded at\alue, as required.

The disclosure requirementsF#SB ASC Topic 815 Derivatives and Hedgimdnich took effect on January 1, 2009, are presbimt
Note 9.

The accounting requirementd-#SB ASC Topic 805 Business Combinatiomkich took effect on January 1, 2009, were adbptg had
no impact on the Company's Consolidated Finand&kshents.

The accounting and presentation requiresnefffASB ASC Topic 810 Consolidatipwhich took effect on January 1, 2009, had no ict
on the financial statements as the Company's natralting interests are not material.

As of September 27, 2009, the Company impletedFASB ASC Topic 825 Financial Instrument (Topic 82®pic 825amends previous
accounting literature to require disclosures alf@utvalue of financial instruments in interim agthas in annual financial statements. The
amendment chang@ASB ASC Topic 270 Interim Reporting (Topic 274@)require those disclosures in all interim fioih statementsTopic
825is effective for periods ending after June 15, 2009he second quarter of 2009, the Company impleedTopic 825andTopic 270. See
Note 9, "Fair Value Measurement

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2089Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangemenighe new standard changes the
requirements for establishing separate units od@aiing in a multiple element arrangement and meguihe allocation of arrangement
consideration to each deliverable based on thévelselling price. The selling price for each defiable is based on vendor-specific objective
evidence (VSOE) if available, third-party evidelificéSOE is not available, or estimated selling pritneither VSOE or thirgharty evidence i
available. ASU 2009-13 is effective for revenueaagements entered into in fiscal years beginningrafter June 15, 2010. The Company
does not expect that the provisions of the newangd will have a material effect on its Consolideéfgancial Statements.

In February 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2020Subsequent Events (Topic 855), Amendments to @&te&iognition and Disclosure
Requirement. The amendments to tRASB Accounting Standards CodificatiBhincluded in the ASU, among other things, elimintite
requirement that an "SEC filer" (as defined) diselthe date through which subsequent events haredsaluated in both issued and revised
financial statements. This does not change thenegent that SEC filers evaluate subsequent evbrisigh the date the financial statements
are issued.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

We are exposed to market risk in conneatidh changes in interest rates, primarily in castion with three outstanding interest rate
swaps which do not qualify for cash flow hedge aetimg and balances under our credit facility wkayBank National Association. Based on
our average outstanding balances during the yemdeDecember 27, 2009 a 1% change in the LIBORwatéd impact our financial position
and results of operations by approximately $0.4ionilover the next year.

Cash and cash equivalents as of Decemh&0®B were $9.9 million and are primarily investeadnoney market interest bearing
accounts. A hypothetical 10% adverse change iateeage interest rate on our money market caslstiments would have had no material
effect on net loss for the year ended Decembe@09.

Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this Item islinded in Part IV Item 15(a) (1) and (2) of thisrAral Report on Form 10-K.
Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéwnting and Financial Disclosure

None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procesiuas defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15¢ehpigated under the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Ad€3igned to ensure that information required tdibelosed in our reports filed under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegaited within the time periods specified in 8eturities and Exchange Commission's
rules and forms, and that such information is aadated and communicated to our management, inauaiim Principal Executive Officer and
Principal Financial Officer, as appropriate, taalltimely decisions regarding required disclostmedesigning and evaluating the disclosure
controls and procedures, management recognizeanlyatontrols and procedures, no matter how weligshed and operated, can provide only
reasonable assurance of achieving the desiredotatijectives, and management necessarily wasnegtjto apply its judgment in evaluating
the cost benefit relationship of possible conteoid procedures.

As required by Rule 13a-15(e) promulgatedas the Exchange Act, we carried out an evaluatioder the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our Bipal Executive Officer and Principal Financial @, of the effectiveness of the design
and operation of our disclosure controls and procesias of the end of the period covered by timenteBased on the foregoing, our Principal
Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officaancluded that our disclosure controls and procesiwere effective at the reasonable
assurance level as of December 27, 2009.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over FiriahReporting

Our management is responsible for estahlishnd maintaining adequate internal control diremcial reporting, as such term is defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Urtte supervision and with the participation of management, including our Principal
Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officare conducted an evaluation of the effectivenessuointernal control over financial
reporting based on the frameworklimernal Control—Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe
Treadway Commission (COSO Framework). Based oretlasuation, our management concluded that ourriateontrol over financial
reporting is effective as of December 27, 2009.
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Because of its inherent limitations, inedroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in conditions or
that the degree of compliance with the policies pratedures may deteriorate.

Management's assessment over our inteomatat over financial reporting has been auditedasgnt Thornton LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated inrtteport appearing below, which expresses an uifgpghopinion on the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 27, 2009.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogin

There were no changes in our internal @biver financial accounting and reporting (as wedi in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the
Exchange Act) during the fourth quarter of thedisgear ended December 27, 2009 that have majeaifiicted, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over fingalcreporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.

We have audited Kratos Defense & Securitju®ns, Inc.'s internal control over financiapogting as of December 27, 2009, based on
criteria established imternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company's management ismsgge for maintaining effective internal contosler financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting, included in the accomypag Management's Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsipilé to express an opinion on the Company's intexortrol over financial reporting based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wWithdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgetr8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetiefenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etést#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancesdlieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finangigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures that€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasaabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepracedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Kratos Defense & Securitliions, Inc. maintained, in all material respeeféective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 27, 2009, based on @itstablished internal Control—Integrated Framewoitsued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Kratos Defense &r#gSolutions, Inc. as of December 28, 2008 aedddnber 27, 2009, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockhdldgtsty and cash flows for each of the three yeatke period ended December 27, 2009
our report dated March 10, 2010 expressed an uifigdabpinion.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP

San Diego, California
March 10, 2010
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Iltem 9B. Other Information

None

PART Il
Iltem 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this item isanporated by reference to the Registrant's PraateBient or Form 10-K/A, which we will file
with the SEC within 120 days after the end of fis2209.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item isanporated by reference to the Registrant's PraateBent or Form 10-K/A, which we will file
with the SEC within 120 days after the end of fis2@09.

ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aibBnagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item isanporated by reference to the Registrant's PraateBient or Form 10-K/A, which we will file
with the SEC within 120 days after the end of fis2209.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item isanporated by reference to the Registrant's PraateBent or Form 10-K/A, which we will file
with the SEC within 120 days after the end of fisz209.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item isanporated by reference to the Registrant's PraateBient or Form 10-K/A, which we will file
with the SEC within 120 days after the end of fis2@09.

PART IV
Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(@) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schéels

(1) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 28, @t®®ecember 27, 2009
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEated December 31, 2007, December 28, 2008, aodnilmer 27, 2009.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' EquityHferYears Ended December 31, 2007, December 28, 20d December 2z
2009.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded December 31, 2007, December 28, 2008, aoeniimer 27, 2009.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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All schedules for which provision is madete applicable accounting regulations of the SE€not required under the related instruct
or are inapplicable and therefore have been omitted

(2) Exhibits
Incorporated by
Reference
Filing Date/ Filed-
Exhibit Period End Furnished
Number Exhibit Description Form Date Herewith
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of 8K 11/24/0¢
November 21, 2008, by and among Kratos Defen:
Security Solutions, Inc., Dakota Merger Sub, Indd a
Digital Fusion, Inc. Certain exhibits and schedules
referenced in the Agreement and Plan of Merger have
been omitted in accordance with Item 601(b)(2) of
Regulation S-K. A copy of the omitted exhibits and
schedules will be furnished supplementally to the
Securities and Exchange Commission upon req
2.2 Merger Agreement, dated August 8, 2006, by and 8-K 08/14/0¢

among the Registrant, WFI Government Services, Inc.
MRC Merger Registrant, Inc. and Madison Research
Corporation.

2.2 Agreement dated as of March 9, 2007 by and between 10K 12/31/0¢
LCC Wireless Engineering Services Limited and the
Registrant

2.4 Equity Purchase Agreement, dated April 20, 2007, by 10K 12/31/0¢
and between the Registrant and Strategic Project
Services, LLC

2.5 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated May 29, 2007, ¢ 8-K 05/30/0°
between the Registrant and LCC International,

2.€ Asset Purchase Agreement, dated July 7, 2007, dy an  8-K 07/12/0°
between the Registrant and Burgundy Acquisition
Corporation,

2.7 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated November 2, 8-K 11/07/0°
2007, by and among the Registrant, Kratos Goverhmen
Solutions, Inc., Haverstick Acquisition Corporatiand
Haverstick Consulting, In¢

2.8 Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, 8-K 02/21/0¢
dated February 20, 2008 by and among the Registrant
White Shadow, Inc. and SY

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporat 1C-Q 09/30/0:
3.2 Certificate of Ownership and Merger of Kratos 8-K 09/12/0°
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. into Wireless
Facilities, Inc.

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated  10-Q 09/27/0¢
Certificate of Incorporation of Kratos Defense &
Security Solution:

3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Regist 8-K 06/10/0¢
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Incorporated by
Reference

Filing Date/ Filed-
Exhibit Period End Furnished
Number Exhibit Description Form Date Herewith
3.E Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Righ 1C-Q 09/30/0:

Series A Preferred Stoc

3.€ Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights ~ 8-K/A 06/05/0:
Series B Preferred Stoc

3.7 Certificate of Designation of Series C Preferreocst 8-K 12/17/0¢
4.1 Specimen Stock Certificat S-1 08/18/9¢
4.2 Rights Agreement, dated as of December 16, 2004, 8-K 12/17/0¢

between the Registrant and Wells Fargo, I
10.1# 1999 Equity Incentive Plai S1 08/18/9¢

10.2# Form of Stock Option Agreement pursuant to the 1999 S-1/A 09/10/9¢
Equity Incentive Plar

10.# 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and related S-1 08/18/9¢
offering documents

10.4# Form of Indemnity Agreement by and between the 10K 12/28/0¢
Registrant and certain officers and directors ef th
Registrant

10.5# 2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Pl 1C-Q 09/30/0(

10.6# Form of Stock Option Agreement and Grant Notice 10Q 09/30/0(
used in connection with the 2000 Nonstatutory Stock
Option Plan

10.7%# Amended and Restated Severance and Change of 10K 12/31/0¢
Control Agreement dated March 28, 2006 between the
Registrant and Deanna Lur

10.6# Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Pl 1C-K 12/31/0¢
10.9# 2005 Equity Incentive Pla S-8 08/01/0¢

10.1(# Form of Stock Option Agreement pursuant to the 2005  S-8 08/01/0¢
Equity Incentive Plar

10.1# Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement and Form of ~ 8-K 01/17/0°
Notice of Grant under the Registrant's 2005 Eq
Incentive Plan

10.1Z First Lien Credit Agreement among Kratos Defense & 8K 01/07/0¢
Security Solutions, Inc., KeyBank National Associat
as Administrative Agent and Lender and the other
financial institutions patrties thereto and KeyBanc
Capital Markets as lead arranger and book runrated
as of December 31, 20C
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Incorporated by
Reference

Filing Date/ Filed-
Exhibit Period End Furnished
Number Exhibit Description Form Date Herewith
10.1: Second Lien Credit Agreement among Kre 8-K 01/07/0¢
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc., KeyBank Nationa
Association, as Administrative Agent and Lendeg, th
other financial institutions parties thereto and/Banc
Capital Markets as lead arranger and book runrated
as of December 31, 20C
10.1¢ Amendment and Waiver of First Lien Credit 8-K 04/02/0¢
Agreement, dated as of March 27, 2008, by and among
the Registrant, KeyBank National Association as
Administrative Agent and the Lenders party ther
10.1¢ Amendment and Waiver of Second Lien Credit 8-K 04/02/0¢
Agreement, dated as of March 27, 2008, by and among
the Registrant, KeyBank National Association as
Administrative Agent and the Lenders party ther
10.1¢ Second Amendment to First Lien Credit Agreement, 8-K 06/28/0¢

dated as of June 26, 2008, among the Registrant,
KeyBank National Association, as Administrative
Agent and Lender and the other financial institogio
parties thereto and KeyBanc Capital Markets as lead
arranger and book runng

10.1%7 Second Amendment to Second Lien Credit Agreement, 8-K 06/28/0¢
dated as of June 26, 2008, among the Registrant,
KeyBank National Association, as Administrative
Agent and Lender, the other financial institutiqasties
thereto and KeyBanc Capital Markets as lead arrange
and book runne

10.1¢# Amended and Restated Executive Employment 10Q 06/29/0¢
Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2008, by and ktwe
the Registrant and Eric DeMarc

10.1¢* Amended and Restated Executive Employment 10Q 06/29/0¢
Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2008, by and twe
the Registrant and Deanna Lui

10.2(# Amended and Restated Executive Employment 10Q 06/29/0¢
Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2008, by and ktwe
the Registrant and Laura Siec

10.2# Amended and Restated Executive Employment 10Q 06/29/0¢
Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2008, by and ketwe
the Registrant and Laura Siec

10.2z Placement Agent Agreement, dated as of August 27, 8-K 08/27/0¢
2009, by and between the Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc. and B. Riley & Co., LL
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Incorporated by
Reference

Filed-
Furnished
Herewith

Filing Date/
Period End
Form Date

10.2:

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

21.1

23.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

Third Amendment to First Lien Credit Agreeme

dated as of October 16, 2009, among the Registrant,

Key Bank National Association, as Administrative

Agent and Lender and other financial institutioastigs

thereto.

Third Amendment to Second Lien Credit Agreement,
dated as of October 16, 2009, among the Registrant,

Key Bank National Association, as Administrative

Agent and Lender and other financial institutioasties

thereto.

Settlement Agreement and General Release of Claims, 10-Q
dated as of October 16, 2009, among the Registrant,
Key Bank National Association, Field Point IIl, Ltd

and SPF CDO |, Ltc

Sublease Agreement, dated as of December 17, B@
and between Amylin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (Sublgssor

and Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.
(Sublessee

List of Subsidiaries

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting

Firm.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant t
Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2(

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaiwt t
Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2(

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, a
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesyOxI

Act of 2002 for Eric M. DeMarcc

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, a
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesyOxI

Act of 2002 for Deanna Luni

1C-Q ~ 09/27/0¢

09/27/0¢

10Q

09/27/0¢

8-K 08/27/0¢

# Indicates a management contract or compensatonygplarrangement required to be filed as an extaltitis form.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

Date: March 10, 2010

KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY
SOLUTIONS, INC.

By: /s/ ERIC M. DEMARCO

Eric M. DeMarco
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seéeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidielow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ite indicated:

Signature Title Date

/s/ ERIC M. DEMARCO President, Chief Executive Officer and

Director (Principal Executive Officer)

March 10, 201(
Eric M. DeMarca

/s/ DEANNA H. LUND Executive Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial March 10, 2010
Deanna H. Lunt Officer)

/sILAURA L. SIEGAL Vice President and Corporate Contro

(Principal Accounting Officer)

March 10, 2010
Laura L. Siega

/s SCOTT ANDERSON
Director March 10, 2010
Scott Andersot
/s BANDEL CARANO
Director March 10, 2010
Bandel Caran:
/s/ SCOT JARVIS
Director March 10, 2010
Scot Jarvis
/sl SAM LIBERATORE
Director March 10, 2010
Sam Liberatort
/s/ WILLIAM HOGLUND
Director March 10, 2010

William Hoglund
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying cons@itbtlance sheets of Kratos Defense & Securityti®aky Inc. as of December 28, 2008 and
December 27, 2009, and the related consolidatéehséats of operations, stockholders' equity, asth aws for each of the three years in the
period ended December 27, 2009. These financitdments are the responsibility of the Company'sagament. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statemersiscban our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €igat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated finanatdtements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the financial position of K&
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. as of Decem!&r2D08 and December 27, 2009, and the results operations and its cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended Decembe2@1 in conformity with accounting principles gesily accepted in the United States of
America.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting OgatdBoard (United States), Kratos
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.'s internal cohtiver financial reporting as of December 27, 208%ed on criteria establishedimernal
Control—Integrated Framewotiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike Treadway Commission (COSO) and our report
dated March 10, 2010 expressed an unqualified opini

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP

San Diego, California
March 10, 2010
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 28, 2008 and December 27, 2009

(in millions, except par value and number of sharés

Assets

Current asset:

Cash and cash equivalel

Restricted cas

Accounts receivable, n

Income taxes receivab

Prepaid expense

Other current asse

Current assets of discontinued operati

Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill
Intangibles, ne
Deferred tax assi
Other asset
Non current assets of discontinued operat

Total asset
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl

2008 2009

$ 37 % 9¢

0.4 0.4
96.4 78.€
0.7 1.C
S 2.2
6.4 4.7
5.1 2.C
116.2 98.¢
6.4 4.3
152.2 110.2
32.2 26.5
— 0.4
4.4 1.C
1.C 0.4

$ 3124 $ 241.¢

$ 176 $ 18.€

Accrued expense 13.2 9.C
Accrued compensatic 14.5 15.7
Billings in excess of costs and earnings on uncetegl contract 9.3 5.4
Deferred income tax liabilit — 0.4
Accrual for contingent acquisition considerat 3.7 —
Other current liabilitie: 9.9 2.8
Income taxes payab — 0.2
Current portion of lon-term debt 5.9 4.t
Current portion of capital lease obligatic 0.2 0.2
Current liabilities of discontinued operatic 7.1 4.7
Total current liabilities 81.2 61.7
Long-term debt, net of current portic 76.C 50.¢
Capital lease obligatior 0.9 0.7
Other lon¢-term liabilities 5.5 2.8
Non current liabilities of discontinued operatic 1.9 0.€
Total liabilities 165.5 116.7
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, 5,000,000 shares authorized S8rigsnvertible Preferre
Stock, $.001 par value, 10,000 shares outstandiBgeember 28, 2008 an
December 27, 2009 (liquidation preference $5.0iomlat December 27,
2009) — —
Common stock, $.001 par value, 195,000,000 shartbderzed; 12,816,963 al
15,784,591 shares issued and outstanding at Dec&8p2008 and
December 27, 2009, respectivi — —
Additional paic-in capital 503.t 523.(
Accumulated defici (356.€) (398.)
Total stockholders' equi 146.¢ 124.¢

Total liabilities and stockholders' equ

$ 3124 $ 241.¢

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Finan@sti®ents.
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITIES SOLUTIONS, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2007, December 28, 2008 Becember 27, 2009

(in millions, except per share amounts)

2007 2008 2009
Revenue! $ 180.7 $ 286.z2 $ 334.t
Cost of revenue 151.( 228.( 265.2
Gross profi 29.7 58.2 69.8
Selling, general and administrative exper 36.€ 48.¢ 52.¢
Research and development exper — 0.9 1.8
Recovery of unauthorized issuance of stock optistegk optior
investigation and related fees, and litigationlsetent 15t (4.5 (0.2
Impairment of goodwil — 105.¢ 41.3
Impairments and adjustments to the liability foused office spac 1.2 0.3 0.€
Operating loss from continuing operatic (23.6) (93.9 (27.0
Other expense
Interest expense, n 1.2 (20.0 (10.9
Impairment of investments in unconsolidated affél& (1.8 — —
Other income (expenses), 1 0.7 (2.5 0.1
Total other expense, n 2.3 (11.5) (10.9)
Loss from continuing operations before income tz (25.9 (204.%) (37.9)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes from contirgiimperation: 1.3 (0.7) 1.C
Loss from continuing operatiol (27.2) (204.0 (38.9)
Loss from discontinued operatio (13.6¢) (7.2 3.2
Net loss $ (40.8) $ (111.0) $ (415
Basic loss per common sha
Loss from continuing operatiol $ (3.67) $ (11.19 $ (2.7¢)
Loss from discontinued operatio (1.89 (0.77) (0.29)
Net loss per common sha $ (551 $ (11.99 $ (2.99
Diluted loss per common shai
Loss from continuing operatiol $ (3.67) $ (11.19 $ (2.7¢
Loss from discontinued operatio (1.89 (0.77) (0.29)
Net loss per common sha $ (6551 $ (11.99 $ (2.99
Weighted average common shares outstani
Basic 7.4 9.3 13.¢
Diluted 74 9.3 13.¢

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financ@&biBents.
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

Years ended December 31, 2007, December 28, 2008 Becember 27, 2009

Balance,
December 31,
2006
Issuance o

common stoc
for exercise @
stock options
Common stocl
issued for
acquisitions
Paid-in capital
for contingent
acquisition
consideratior
Adjustment for
initial
adoption of
FASB
ASC 740
Income Taxe
Stoclk-basec
compensatiol
Net loss ant
total
comprehensiy
loss

Balance,
December 31,
2007

Stock issued fo
Employee
Stock
Purchase Pla

Common stock
issued for
acquisitions

Stock options
issued for
acquisitions

Paid in capital
and common
stock issued
for contingent
consideratior

Stock-based
compensatiol

Net loss ant
total
comprehensiy
loss

Balance,
December 28,

(in millions)

Additional Total
Preferred Stock Common Stock Pali(lj(-)lr:'na Accumulated Stock?\;ders'
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Equity
74 $ $ 3917 $ (204.6) $ 187.1
0.5 12.C — 12.C
— 74 — 74
— — (0.2) (0.1)
— 1.6 — 1.6
— — (40.6) (40.9)
7.8 412.7 (245.5) 167.2
— 0.2 — 0.2
4.8 80.2 — 80.2
— 7.0 — 7.0
0.1 2.3 — 2.3
— 1.1 — 1.1
— — (111.9) (111.9)




2008

Stock issued fo
Employee
Stock
Purchase Pla

Issuance o
common stoc
for exercise a
stock options
and warrant:

Issuance o
common stoc

Paid in capital
and common
stock issued
for contingent
consideratior

Stock-based
compensatiol

Net loss ant
total
comprehensi
loss

Balance,

December 27,
2009

— —  12¢ — 503.F (356.6) 146.¢
— — 0.1 — 0.4 — 0.4
— — — — 0.1 — 0.1
— — 2.6 — 17. — 17.
— — 0.3 — 0.2) — 0.2
— — — — 1.7 — 1.7
— — — = = (41.5) (41.5)
—$ — 156 % — $ 5230 % (398) % 124

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Finan@sti®ents.
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2007, December 28, 2008 Becember 27, 2009

(in millions)
2007 2008 2009
Operating activities
Net loss $ (40.9 $ (111.) $ (419
Less: Loss from discontinued operatic (13.¢) (7.2 (3.2
Loss from continuing operatiol (27.2 (104.00 (38.9)
Adjustments to reconcile loss from continuing ogieres to net cas
provided by (used in) operating activities from tioning
operations
Depreciation and amortizatic 4.3 7.3 8.3
Deferred income taxe 0.7 (2.0 —
Accrual for litigation settlemer 4.9 — (0.5
Goodwill impairment charge — 105.¢ 41.3
Asset impairment chargt 2.5 0.2 —
Disposal of property and equipme — 0.4 —
Accelerated amortization of deferred financing s — — 0.7
Provision for doubtful accoun 0.5 11 0.4
Stoclk-based compensatic 0.8 1.1 1.7
Mark to market on sway — 1.7 (0.2)
Change in accrual for unused office sp — — 0.€
Deferred tax ass! — — (0.9
Deferred income tax liabilit — — 0.4
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acqaisiti
Accounts receivabl 5.3 (2.9 17.4
Prepaid expenst (0.2) 4.2 1.3
Other asset (4.9 5.E 4.8
Accounts payabl 1.3 (9.6) 1.8
Accrued expense 2.1 (2.0 (4.0
Accrued compensatic (1.9 (2.9 14
Billings in excess of costs and earnings on uncetegd
contracts 0.4 (2.7 (3.9
Accrual for contingent acquisition considerat 14 0.7 (0.2)
Income tax receivable and paya 1.6 0.t 0.t
Accrual for unused office spa (0.2) (0.7) (1.6
Other liabilities 10.C (6.9 (5.5
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activitiem
continuing operation (0.8 (4.5) 26.2
Investing activities
Sale/maturity of sho-term investment — 0.2 —
Cash paid for contingent acquisition considera (8.9 — (3.6)
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acqu (63.9) 1.2 (1.2
Proceeds/(payments) from the disposition of disoolet
operations 57.2 (0.2 (2.9
Cash transferred (to) from restricted c 1.0 (0.9 —
Capital expenditure (0.9 (0.9 (0.9
Net cash used in investing activities from contiguoperation (15.9) (2.9 (7.5)
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

Years ended December 31, 2007, December 28, 2008 Becember 27, 2009

(in millions)
2007 2008 2009
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net oarg=micost $ — ¢ — $ 17k
Proceeds from exercise of restricted stock unitgleyee stock
options, and employee stock purchase | — 0.2 0.€
Payments of subordinated d¢ — — (2.1
Borrowings under credit facilit 88.t 7.8 22.t
Repayments under credit facili (64.0 (4.€) (46.9
Repayment of capital lease obligatic (0.9 (0.2 (0.2
Debt issuance cos (3.0 (0.5 (0.5
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activifiesn
continuing operation 21.1 2.8 9.1
Net cash flows from continuing operatic 4.9 (4.0 9.€
Cash flows from discontinued operatic
Operating cash flow (1.2 (3.4

Investing cash flow (1.6) — —
Financing cash flow —
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equis: — — —

Net cash flows from discontinued operatit (1.6) 1.2 (3.9
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 3.3 (5.2 6.2
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 5.6 8.¢ 3.7
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ 89 ¢ 37 ¢ 9¢
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati

Cash paid during the year for inter $ 28 % 87 $ 7.7

Net cash (received) paid during the year for incoaxes $ 1499%$ 12 ¢ oz
Non-cash investing and financing activitit

Common stock and stock options issued for acqois $ 12 $ 87z $ —

Paid in capital for contingent acquisition consit&m $ 74 % 232 ¢ (02

Liability for contingent cash considerati $ 12 % — $ —
Supplemental disclosures of r-cash investing and financir

transactions

Fair value of assets acquired in acquisiti $ 1111 $ 1168 $ —

Fixed assets finance $ 12 $ — $ —

Liabilities assumed in acquisitiol $ 20 $ 23¢ $ —

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Finan@sti®ents.
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 27, 2009
Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Acounting Policies
(a) Description of Business

Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Ir€ratos or the Company) was initially incorporatadhe state of New York on December 19,
1994, commenced operations in March 1995 and wasamorated in Delaware in 1998. The Company ignaovative provider of mission
critical engineering, information technology (ITersices and warfighter solutions. It works primafibr the U.S. government and federal
government agencies, but it also performs worlstate and local agencies and commercial custotterzincipal services are related to, but
are not limited to, Command, Control, CommunicagicBomputing, Combat Systems, Intelligence, Suarmk and Reconnaissance (C5ISR);
weapons systems lifecycle support and sustainmalitary weapon range operations and technicalisesy missile, rocket and weapons
system test and evaluation; missile and rocketioridaunch services; public safety, security andsillance systems; modeling and
simulation; unmanned aerial vehicle (UAV) systears] advanced network engineering and informatiohrtelogy services. The Company
offers its customers solutions and expertise tsrtgheir mission critical needs by leveragingsidls across its core service areas.

The Company's business consists of twortaple segments: (1) Kratos Government SolutiorG§Kwhich provides engineering,
information technology and weapons systems to tddstate, and local government agencies, but pilyrtae DoD; and (2) Public Safety and
Security (PSS), which provides system design, depémt, integration, monitoring and support servilmegpublic safety, security and
surveillance networks for state and local governsiand commercial customers.

Prior to 2008, the Company was also anpeddent provider of outsourced engineering and oxtd@eployment services, security
systems engineering and integration services dmet ééchnical services for the wireless communicetindustry, the U.S. government and
enterprise customers. In 2006 and 2007, the Compadgrtook a transformation strategy whereby iedied its commercial wireless-related
businesses and chose to pursue business withdemfgovernment, primarily the DoD, through stgiteacquisitions.

On September 12, 2007, the Company chaitgedme from Wireless Facilities, Inc. to Kratosfénse & Security Solutions, Inc. The
Company's new name reflects its revised focusdefense contractor and security systems integfatdhe federal government and for state
and local agencies. In connection with its namengeathe Company changed its NASDAQ Global Markating symbol to "KTOS". All
previous financial statements prior to Septembe2027 were issued under the Company's previoug ndfireless Facilities, Inc.

(b) Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements oeline accounts of Kratos and its wholly-owned ®lidses for which all inter-company
transactions have been eliminated in consolidaioatos and its subsidiaries are collectively nefdrto herein as the "Company.”

Investments in unconsolidated affiliates accounted for using the cost method as the Coynpans less than 20% and has no signifit
influence over the affiliates.
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 27, 2009
Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Acounting Policies (Continued)

(c) Fiscal Year

The Company's year end was on the lasbflthe year, December 31 with interim fiscal periods ending on the last adhe calendar
month of each quarter for the fiscal year 20072008 and 2009, the Company's year end was th8&lemstay of the year with interim fiscal
periods ending on the last Sunday of the last moh#ach calendar quarter. The fiscal years endeember 31, 2007, December 28, 2008,
and December 27, 2009 all contained 52 calendaksvee

(d) Reclassifications

The consolidated balance sheets and statsroEoperations and cash flows have been refied$o present the discontinued operations
of the Company's Southeast division of the Pubdifey & Security segment.

(e) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America
(US GAAP) requires management to make estimatesssuimptions that affect the reported amountsstasand liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date efitancial statements and the reported amountsvehues and expenses during the reporting
period. Such estimates include revenue recognitiboywance for doubtful accounts, valuation of ldivggd assets including identifiable
intangibles and goodwill, accounting for incomedsuincluding the related valuation allowance ondéierred tax asset and uncertain tax
positions, accruals for partial self-insurance,tocaencies and litigation and contingent acquisitt@nsideration. In the future, the Company
may realize actual results that differ from therent reported estimates and if the estimates tkatave used change in the future, such che
could have a material impact on the Company's dimtaed financial position, results of operatiomsl &ash flows.

(H Reverse Stock Split

On September 10, 2009, the Company contpketefor-10 reverse split of its common stock. @dimmon stock, stock options, and
warrants to purchase common stock and earningshaee amounts have been retroactively restatddlasieverse stock split occurred at the
beginning of the periods presented.

(g) Revenue Recognition

The Company generates almost all of itemere from three different types of contractual mgeaments: cost-plus-fee contracts, time-and-
materials contracts, and fixed-price contracts.€Ree on cost-plus-fee contracts is recognizeda@xtent of allowable costs incurred plus an
estimate of the applicable fees earned. The Compangiders fixed fees under cost-plus-fee conttadie earned in proportion to the
allowable costs incurred in performance of the @oitand recognizes the relevant portion of theeetqul fee to be awarded by the customer at
the time such fee can be reasonably estimatedd lmstactors such as our prior award experiencecamimunications with the customer
regarding performance, including any interim parfance evaluations rendered by the customer.
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 27, 2009

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Acounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue on time-and-material contracts is recognia¢he extent of billable rates times hours deldd for services provided, to the extent of
material cost for products delivered to customansi to the extent of expenses incurred on behalfeoEustomers.

The Company has three basic categorieged price contracts: fixed unit price, fixed prilexel of effort, and fixed price-completion.
Revenue recognition methods on fixed-price congradll vary depending on the nature of the work #mel contract terms. Revenues on fixed-
price service contracts are recorded as work f®peed in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletidd "Revenue Recognitidn(SAB 104).
SAB 104 generally requires revenue to be deferreiiall of the following have occurred: (1) thasea contract in place, (2) delivery has
occurred, (3) the price is fixed or determinable] &) collectability is reasonably assured. Reesmn fixed- price contracts that require
delivery of specific items may be recorded based price per unit as units are delivered. Revenuéed price contracts in which the
Company is paid a specific amount to provide sewvior a stated period of time is recognized rgtalbér the service period.

A portion of the fixed price-completion ¢oacts are within the scope of the Financial AcdmgnStandards Board Accounting Standards
Codification(FASB ASC) Topic 605 Revenue Recognition (Topif.608r these contracts, revenue is recognized ubagercentage-of-
completion method based on the ratio of total cimstgrred to date compared to estimated total dostemplete the contract. Estimates of ¢
to complete include material, direct labor, overhesnd allowable indirect expenses for governmentracts. These cost estimates are
reviewed and, if necessary, revised monthly onrdaraot-byeontract basis. If, as a result of this review, aggment determines that a loss «
contract is probable, then the full amount of eated loss is charged to operations in the peri@determined that it is probable a loss will be
realized from the full performance of the contrdigtcertain instances in which it is impracticaktstimate the final outcome of the project
margin, but it is certain that the Company will imtur a loss on the project, the Company may rkoevenue equal to cost incurred, at zero
margin. In the event that the cost incurred to daag be in excess of the funded contract valueCthrapany may defer those costs until the
associated contract value has been funded by #terner. Once the final estimate of the outcoméefaroject margin is determined, the
Company will record revenue using the percentagesaipletion method of accounting based on the kHtiotal costs incurred to date
compared to the estimated total costs to comphet@itoject.

Significant management judgments and eséisyancluding but not limited to the estimatedtsde complete projects, must be made and
used in connection with the revenue recognizecdhjnaecounting period. A cancellation, schedule ylaia modification of a fixed-price
contract which is accounted for using the percesvafgcompletion method may adversely affect ousgnmargins for the period in which the
contract is modified or cancelled. Under certamncwinstances, a cancellation or negative modificatimuld result in the Company having to
reverse revenue that was recognized in a prioo@gethus significantly reducing the amount of ravenrecognized for the period in which the
adjustment is made. Correspondingly, a positiveifitadion may positively affect gross margins. kidition, a schedule delay or modificatic
can result in an increase in estimated cost to tetethe project, which would also result in an &ojpto gross margins. Material differences
may result in the amount and timing of our revefareany period if management made different judgrmen utilized different estimates.
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 27, 2009
Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Acounting Policies (Continued)

It is the Company's policy to review anyaaigement containing software or software deliviesabnd services against the criteria
contained ifFASB ASC Topic 985 Software (Topic 9&H)der the provisions dfopic 985the Company reviews the contract value of software
deliverables and services and determines allocatibthe contract value based on Vendor Specifie@ive Evidence (VSOE) or fair value
each of the elements. All software arrangementsirieg significant production, modification, or domization of the software are accounted
for in conformity withTopic 605.

The Company's contracts may include th&ipian of more than one of its services. In thaseaions, the Company applies the guidance
of Topic 605. Accordingly, for applicable arrangements, reveragmgnition includes the proper identificationseparate units of accounting
and the allocation of revenue across all elemesed on relative fair values.

Under certain of the Company's contractumeingements, the Company may also recognize revienout-of-pocket expenses in
accordance witffopic 605.Depending on the contractual arrangement, thesensgs may be reimbursed with or without a fee.

Under certain of its contracts, the Compprgvides supplier procurement services and maseoaits customers. The Company records
revenue on these arrangements on a gross or riglmascordance witfiopic 605,depending on the specific circumstances of the
arrangement. The Company considers the followiitgré, among others, for recording revenue onocsgpor net basis:

(1)  Whether the Company acts as a principal in thestretion;

(2) Whether the Company takes title to the prodt

3) Whether the Company assumes risks and rewardsroérsiip, such as risk of loss for collection, detivor returns;
(4)  Whether the Company serves as an agent or brokbrcampensation on a commission or fee basis; and

(5) Whether the Company assumes the credit risk foatheunt billed to the customer subsequent to dsii

For federal contracts, the Company foll&WS. government procurement and accounting staedarassessing the allowability and the
allocability of costs to contracts. Due to the #igance of the judgments and estimation processeslikely that materially different amounts
could be recorded if different assumptions werealusdf the underlying circumstances were to chafige Company closely monitors
compliance with, and the consistent applicatioritefcritical accounting policies related to cowtraccounting. Business operations personnel
conduct periodic contract status and performangews. When adjustments in estimated contract neegior costs are required, any signifi
changes from prior estimates are included in egmin the current period. Also, regular and reagrevaluations of contract cost, scheduling
and technical matters are performed by managenaeabpnel who are independent from the businesstipes personnel performing work
under the contract. Costs incurred and allocatemitdracts with the U.S. government are scrutinfbedompliance with regulatory standards
by the Company's personnel, and are subject td bydihe Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA).
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 27, 2009
Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Acounting Policies (Continued)

From time to time, the Company may proce#@t work based on client direction prior to thengaetion and signing of formal contract
documents. The Company has a formal review prdoesgproving any such work. Revenue associatell suvith work is recognized only
when it can be reliably estimated and realizatioprbbable. The Company bases its estimates oiopsegxperiences with the client,
communications with the client regarding fundinatss, and its knowledge of available funding far tontract or program. As of
December 28, 2008 and December 27, 2009, approadyrts®.9 million and $6.8 million, respectively, e Company's unbilled accounts
receivable balance were under an authorizatiomdoged or work order from its customers where m&dmpurchase order had not yet been
received.

(h) Derivative Instruments

In managing interest rate risk exposure @ompany entered into interest rate swap agresméntinterest rate swap is a contractual
exchange of interest payments between two paistandard interest rate swap involves the payrokatfixed rate times a notational amount
by one party in exchange for a floating rate titessame notational amount from another party néexést rates change, the difference to be
paid or received is accrued and recognized aseisttexpense or income over the life of the agreenidéese instruments are not entered into
for trading purposes. Counterparties to the Comigdnierest rate swap agreements are major finlinsigtutions. In accordance withASB
ASC Topic 815 Derivatives and Hedg, the Company recognizes interest rate swap agrgsroa the consolidated balance sheet at fair value
The interest rate swap agreements are marked feimaith changes in fair value recognized in eitbitrer comprehensive income (loss) or in
the carrying value of the hedged portions of fixetk debt, as applicable (hedge accounting).

Hedge accounting is discontinued when dteitermined that a derivative instrument is nohhjigffective as a hedge. Hedge accounting is
also discontinued when: (1) the derivative instrotrexpires; is sold, terminated or exercised; aroidonger designated as a hedge instrument
because it is unlikely that a forecasted transaatil occur; (2) a hedged firm commitment no longeeets the definition of a firm
commitment; or (3) management determines that datimn of the derivative as a hedging instrumemiisonger appropriate.

When hedge accounting is discontinueddtésative instrument will be either terminatedntioue to be carried on the balance sheet at
fair value, or redesignated as the hedging instntrimeeither a cash flow or fair value hedge, & tielationship meets all applicable hedging
criteria. Any asset or liability that was previopsécorded as a result of recognizing the value fifm commitment will be removed from the
balance sheet and recognized as a gain or lossri@nt period earnings. Any gains or losses thaewecumulated in other comprehensive
income from hedging a forecasted transaction veiltdcognized immediately in current period earniifgsis probable that the forecasted
transaction will not occur. (See Note 9 for additibinformation with respect to derivative instrums)

(i) Research and Development
Costs incurred in research and developmetitities are expensed as incurred in accordaritteRASB ASC Topic 985 Software.
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 27, 2009
Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Acounting Policies (Continued)
(i) Income Taxes

The Company records deferred tax assetdiaitities for the future tax consequences atttéble to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assetsiabdilies and their respective tax bases and djpgyréoss and tax credit carryforwards.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured) #hacted tax rates expected to apply to taxabteme in the years in which those tempo
differences are expected to be realized. The effiecteferred tax assets and liabilities of a changax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date.

The Company maintains a valuation allowamté¢he deferred tax assets for which it is mdeelyi than not that the Company will not
realize the benefits of these tax assets in fuaxgeriods. The valuation allowance is based timates of future taxable income by tax
jurisdiction in which the Company operates, the hanof years over which the deferred tax asseldeitecoverable, and scheduled rever
of deferred tax liabilities.

In accordance with the recognition stangda&stablished bFASB ASC Topic 740 Income Tax#éise Company makes a comprehensive
review of its portfolio of uncertain tax positioregularly. In this regard, an uncertain tax positiepresents the Company's expected treatment
of a tax position taken in a filed tax return, ¢armped to be taken in a future tax return or claimich has not been reflected in measuring
income tax expense for financial reporting purpotksil these positions are sustained by the tagwdporities, the company has not
recognized the tax benefits resulting from suclitipss and reports the tax effects as a liabildy dincertain tax positions in its consolidated
statements of financial position.

(k) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based cosgim in accordance withASB ASC Topic 718 Compensation-Stock Compengatigic
718). All of the Company's stock compensation planscareidered equity plans undespic 718, and compensation expense recognized i
of estimated forfeitures over the vesting periode Tompany issues stock options, and stock awadksr its existing plans. The fair value of
stock options is estimated on the date of gramtgugiBlack-Scholes option-pricing model and is eggel on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period of the options, which is generatlyrfyears. The fair value of stock awards is deiteethbased on the closing market price of
Company's common stock on the grant date and isstdj at each reporting date based on the amoshitoés ultimately expected to vest.
Compensation expense for stock awards is expensgdite vesting period, usually four to ten yediee Company has no awards with market
or performance conditions. Compensation expensstéok issued under our employee stock purchaseipkestimated on the beginning dat
the offering period using a Black-Scholes optioitipg model and is expensed on a straight-linesbagér the period of the offering, which is
generally 6 months.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, Dleee28, 2008 and December 27, 2009, there wasanemental tax benefit from stock
options exercised in the period due to expectedosses for the year. The Company recorded caglivextfrom the exercise of stock options
of $0.2 million in 2009, respectively. No stock iopis were exercised in 2007 or 2008. The followtgigle shows the amounts
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recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statemient2007, 2008 and 2009 for share-based compemsatipense related to stock options,
stock awards and to stock options offered undeeaysloyee stock purchase plan (in millions).

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 28, December 27,
2007 2008 2009
Cost of revenue $ 0C $ 0.C $ 0.C
Selling, general and administrative exper 0.8 1.1 1.7
Total cost of employee sta-based compensatic
included in operating loss from continuing
operations, before income t 0.8 1.1 1.7
Amount charged to loss from discontinued operat 0.8 0.C 0.C
Total charged against operatic $ 1€ $ 11 % 1.7
Impact on net loss per common sh:
Basic $ (0.229) $ (0.12) $ (0.13)
Diluted $ (0.229) $ (0.12) $ (0.19)

() NetIncome (Loss) per Common Share

The Company calculates net income (lossspare in accordance wiEASB ASC Topic 260 Earnings Per Share (Topic 280)er
Topic 260, basic net income (loss) per common share is ket by dividing net income (loss) by the weightegrage number of common
shares outstanding during the reporting periodutBd net income (loss) per common share refleetetfects of potentially dilutive securities
(in millions).

2007 2008 2009

Anti-dilutive weighted shares from sto

options excluded from calculatic 0.8 1.8 1.€
Anti-dilutive weighted shares fro

preferred stock excluded from

calculation 0.1 0.1 0.1

(m) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains an allowance for tfoiaccounts for estimated losses resulting fromihability of its customers to make
required payments, which results in bad debt ex@ddanagement periodically determines the adeqaohttyis allowance by evaluating the
comprehensive risk profiles of all individual custer receivable balances including, but not limtiedhe customer's financial condition, credit
agency reports, financial statements and overaleatieconomic conditions. Additionally, on certamntracts whereby the Company performs
services for a prime/general contractor, a spetifiercentage of the invoiced trade accounts rebksivaay be retained by the customer until
the project is completed. The Company periodicaiews all retainages for collectability and retallowances for doubtful accounts when
deemed appropriate, based on its assessment a$sbeiated credit risks. Changes to estimatesrifami value are recorded as

82




Table of Contents

KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 27, 2009

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Acounting Policies (Continued)

adjustments to revenue and not as a componeng@ilitwance for doubtful accounts. Individual acutsureceivable are written off to the
allowance for doubtful accounts when the Compargpb®es aware of a specific customer's inability &ehits financial obligation, and all
collection efforts are exhausted.

The following table outlines the balancdhl® Company's Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 2807, 2008 and 2009. The table identifies
the additional provisions each year as well asthite-offs that utilized the allowance (in millions

Balance at Balance
Beginning Write -offs/ at
of End of
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Year Provisions Recoveries  Year
Year ended December &
2007 $ 03$% 05$ (0.9% 06
Year ended December 28,
2008 $ 06%$ 11% (06% 11
Year ended December 27,
2009 $ 11% 048 (0N$ o8

(n) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company's cash equivalents consigsdfighly liquid investments with an original maturof three months or less when purchased
by the Company.

The Company has restricted cash accourdpmioximately $0.4 million at December 28, 2008 Brecember 27, 2009, which are requ
to collateralize a credit card program and a depekiting to the run out of a now terminated $e#fured workers compensation program.

(o) Inventory

Inventories which are comprised primarifysopplies including parts and materials are statetie lower of cost or market. The Company
regularly reviews inventory quantities on handufatpurchase commitments with its suppliers, apdettimated utility of its inventory. If the
Company review indicates a reduction in utilitydlcarrying value, it reduces its inventory to avrest basis. As of December 28, 2008 and
December 27, 2009, the Company had $1.7 milliong&inél million, respectively, of inventories whiclere reflected in other current assets of
continuing operations on the consolidated balaheets.

(p) Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment consists primarfilgamputer equipment, software, leasehold improvemand office-related equipment and is
recorded at cost. Equipment acquired under cdpiaks is recorded at the present value of thesfutinimum lease payments. Depreciation is
calculated using the straight-line method overesimated useful life of each asset, which is onthitee years for computer equipment, five
years for furniture and office equipment, and fisgen years for software for the Company's enisgmystems. Equipment and facilit
acquired under capital leases are amortized oeestbrter of the lease term or the estimated ufidf the asset. Improvements, which
significantly improve and extend the useful lifeaof asset, are capitalized and depreciated oveshiirter of the lease period or the estimated
useful life. Expenditures for maintenance and nespaie charged to operations as incurred.

83




Table of Contents

KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 27, 2009
Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Acounting Policies (Continued)

In accordance witRASB ASC Topic 350 Intangibles—Goodwill and Othtbe Company expenses all internal-use softwastsdéocurred
in the preliminary project stage and capitalizes$aie direct costs associated with the developraedtpurchase of internal-use software within
property and equipment. Capitalized costs are arearbn a straight-line basis over the estimateduldives of the software.

(q) Leases

The Company uses its incremental borrowiétg in the assessment of lease classificatiompitat or operating and defines the initial
lease term to include renewal options determindibtoeasonably assured. The Company conducts mperarimarily under operating leases.

Most lease agreements contain incentiveteftant improvements, rent holidays, or rent edimal clauses. For incentives for tenant
improvements, the Company records a deferred iagitity and amortizes the deferred rent over grentof the lease as a reduction to rent
expense. For rent holidays and rent escalatiorselduring the lease term, the Company recordsmaimirental expenses on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. For purposescoignizing lease incentives, the Company usesdteed initial possession as the
commencement date, which is generally when the @oms given the right of access to the space agéhb to make improvements in
preparation for intended use.

(r) Acquisitions

Acquisitions are accounted for using thechase method and the results of acquired busisessencluded in the financial statements
from the dates of acquisition. Under the purchasthod of accounting, the cost, including transactiosts, are allocated to the underlying net
tangible and identifiable intangible assets, basetheir respective estimated fair values. The exad the purchase price over the estimated
fair values of the net assets acquired is recoagegbodwill.

(s) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, Net

In accordance with the provisiondF#SB ASC Topic 350 Intangibles—Goodwill and OtAep{c 350), the Company performs
impairment tests for goodwill as of the last dayath fiscal year, or when evidence of potentigldinment exists. When it is determined that
impairment has occurred, a charge to operatiorecisrded. Goodwill and other purchased intangibetbalances are included in the
identifiable assets of the business segment towthiey have been assigned. Any goodwill impairmastyell as the amortization of other
purchased intangible assets, is charged agains¢spective business segments' operating income.

In accordance withopic 350, the Company classifies intangible assets inteetlvategories: (1) intangible assets with finitedisubject
to amortization, (2) intangible assets with indiééiives not subject to amortization, and (3) gedld The Company tests intangible assets \
finite lives for impairment if conditions exist thimdicate the carrying value may not be recoveralich conditions may include an economic
downturn in a geographic market or a change iraisessment of future operations. The Company reesrimpairment charge when the
carrying value of the finite lived intangible asgehot recoverable by the cash flows generated tie use of the asset.
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The Company determines the useful livegsi@ftifiable intangible assets after considering specific facts and circumstances related to
each intangible asset. Factors considered whemdieieg useful lives include the contractual terfrany agreement, the history of the asset,
the Company's long-term strategy for the use ofdset, any laws or other local regulations whmhict impact the useful life of the asset, and
other economic factors, including competition apdcific market conditions. Intangible assets thatdeemed to have finite lives are
amortized, generally on a straight-line basis, dleir useful lives, ranging from 1 to 12 years.

(t) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of

Long-lived assets and certain identifiahtangibles are reviewed for impairment in accomtawithFASB ASC Topi860 Property,
Plant, and Equipmer, whenever events or changes in circumstancesatglibat the carrying amount of an asset may not¢dmverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used issured by a comparison of the carrying amount obeets to future net cash flows
(undiscounted and without interest) expected tgdieerated by the asset. If such assets are coegdittebe impaired, the impairment to be
recognized is measured by the amount by which ahgying amount of the assets exceeds the fair wafltiee assets. Assets to be disposed of
are reported at the lower of the carrying amourfaivrvalue less costs to sell.

(u) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic 825 Financial Instrumergquires that fair values be disclosed for the Camyfs financial instruments. The carrying
amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accountyabts accounts payable, accrued expenses, lHllimgxcess of costs and earnings on
uncompleted contracts, and income taxes payalpeogimate fair value due to the short-term naturhese instruments. The fair value of the
Company's long-term debt and capital lease obbgatis estimated based on the quoted market gocéise same or similar issues or on the
current rates offered to the Company for debt efghme remaining maturities.

(v) Concentrations and Uncertainties

The Company maintains cash balances atwafinancial institutions and such balances comynexceed the $100,000 insured
(temporarily increased to $250,000 through Deceritte2013) amount by the Federal Deposit Insur&arporation. The Company has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and maeagéelieves that the Company is not exposed teamjficant credit risk with respect to
such cash and cash equivalents.

Financial instruments, which subject therPany to potential concentrations of credit rigksist principally of the Company's billed and
unbilled accounts receivable. The Company's acea@aeivable result from sales to customers witienfederal government, state and local
agencies and with commercial customers in varindastries. The Company performs ongoing creditwatains of its commercial customers.
Credit is extended based on evaluation of the austs financial condition. Collateral is not reqar The accounts receivable are recorded at
invoiced amount and do not bear interest. See Mdfier a discussion of our significant customers.
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As of March 3, 2010, the Company has $&Tilbon of debt outstanding under the New Creditifity (See Note 17 Subsequent Events)
with debt service requirements of $3.5 million, lexiing interest, in 2010. The Company intends tadfits cash requirements with cash flows
from operating activities, and borrowings under teav Credit Facility, and management believes tiseseces of liquidity should be sufficie
to meet the Company's cash needs for at leasetitel@ months. The Company's quarterly and anmedating results have fluctuated in the
past and may vary in the future due to a varietfacfors, many of which are external to its conthothe conditions in its industry deteriorate
its customers cancel or postpone projects or ifxbmpany is unable to sufficiently increase itseraves or further reduce its expenses, the
Company may experience, in the future, a signitiéamg-term negative impact to its financial reswdhd cash flows from operations. In such a
situation, the Company could fall out of compliamdgéh its financial and other covenants which,at maived, could limit its liquidity and
capital resources.

(w) Debt Issuance Costs

Fees paid to obtain debt financing or amegrdts under such debt financing are treated asisll#nce costs and are capitalized and
amortized over the expected term of the related. détese payments are shown as a financing activitiye consolidated statements of cash
flows.

(x) Interest expense, net
Interest expense, net in the Consolidatate®ents of Operations is summarized in the falgwable (in millions):

2007 2008 2009

Interest expense incurred primat
on the Company's Credit Facili $ (1.6) $ (10.9) $ (10.6)
Miscellaneous interest incon 04 0.3 0.2

Interest expense, n $ (1.2 $ (10.0 $ (109

(y) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Other than as described below, no new atauoy pronouncement issued or effective duringfigeal year has had or is expected to have a
material impact on the Consolidated Financial States.

On July 1, 2009 the Financial Accountingriétards Board officially launched the Accountingri8tards Codificatio(FASB ASCas the
authoritative source of generally accepted accagnirinciples in the United States. Rules and priive releases of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) under federal secut#igs are also sources of authoritative GAAP for SE@istrantsFASB ASC Topic 105
Generally Accepted Accounting Principleseffective for financial statements issued faeiim and annual periods ending after September 15,
2009. The adoption of this standard did not hameaterial impact on our consolidated financial gositresults of operations or cash flows.
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In August 2009, the SEC issuaterpretive Release No. 33-9062, "Commission QuideRegarding the Financial Accounting Standards
Board's Accounting Standards Codificaticregarding the impact of the FASB Codification ontaim SEC rules, regulations, and interpretive
releases and staff accounting bulletins. The SB@ed that references to FASB standards in cuB&a text should correspond to the rules in
theFASB ASC TheFASB ASQloes not supersede any SEC rules or regulatioms=A8B ASGhould not be considered the authoritative
source for SEC guidance.

The disclosure requirementsF#SB ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and@istes (Topic 820)which took effect on
January 1, 2008, are presented in Note 9. On Jadu@009, the Company implemented the previousfered provisions of opic 820for
nonfinancial assets and liabilities recorded at\alue, as required.

The disclosure requirementsF#SB ASC Topic 815 Derivatives and Hedgimdnich took effect on January 1, 2009, are presxbimt
Note 9.

The accounting requirementd#SB ASC Topic 805 Business Combinatiomkich took effect on January 1, 2009, were adbpte had
no impact on the Company's Consolidated Finand&tkesents.

The accounting and presentation requiresneffASB ASC Topic 810 Consolidatipwhich took effect on January 1, 2009, had no ict
on the Consolidated Financial Statements as thep@oys non-controlling interests are not material.

As of September 27, 2009, the Company impletedFASB ASC Topic 825 Financial Instrument (Topic 82®pic 825amends previous
accounting literature to require disclosures alf@utvalue of financial instruments in interim aghhas in annual financial statements. The
amendment chang@ASB ASC Topic 270 Interim Reporting (Topic 27@)require those disclosures in all interim fioiah statementslopic
825is effective for periods ending after June 15, 2009he second quarter of 2009, the Company impleedTopic 825andTopic 270. See
Note 9, "Fair Value Measuremen

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2089Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangemenighe new standard changes the
requirements for establishing separate units od@ating in a multiple element arrangement and meguhe allocation of arrangement
consideration to each deliverable based on thévelselling price. The selling price for each defiable is based on vendor-specific objective
evidence (VSOE) if available, third-party evidenfcéSOE is not available, or estimated selling pritneither VSOE or thirgharty evidence i
available. ASU 2009-13 is effective for revenueaagements entered into in fiscal years beginningrafter June 15, 2010. The Company
does not expect that the provisions of the newangd will have a material effect on its Consolideéfgnancial Statements.

In February 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2020Subsequent Events (Topic 855), Amendments to @&t&iognition and Disclosure
Requirement. The amendments to tiRASB Accounting Standards CodificatiBhincluded in the ASU, among other things, eliméntite
requirement that an "SEC filer" (as defined) diselthe date through which subsequent events haredwaluated in both issued and revised
financial statements. This does not change theinegent that SEC filers evaluate subsequent evbrisigh the date the financial statements
are issued.
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The Company performs its annual impairntest for goodwill in accordance witFASB ASC Topic 350 Intangibles—Goodwill and Other
(Topic 350)as of the last day of the fiscal year or when aweeof potential impairment exists.

The Company assesses goodwill for impaitraethe reporting unit level, which is definedaasoperating segment or one level below an
operating segment, referred to as a componentCbingpany determines its reporting units by firshitfging its operating segments, and then
assessing whether any components of these segomastitute a business for which discrete financidrmation is available and where
segment management regularly reviews the operegsigts of that component. The Company aggregai@panents within an operating
segment that have similar economic characteridfiosthe Company's annual and interim impairmes¢ssments, the Company has identified
its reporting units to be its operating segmentgkvhare Kratos Government Solutions and Public t3aeSecurity.

The Company's testing approach utilizeseodinted cash flow analysis corroborated by coatper market multiples to determine the
fair value of its businesses for comparison tortbeiresponding book values because there are sengdble inputs available (Level 3 hierar
as defined bfFASB ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and®isce). The Company also considers its market capititinebased
upon an average of the stock price prior to andeglent to the date the analysis is performedegwhciles the fair value of the Company's
reporting units to the Company's market capitalimagssuming a control premium. If the book valyeeeds the estimated fair value for a
business, a potential impairment is indicated Boplic 350, prescribes the approach for determining the impant amount, if any.

In December 2008, the Company concludetthigadecision to exit three businesses acquiréd thve SYS merger and included in the
KGS reporting segment met the criteria to be cl@ssas held for sale. The Company also conclutlisdwas a triggering event undeopic
350that required a review of the Company's goodwill artangibles assets with indefinite lives. Becatlgethree business units were never
integrated into the KGS reporting unit, and as stiod benefits of the acquired goodwill were nevealized by the rest of the reporting unit,
goodwill of the disposed businesses was not adjustsed upon the relative fair values of the bissiee disposed and businesses retained. An
impairment charge of $3.3 million related to thpamately assigned goodwill of these businessesewsded as part of the loss from
discontinued operations (see Note 3 and 8).

Because of the timing of the disposals meed above, the required impairment test of theSkf@odwill and intangible assets with
indefinite lives was included with the Company'guieed annual impairment test of goodwill. The amrimpairment test for goodwill was
performed using a discounted cash flow analysipsrtpd by comparative market multiples to deterntiveefair values of the Company's
segments versus their book values. The test agoémber 28, 2008, indicated that the book valueth®KGS segment, excluding Digital
Fusion, Inc. (DFI), which was purchased on Decen?de2008, exceeded the fair values of these bsséseand resulted in the Company
recording a charge totaling $105.8 million in it&& segment for the impairment of goodwiill.

The impairment charge was primarily dri@nadverse equity market conditions that causeeceedse in market multiples and the
Company's average stock price as of December 28,20
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compared with the impairment test performed asedddnber 31, 2007. In the analysis, the Company tigeiticome approach and validated
its reasonableness by considering its market digaition based upon an average of its stock puceafperiod prior to and subsequent to the
date the analysis was performed. The average maricet of the Company's stock as of December 283 20as $12.90 which equated to a ¢
drop in the average stock price and correspondiaiget capitalization from December 31, 2007 whiaeld n average stock price of $23.50.
The Company reconciled the fair value of its reppgrunits which was calculated using the incomeraggh to its market capitalization. As a
result of this reconciliation, it was noted thatestors were requiring a higher rate of return, tuedefore, the discount factor which was based
upon an estimated market participant weighted aeescast of capital (WACC) increased 250 basis gdimim 11.5% in the year end
impairment test in 2007 compared to 14% in the wearimpairment test in 2008. This change was #yeféctor contributing to the

$105.8 million impairment charge that was recoritetthe fourth quarter of 2008.

Given the continued significant declinghie stock market in general and specifically thenfany's stock price and market capitalization
in the first quarter of 2009 which declined 39%nfran average stock price of $12.90 as of Decenthe2(08 to $7.80 as of February 28,
2009, the Company performed an impairment tesgdodwill in accordance witfiopic 350as of February 28, 2009. The test indicated theat th
book value for the Kratos Government Solutions (K&&ment exceeded the fair values of these bissaemd resulted in the Company
recording a charge totaling $41.3 million in its KGegment in the first quarter of 2009, for theampent of goodwill. The impairment charge
was primarily driven by adverse equity market ctinds that caused a decrease in market multipldslenCompany's average stock price as
of February 28, 2009, compared with the test peréat as of December 28, 2008. The Company's foseofgrowth rates and operating
margins had not changed as of February 28, 20@6rapared to the forecasts which were used as odieer 28, 2008. The Company
reconciled the fair value of its reporting unitsigthwas calculated using the income approach t€tdrmapany's market capitalization. As a
result of this reconciliation, it was noted thatéstors were requiring a higher rate of return, tuedefore, the discount factor which was based
upon an estimated market participant weighted aescast of capital (WACC) increased 300 basis gditm 14% in the Company's year end
impairment test in 2008 as compared to 17% in the@any's 2009 first quarter interim impairment.té@$tis change was the key factor
contributing to the $41.3 million goodwill impairmiecharge that was recorded in the first quarte0gr.

In 2009, the annual test did not resulirly impairment charge as there was an increasgriart market multiples and market
capitalization as of December 27, 2009 comparedd@®008 annual test and the test as of Februar@R®. If an event occurs or
circumstances change that would more likely tharreduce the fair value of a reporting unit beldsvaarrying value, the Company will
evaluate goodwill for impairment between annuaistés accordance witfhopic 350.
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The changes in the carrying amounts of gdlbdy operating segment for the years ended Déxmr81, 2007, December 28, 2008 and
December 27, 2009, are as follows (in millions):

Public
Safety & Government
Security Solutions Total
Balance as of December @
2006 $ — 3 129.¢ $ 129.¢
Acquisitions — 64.€ 64.€
Impairments — — —
Balance as of December 3:
2007 — 194.t 194.¢
Acquisitions and purcha
accounting adjustmen — 63.t 63.t
Impairments (105.¢) (105.¢)
Balance as of December 2
2008 — 152.2 152.2
Acquisitions and purcha:
accounting adjustmen — (0.7 (0.7
Impairments — (41.9) (41.9)
Balance as of December
2009 $ — 3 110.z $ 110.c

Purchased Intangible Assets

The following tables set forth informatitor finite-lived intangible assets subject to arimation (in millions):

As of December 28, 2008 As of December 27, 2009
Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Value Amortization Value Value Amortization Value
Acquired finite-lived intangible
asset:

Customer relationshif $ 221 % (4.1 $ 18C $ 221 $ (6.5) $ 15.€
Contracts and backlc 17.4 (6. 10.F 17.4 (9.9 7.6
Developed technolog 3.1 (0.2 2.9 3.1 (0.5 2.6
Non-compete agreemer 1.3 1.3 0.C 1.3 1.3 0.C
Trade name 1.2 (0.9 0.8 1.2 (0.5 0.7
Total $ 451 $ (12.€) $ 322 $ 451 $ (18.€) $ 26.t

The aggregate amortization expense forefilived intangible assets was $2.7 million, $4i8iom and $5.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007, December 28, 2008, and Decedih@009, respectively.
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Information about estimated amortizatiopense for intangible assets subject to amortizdtiothe five years succeeding December 27,
2009, is as follows (in millions):

Amortization
Expense
2010 $ 5.C
2011 4.7
2012 34
2013 34
2014 3.3
Thereaftel 6.7
$ 26.5

Note 3. Acquisitions
Digital Fusion, Inc.

On December 24, 2008, the Company acqui@®do of the voting equity interests of Huntsvikdabama based Digital Fusion, Inc. (DFI)
in a stock for stock transaction for approximatedy.0 million. DFI provides Command, Control, Conmuations, Computing, Intelligence,
Surveillance, and Reconnaissance (C4ISR) and tealhegineering services, Unmanned Aerial VehidaY) products and technology and
has significant engineering, modeling and simutatiapabilities. The acquisition of DFI provides tswith new customers and an expanded
contract vehicle portfolio, in addition to expanglithe range of service offerings to existing Kratastomers. Principal customers of DFI
include the Army Aviation and Missile Research, Bieypment and Engineering Center (AMRDEC), Army $pand Missile Defense
Command/Army Forces Strategic Command (ARSTRAT)SAAMarshall Space Flight Center, and certain clesscustomers. The
aforementioned factors are the primary reason@iacquisition and the amount subsequently assigngoodwill.

The purchase price of $37.0 million incladkrect transaction costs of $0.9 million. The @amy issued 2.3 million shares to DFI
shareholders and assumed DFI options which weneisable for approximately 1.0 million shares ofkrs common stock. The value of the
purchase price related to the common stock isswexdderived from the number of shares of Kratos comatock issued of 2.3 million, based
on 12.8 million shares of DFI common stock outstag@nd the exchange ratio of 0.17933 for each dbiare, at a price of $12.70 per share,
the average closing price of Kratos shares of comstack on the announcement date and for the tws piaor to and two days subsequent to
the public announcement of the merger on Novem#eP@08. The Company assumed DFI options valuétkatxchange ratio of 0.17933 for
each DFI option. The fair value of the assumedamstithat was allocated to goodwill based upon thekBScholes pricing model was
$7.0 million. The fair value of unvested optionsiethare related to future service will be expenagthe service is performed over the
weighted average vesting period of 1.2 years. €bkalts of operations of DFI are included in theoaepanying Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 27, 2009.
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The following summarizes the allocatiortted purchase price, including transaction cos®0d® million, to the fair value of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the date ofiiaiepn (in millions):

Cash $ 238
Accounts receivable, n 10.C
Other current asse 0.1
Property and equipment, r 1.C
Intangible assel 9.3
Goodwill 23.¢
Other asset 0.4
Total asset 46.¢
Current liabilities (9.0
Other liabilities (0.9
Net assets acquire $ 37.C

The goodwill recorded in this transactiemot tax deductible with the exception of appraadiety $3.6 million which was tax deductible
DFI.

SYS Technologies

On June 28, 2008, the Company acquired 180%te voting equity interests of San Diego-baS&® Technologies (SYS). SYS provides
a range of C4ISR and net-centric solutions to faldstate, local and other customers. The comlwnaif SYS and Kratos creates a broad,
complementary set of offerings, and positions ttganization to deliver proven capabilities to a@ridpectrum of customers in the areas of
highly-specialized engineering and IT solutions aadrices, specifically in the areas of weaponesystlife cycle support and extension,
military range operations, missile and weapon sggtsting, and C4ISR. The amount of goodwill asséhim the allocation of purchase price is
primarily attributable to the aforementioned adegets of this acquisition.

The purchase price of $55.9 million inclad#rect transaction costs of $2.4 million andreatied restructuring costs to be paid by Kratos.
The value of the purchase price related to the comstock issued was derived from the number ofeshaf Kratos common stock issued of
2.5 million, based on 20.1 million shares of SY#&won stock outstanding and the exchange ratiol&3&2 for each SYS share, at a price of
$20.22 per share, the average closing price ofdsrabmmon stock on the announcement date andddwtihdays prior to and two days
subsequent to the public announcement of the mergE&ebruary 21, 2008.

The Consolidated Statements of Operationthie years ended December 28, 2008 and Deceriib20@9, includes the results of SYS's
operations from the date of acquisition, June 2882
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The following summarizes the allocatiortted purchase price, including transaction cos®204 million, to the fair value of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the date ofiiaiepn (in millions):

Cash $ 4C
Accounts receivable, n 13.€
Other current asse 1.7
Property and equipment, r 14
Intangible assel 8.¢
Goodwill 40.1
Other asset 0.2
Total asset 69.¢
Current liabilities (13.2)
Other liabilities (0.9
Net assets acquire $ 55.¢

The goodwill recorded in this transactiemot tax deductible with the exception of appraadiety $6.7 million which was tax deductible
SYS.

Haverstick Consulting, Inc

On December 31, 2007, the Company acquié€ds of the voting equity interests of Indianapdiigliana headquartered Haverstick
Consulting, Inc. (Haverstick) as part of the CompaiKGS segment. Haverstick provides rocket andgiteisest and evaluation, weapons
systems support, and professional services to tBe Afmy, U.S. Air Force, U.S. Navy, NASA, and atliederal, state and local agencies.
Through the Haverstick acquisition, the Companyaexied its customer relationship within the DoD antlanced its presence with the U.S.
Air Force, a key growth area for Haverstick.

The total purchase price for the Haversticquisition was $92.0 million, including transaaticosts incurred of $0.8 million. The purch
price paid to Haverstick of $91.2 million was paica combination of $70.3 million of cash and conmstock valued at $19.4 million based
748,000 shares at a price of $26.00 per shar@visage closing price of Kratos shares of commeocksr the two days prior to, including,
and the two days subsequent to the public annougrteof the acquisition on November 5, 2007, andeking capital adjustment of
$1.5 million. The Company held back $8.6 milliod,&million in cash and $7.4 million in stock, tecsire any negative working capital
adjustments required by the merger agreement amadiemnity rights. The holdback consideration,clhaccrued interest in accordance with
the terms of the agreement until paid, was to bially released on the 12th month and 21st moftér ahe date of the acquisition. As a result
of a claims notice the Company filed in relatioratoindemnity claim which could have exceeded theunt of the holdback consideration
payable due to Haverstick, the Company did not nth&@ecember 2008 holdback payment. In March 20@9indemnity claim against
Haverstick was resolved and the December holdbagkpnt of $4.3 million was paid. The final holdbgayment of $4.3 million was made
October 2009.
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In addition to the indemnity holdback, tigreement also called for a post closing workingtahadjustment. In February 2008, the
Company and Haverstick agreed on the working clagatiaulation called for in the agreement. The gkition resulted in a working capital
adjustment due to Haverstick in an amount of $lilsom. The working capital adjustment was paiddpril 2008 with 69,731 shares of
common stock valued at $1.3 million and cash o2 $fillion. To fund the acquisition, the Companyw®d a new credit facility of
$85.0 million arranged by KeyBanc Capital Markdtse credit facility, which includes a $25.0 milliéine of credit and $60.0 million in term
notes, replaced the Company's previous creditiigoithich had an outstanding principal balanc&®0 million on December 31, 2007. Until
the date on which the shares of stock issued teistiek became saleable, interest accrued on the wvathe closing stock at a floating rate of
one-month LIBOR plus four percent (4%) per annuime $hares became saleable on June 30, 2008 ari® Hilditional shares were issued in
satisfaction of the accrued interest.

The Consolidated Statements of Operationthke year ended December 28, 2008 and Decemb@0@9 includes the results of
Haverstick's operations for the entire two yeatw Tesults of Haverstick's operations are not ohedlin the accompanying Consolidated
Statement of Operations for the year ended DeceBthe2007.

The purchase price which includes transaatosts of $0.8 million was accounted for as fefidin millions):

Cash $ 3€
Accounts receivable, n 23.t
Other current asse 5.3
Property and equipment, r 2.1
Intangible assel 9.3
Goodwill 66.4
Other asset 2.4
Total asset 112.¢
Current liabilities (16.€
Other liabilities 3.7
Net assets acquire $ 92.(

The goodwill recorded in this transactismot tax deductible.
Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information

The following tables summarize the suppletakstatements of operations information on aruditad pro forma basis as if the
acquisitions of DFI, SYS, and Haverstick had ocedron January 1, 2007, and include adjustmentswiia directly attributable to the
transactions or were not expected to have a cangrimpact on the Company. The pro forma resuksfar illustrative purposes only for the
applicable period and do not purport to be indietf the actual results which would have occutrad the transaction been completed as of
the beginning of the period, nor are
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they indicative of results of operations which noagur in the future (all amounts, except per slaneunts are in millions):

Pro forma 2007
2007 Adjustments Pro forma
As Reported (unaudited) (unaudited)

Pro forma revenue $ 180.7 $ 214+ $ 395.2

Pro forma net los $ (40.¢) $ (6.5) $ (47.9)
Shares outstanding or
issued for acquisitio 7.4 5.4 12.¢

Basic and diluted pro
forma net loss per

share $ (5.5)) $ (3.7
Pro forma 2008

2008 Adjustments Pro forma

As Reported (unaudited) (unaudited)
Pro forma revenu $ 286.2 $ 95.4 $ 381.¢
Pro forma net los $ (1110 ¢ (1.6 $ (1129

Shares outstanding

issued for acquisitio 9.3 BE 12.¢

Basic and diluted pr
forma net loss per
share $  (11.9% $ (8.80)

Contingent Acquisition Consideration

In connection with two prior business asgiions, Madison Research Corporation (MRC) anddtistick, the Company agreed to make
additional future payments to sellers contingerdruachievement of specific performanzsed milestones by the acquired entities. Purda
the provisions oFASB ASC Topic 805 Business Combinatsuth amounts are accrued, and therefore, recogddgeiCompany when the
contingency is resolved beyond a reasonable doubthee additional consideration becomes payable.

A summary of the contingent acquisition sideration as of December 28, 2008 and Decemb&@R is summarized in the following
table (in millions):

Haverstick MRC Total
Balance as of December 28, 2C $ 88 $ 2£ $ 114
Issuance of stoc (7.4 — (7.4)
Principal and interest ca:
payments (1.2 (2.9) (3.6)
Post acquisition adjustments &
interest accrual (0.3 (0.2 (0.9
Balance as of December 27, 2( $ —$ — & —

In 2009, all remaining hold-back amount$8f6 million in cash and $7.4 million in stock dwethe former shareholders of Madison
Research Corporation and Haverstick were paid.

95




Table of Contents

KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 27, 2009
Note 4. Balance Sheet Details
Cash and cash equivalents

The Company's cash equivalents consisvefright cash sweep accounts that are investeddaiilyabasis. As of December 27, 2009, the
Company had no short-term investments. The casltastdequivalents at December 28, 2008 and Dece2iib@009 were as follows (in
millions):

December 28, 2008 December 27, 2009
Amortized Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Basis Basis Basis Basis

Cash and cash
equivalents  $ 37 % 3.7 $ 99 $ 9.¢

Net unrealized gains and realized gainsrod during the years ended December 28, 200®andmber 27, 2009 were immaterial.
The breakdown of certain assets in the @ideted balance sheets consists of the followingn(llions):

Accounts receivable, n

December 28 December 27
2008 2009
Billed, current $ 58.7 % 42.¢
Unbilled, current 38.¢ 36.¢€
Total current accounts receival 97.t 79.4
Allowance for doubtful accoun (1.7 (0.9
Total current accounts receivab
net 96.4 78.€
Unbilled, lon¢-term (included ir
other long term asset 0.3 0.3
Total accounts receivable, r  $ 96.7 $ 78.€
Government contract receivables
December 28 December 27
2008 2009
Billed $ 29.¢ $ 18.€
Unbilled 28.2 22.€
Total Government contra
receivables $ 58.2 $ 41.€

Retainages receivable are $4.1 millionfd3ezember 28, 2008 and December 27, 2009.
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Property and equipment, n

December 28, December 27,
2008 2009

Computer equipment and softwe  $ 78 $ 7.€
Furniture and office equipme 5.1 5.1
Facility under capital leas 0.¢ 0.¢
Leasehold improvemen 2.2 2.2

Property and equipme 16.C 15.¢
Accumulated depreciation and

amortization (9.6) (11.9

Total property and equipment, r $ 64 $ 4.3

Depreciation expense was $1.6 million, $8ilion and $2.6 million for the years ended Detem31, 2007, December 28, 2008, and
December 27, 2009, respectively.

Note 5. Debt
(&) Credit Agreement

During fiscal year 2008 and 2009, the Conydaad a credit facility of $85.0 million with Keydk National Association (KeyBank) as
administrative agent. This credit facility providfed two term loans consisting of a first lien tenote of $50.0 million and a second lien term
note of $10.0 million, as well as a first lien $2Bnillion revolving line of credit, and was colladized by the assets of the Company and its
subsidiaries. KeyBank holds the revolving line mdit and the second lien term note. Field Point_tid. and SPF CDO |, Ltd., both affiliates
of Silverpoint Capital LP (Silverpoint), hold theest lien term note. The $10.0 million term loardheafive and one halfear term with principe
payments of $25,000 required quarterly from Marth2008 through March 31, 2013 with the final bakonf $9.5 million due on June 30,
2013. The $50.0 million term loan had a fiyear term with principal payments of $0.6 millieguired quarterly beginning on March 31, 2(
$1.3 million in 2009, $2.5 million in 2010, and $4million in 2011 and 2012. The term loans hadavision which states that once the full
amount of the note has been borrowed, the notewtée paid down and reborrowed again. The revglirive of credit had a five-year term
which expires on December 31, 2012. All loans uridercredit facility have an interest rate equal tuase rate defined as a fluctuating rate per
annum equal to the higher of (a) the Federal Firats plus 0.5% and (b) the rate of interest incéfier such day as publicly announced from
time to time by KeyBank as its "prime rate" plushargin for the term loans of 6.5% to 7.5% and agimaof 1.0% to 3.25% on the revolving
line of credit. All rates are subject to a LIBORd} of 4.25% and a "prime rate" floor of 5.25%.

The credit agreements contained covenahistwmpose certain restrictions on the Companiltyto, among other things, incur
additional debt, pay dividends, make investmentsetirassets. Additionally, certain non-recurriagle inflows such as proceeds from asset
sales, insurance recoveries, and equity offeringg Inave to be used to pay down indebtedness andhatde reborrowed. In addition, the
credit agreements contained certain financial camenwhich are defined by the terms of the agreé&n@&hese financial covenants included a
maximum first lien leverage ratio, a maximum
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total leverage ratio, a minimum liquidity ratioranimum fixed charge coverage ratio, and a mininaomsolidated EBITDA at various dates
for the $50.0 million term loan and the $25.0 miflirevolver as outlined in the following table.

Minimum
Maximum First Minimum Fixed Consolidated
Lien Leverage Maximum Total Minimum Charge Coverage EBITDA
Date Ratio Leverage Ratio Liquidity Ratio Ratio (in millions)
1.75 tc 2.25 tc 1.33 ¢ 1.10 tc
201C 2.00:1.0( 2.50:1.0( 1.17:1.0¢ 1.06:1.00 $ 21.5to $23.
1.17 tc
2011 1.75:1.0( 2.25:1.0( 1.04:1.01 1.10:1.0 $ 24.4to $26.
1.04 tc
201z 1.75:1.0( 2.25:1.0( 1.42:1.01 1.10:1.0¢ $ 26.7 to $27.

The $10.0 million subordinated term loasoatontained similar financial covenants.

As of December 28, 2008, and December @9 2the Company's outstanding balance on thetfaaibs $78.8 million and $54.4 million
with a weighted average interest rate of 10.66%1nil2%, respectively. As of December 27, 2009 uthesed line of credit under the
revolving line of credit, net of $1.5 million in tatanding letters of credit, was approximately $8iBion. The only restriction on the use of
these funds is that the Company was required to bempliance with covenants of this credit fagillhrough September 27, 2009. This credit
agreement was replaced on March 3, 2010 as distius®ote 17 Subsequent Events and the debt covenarpliance for the quarter and year
ended December 27, 2009 was not required as & céghk termination of the credit facility.

In March 2008, the Company entered interdative agreement to settle its 2004 and 2007risiesuclass action litigation actions and, ¢
result, the Company recorded a $4.9 million chamgee quarter ended December 31, 2007 to accsighére of the settlement amounts and an
estimate for a contingent liability associated wWithal proceedings related to the derivative astioet of the amounts to be covered by the
Company's insurance carriers. As a consequen@eofding this legal settlement, the Company didmneét certain of the financial covenants
in accordance with the credit facility. Accordingbn March 27, 2008, the Company obtained an amentland waiver from its lenders to
waive the impact of the legal settlement amountgfinancial covenants as of December 31, 20@rthe affected future periods. The
amendment also amended the credit facility to g®vor an increase in the LIBOR floor rate to 4.2&84l to require that the Company set
aside in a restricted account approximately 50%hefproceeds of the recovery from the theft oflstautions by its former stock option
administrator, or approximately $1.7 million, tontithese settlement amounts. In April 2008, $1lianiwas transferred to a restricted cash
account and in July 2008, an additional $0.6 millieas transferred for the amount received fromirtkarance carriers as settlement on the
theft of stock options. In July 2008, the fundirfgtee 2007 Securities Litigation Settlement inclddke use of $1.2 million of the cash from
restricted account. The lenders have also reseheedght to require the Company to utilize therendamount of the $3.4 million in proceeds
received from the theft of stock options to pernmalyepay down indebtedness. This right can be égedcno earlier than 60 days from
March 27, 2008 and expired upon the Company's damge with financial covenants under the creditlitgdor the four consecutive quarters
commencing after January 1, 2008. The cost of thenaiment, which was approximately $0.5 million, wesorded as deferred financing costs
in current assets on the accompanying consolidsd&thce sheet which will be amortized over the ining life of the facility.
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On June 26, 2008, the Company enteredaistecond amendment to its credit facility in orfecomplete the merger with SYS. The
amendment specifically approves that certain unmegcsubordinated convertible notes issued by SYt®da¢ed as subordinated debt under the
credit facility, provided that a Subordination Agmeent is obtained from the note holders represgmiiniess than 95% of the aggregate
principal amount of all subordinated notes, whidswbtained in July 2008. In addition, the amendrmesvides for an add-back for amounts
representing actual transaction costs incurrednbgcguired entity in the computation of ConsoliddEBITDA, as defined in the credit
agreement, in any acquisition in which 100% ofphiechase price is paid in equity securities ofGloenpany.

On February 11, 2008, the Company enteredthree derivative financial instruments with Kggnk to reduce the Company's exposu
its variable interest rates on its outstanding d€bése instruments initially hedged $70.0 millafrits LIBOR-based floating rate debt with the
amounts hedged decreasing over time. The deriwathature on March 31, 2010 and March 31, 2011 esultrin an average fixed rate of
3.16% for the term of the agreements. The Compasigdated these instruments as cash flow hedgésaich 2008, as a result of the
amendment to the Company's credit facility, whiotluded a LIBOR floor rate of 4.25%, the Compantedained that these instruments were
no longer highly effective as a hedge. The netstdjant associated with marking the derivative faiannstruments to market for the years
ended December 28, 2008 and December 27, 200% %&< million loss and a $0.4 million gain and haen reflected in other income
(expense) in the Company's Consolidated Statenoé@perations. See Note 9.

In 2008, the Company paid approximately8$illion related to the 2007 securities litigatiand $3.0 million related to the 2004
securities litigation settlements in 2008. This amiovas partially funded by $2.2 million from thestricted cash account which was funded as
a result of the first amendment to the currentitifedility. The Company was reimbursed for $0.8liom of the payment related to the 2004
securities litigation settlement by the Company&irance in March 2009. The Company paid $0.1anillihn January 2010 related to the
derivative settlement.

On June 4, 2009, the Company filed a compia the United States District Court for the imrn District of Ohio against the lenders
under its credit agreement, Field Point Ill, LtddéSPF CDO |, Ltd., both affiliates of Silverpoiahd KeyBank seeking equitable relief in the
form of reformation of an error in a contract sahleddeclaratory relief and damages. The errofteddrom the erroneous preparation of a
schedule to the loan documents consisting of caticuls relating to a financial covenant. The Conypaas specifically seeking reformation of
the error in the Minimum Liquidity Ratio covenant.

On October 16, 2009, the Company and the@des under its credit agreement executed a SettieAgreement related to this complaint
and executed a Third Amendment to its Credit AgretmUnder the Settlement Agreement, the partesidsed the action and a related ac
with prejudice. Among other things, the Settlem&gteement and Third Amendment:

. reformed the error in the minimum liquidity ratio @accordance with the Company's request;

. provided that the net proceeds from the Compaegistered direct public offering on September 2fhust be used to redu
the first term loan at par with no prepayment pgnal make whole payments;
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. provided that if the Company refinances the renmgifialance of the first lien term loan by March 2@10, the extinguishme
of the term loan will be at par with no prepaympeanalty or make whole payments;

. extended the term on the revolving line of creglibbe year to December 31, 2012; and

. required the Company to pay a $0.5 million feeddénders

In September 2009, $17.5 million of the pretceeds from the Company's registered directipolfiering was used to reduce the balance
on the Company's revolving line of credit. In O&oB009, the Company borrowed $17.5 million frogrévolving line of credit to make the
payment of $17.5 million on the first lien term o accordance with the terms of the Settlemenedment and the Third Amendment to its
Credit Agreement and also made a payment $0.5omiiii fees to the lenders.

On March 3, 2010, the Company enteredantew secured credit agreement. See Note 17 Sudrgefuents for further details.
(b) Subordinated Notes

As of December 28, 2008, the Company hastanding convertible notes payable totaling $3illian which were acquired as a result of
the SYS acquisition, of which $0.8 million was phlgato related parties. The convertible notes peyale unsecured and subordinated to the
Company's bank debt and bear interest at 10% pemaipayable quarterly. Principal was due Februdr2009 and the notes were convertible
at any time into shares of common stock at a camwerrate of $28.60 per share. In February 200fhérinterest of preserving cash due to the
current macroeconomic conditions, the Company piexvieach note holder with the option to:

Q) be paid cash in accordance with the original agesgm

(2) extend the note for an additional 18 months aettisting 10% rate and modify the conversion feataréhe lower of the existir
conversion price of $28.60 per share or the Kralosing share value on February 13, 2009; or

3) convert the principal balance into Kratos sharah@atower of the existing conversion price of $Bor the Kratos closing share
value on February 13, 2009 less a 10% discount.

As of December 27, 2009, $2.1 million ¢ tiotes had been paid and $1.0 million of the naéelsbeen extended to August 14, 2010,
$25,000 of which is payable to a related party. Bakance of the outstanding notes of $1.0 millishich is potentially convertible into
common stock of Kratos at $10.20 per share or aqipitely 94,000 shares, is reflected in the curpamtion of long-term debt in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet as of Dmsel?, 2009. Interest expense on the convertisilesrfor the year ended December 27,
2009 was $0.1 million.
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Future maturities of long-term debt refldat Company's refinancing in March 2010. See N@t&ubsequent Events.

2010 $ 4t
2011 7.C
2012 7.C
2013 36.€

$ 55.

Note 6. Lease Commitments

The Company leases certain facilities andpment under operating and capital leases haeimys expiring at various dates through
2018. Future minimum lease payments under capithbaerating leases as of December 27, 2009 dadl@ss (in millions):

Net
Capital Operating

Year Leases Leases
2010 $ 04 $ 4.9
2011 04 3.2
2012 04 2.1
2013 0.3 1.2
2014 0.2 0.7
Thereaftel 0.C 2.3
Total future minimum lease paymel $ 17 $ 14«
Less amount representing inter 0.8
Present value of capital lease obligati 0.9
Less current portio 0.2

©»
o
~l

Long-term capital lease obligatiol

The following is an analysis of the leapedperty under capital leases by major class:

December 28, December 27,
2008 2009

Classes of Property
Facilities $ 1C $ 1.C
Office Equipmen 0.2 0.2
Total 1.2 1.2
Less: Accumulated amortizatic 0.2 0.4
$ 1C $ 0.8
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Amortization expense related to capitatézawas $0.2 and $0.2 for the years ended Dec&8h2008, and December 27, 2009,
respectively.

Gross rent expense under operating leaseéhd years ended December 31, 2007, Decemb@028, and December 27, 2009 was
$4.1 million, $6.4 million, and $7.3 million, resg#vely. Total sublease income for the years eridedember 31, 2007, December 28, 2008,
and December 27, 2009, totaling $0.2 million, $@illion, and $0.2, respectively, has been nettetiresg rent expense.

Based on management's assessment of assusnpinsidering existing market conditions, sus#eental rates and recoverability of
operating lease expenses for the Company's vacgmenies and due to the Company's actions to didiase facilities, the Company
reevaluated its accrual for unused office spacedatermined that a portion of its corporate fagiitould no longer be utilized to the extent
previously expected. As a result, the Company ¢ated the estimated loss on unused office spaitetease by approximately $0.8 million in
2007 for obligations under facility leases thatevanfavorably impacted by the Company's recentstitvges of its wireless network services
businesses which resulted in unused office spac2008, the Company recorded an additional $0.liomifor an excess facility accrual as a
result of the consolidation of space that occuagthe Company has integrated its recent acquisitio addition, in 2009, the Company
consolidated additional space at its Corporate Headers which resulted in an additional excestitiaaccrual of $0.6 million.

The accrual for loss on unused office speas $1.2 million and $0.7 million as of Decemb8r 2008 and December 27, 2009,
respectively. The Company estimates that the rangaerccrual will be paid through 2012. These amsané included in asset impairment and
other charges on the Company's statements of aqgesatnd in other current liabilities and othebiidies in the consolidated balance sheet.
The lease on certain office facilities includesestiied base rent increases over the term of tise.|&de total amount of the base rent payn
is being charged to expense on the straight-linghaaeover the term of the lease. In addition tolthse rent payment, the Company pays a
monthly allocation of the building's operating erpes. The Company has recorded deferred rentdiedlin accrued expenses and other
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet$®# million and $0.1 million at December 28, 2@0f®I December 27, 2009, respectively, to
reflect the excess of rent expense over cash pagrsarte inception of the respective lease.

Note 7. Income Taxes

The Company adopted the provisiohEASB ASC Topic 740 Income Taxes (Topic v@@arding uncertainty in income taxes on
January 1, 2007. The total liability for unrecogridzax benefits as of the date of adoption was $dllibn. Additionally, the Company has a
tax refund claim of $2.4 million for which it hastrecorded any benefit und€opic 7400r prior standards. As a result of the implemeatati
of Topic 740, the Company recognized a $0.7 million increagénliability for unrecognized tax benefits, wih.2 million net decrease in
valuation allowance, $0.1 million charged to re¢girearnings, and $0.4 million recorded to goodwilladdition, the Company reduced its
gross deferred tax assets by $10.8 million for cogeized tax benefits, which was offset by a reidadn its valuation allowance by the same
amount.
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The following table summarizes the activityated to the Company's unrecognized tax beriitsillions):

Total
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 16.4
Increases related to prior peric 5.t
Decreases related to current year tax posi (7.3
Expiration of applicable statutes of limitatic (2.0
Foreign currency translatic 0.3
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 13.C
Increases related to prior peric —
Decreases related to current year tax posi —
Expiration of applicable statutes of limitatic (1.0
Foreign currency translatic (0.7
Balance at December 28, 2C $ 12.¢
Increases related to prior peric —
Decreases related to current year tax posit —
Expiration of applicable statutes of limitatic (0.3
Foreign currency translatic 0.1
Balance at December 27, 2C $ 12.€

Included in the balance of unrecognized@mefits at December 27, 2009, are $12.6 milliotawo benefits that, if recognized, would
affect the effective tax rate. Included in this ambis $8.9 million that would become a deferredaaset if the tax benefit were recognized. As
such, this benefit may be impacted by a correspondaluation allowance depending upon the Compayisolidated financial position at the
time the benefits are recognized.

The Company recognizes interest and pesaiélated to unrecognized tax benefits in its igiom for income taxes. For the years ended
December 31, 2007, December 28, 2008 and Decenib@0R9, the Company recorded $0.2 million, $0.llieniand $0.1 million,
respectively, in interest or penalties. These artsoare netted by a benefit for interest and peswttlated to the reversal of prior positions as
noted above of $0.5 million, $0.5 million, and $nillion for the years ended December 31, 2007 dbdwer 28, 2008, and December 27,
2009, respectively. As of December 28, 2008 ancebuxer 27, 2009, the Company had recorded totakisteand penalties of $0.8 million and
$0.7 million, respectively.

The Company believes that it is reasonpbhsible that as much as $3.3 million of Trepic 740tax liabilities will expire within
12 months of December 27, 2009 due to the expiratforarious applicable statutes of limitations @odsible settlement of a pending income
tax refund claim.

The Company is subject to taxation in th8.lnd various state tax jurisdictions. The Comgfsatax years for 2000 and forward are
subject to examination by the U.S. and state tabxaaities due to
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the existence of net operating loss carryforwa@Bmerally, the Company's tax years for 2002 anddatt are subject to examination by vari
foreign tax authorities.

In assessing the realizability of defert@dassets, management considers on a periodi, bdséther it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will hetrealized. As such, management has determined thappropriate to maintain a full
valuation allowance against its deferred tax asgéth the exception of an amount equal to its defitax liabilities which can be expected to
reverse. Management will continue to evaluate #eeasity to maintain a valuation allowance agaiasteferred tax asset.

As of December 27, 2009, the Company haetaleferred tax asset and deferred tax liabifigeno. The deferred tax assets and liabilities
are allocated based upon the underlying asseluifity that produced the deferred taxes. As of&eber 27, 2009, the net deferred tax assets
or liabilities allocated to discontinued operatiovere zero.

The provision (benefit) for income taxesnfr continuing operations for the years ended Deeer®b, 2007, December 28, 2008, and
December 27, 2009 are comprised of the followingnillions):

2007 2008 2009

Current:
Federal $0C $ 0C $ 0.cC
State 0.7 1.3 1.C
Total current 0.7 1.3 1.C
Deferred:
Federal 0.t 2.7 0.C
State 0.1 0.3 0.C
Total deferrec 0.€ (2.0 0.C
Total $ 128 $ (07) $ 1C

A reconciliation of total income tax prowis (benefit) to the amount computed by applying statutory federal income tax rate of 35% to
loss from continuing operations before income tavsion (benefit) for the years ended December280,7, December 28, 2008 and
December 27, 2009 is as follows (in millions):

2007 2008 2009
Income tax expense (benefit) at

federal statutory rat $ (92 $ (36.6 $ (13.)
State taxes, net of federal tax ben

and valuation allowanc 0.7 1.3 1.C
Increase (decrease) in fede

valuation allowanc: 9.6 1.9 1.7
Nondeductible expens 0.1 0.1 0.1
Nondeductible goodwill impairmel

charges — 32.€ 11.2

Total $ 13 % (0% 1cC
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The tax effects of temporary differenceat thive rise to the deferred tax assets and deff¢aveliabilities as of December 28, 2008 and
December 27, 2009 are as follows (in millions):

2008 2009
Deferred tax asset
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 08 $ o8
Sundry accrual 11 2.1
Vacation accrue 1.9 1.8
Stoclk-based compensatic 9.8 10.5
Property and equipment, principally due
differences in depreciatic 2.5 2.2
Investment: 2.9 2.8
Net operating loss carryforwar 79.1 75.€
Capital loss carryforwar 1.5 i1z
Tax credit carryforward 0.3 0.2
Deferred revenu 0.1 0.2
Reserves and oth 3.9 2.¢
104.( 101.C
Valuation allowanct (96.9) (96.2)
Total deferred tax assets, net of
allowance 7.6 4.8
Deferred tax liabilities
Unearned revent (0.5 (0.9
Other intangible: (5.6) (2.€)
Property and equipment, principally due
differences in depreciatic (2.5 1.9
Total deferred tax liabilitie (7.€) 4.9
Net deferred tax asset (liabilit $ 0C $ ocC

At December 27, 2009, the Company had tddex loss carryforwards of $205.5 million andivas state tax loss carryforwards of
$182.0 million including net operating losses réaglfrom stock options of approximately $14.4 oiti for federal and state, which if
recognized would result in additional paid-in capifThe federal tax loss carryforwards expire beiig in 2020, and the various state tax loss
carryforwards expire beginning in 2012. Federal stiade tax laws impose restrictions on the utilcrabf net operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards in the event of an "ownership charfge'tax purposes as defined by Section 382 ofriternal Revenue Code. At December 27,
2009, the Company does not believe that it hagiieduany "ownership changes" which could materiéthyjt the utilization of the loss
carryforwards. If an "ownership change" does ocatilization of the net operating loss or creditrgéorward amounts may be limited. As
discussed elsewhere, deferred tax assets relatithg thet operating loss and credit carryforwardsoffset by a full valuation allowance. In
addition, utilization of state tax loss carryfordaiis dependent upon sufficient taxable income djgped to the states.
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In assessing the realizability of defert@dassets, management considers, on a periodg; bdether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will hetrealized. During fiscal 2009, the Company reedrd net decrease in its valuation allowance
of $0.2 million. Of this amount, a $1.7 million i@&ase relates to current year operations, and%rfillion decrease is related to a reduction in
prior deferred taxes and valuation allowance ferghkpiration of certain state net operating lossyfarwards. The increase was required based
on the Company's overall assessment of the risksiaoertainties related to its future ability talize and utilize the Company's deferred tax
assets.

Note 8. Discontinued Operations

On December 28, 2006, the Board of Directdithe Company approved a plan to divest portadrike Company's business where critical
mass had not been achieved. This plan involveditrestiture of the Company's EMEA (Europe, MiddisEand Asia) operations and its
remaining South American operations. The Compangrdened that these operations met the criterlzetolassified as held for sale.
Accordingly, these operations were reflected asatisnued operations in accordance VA#SB ASC Topic 205 Presentation of Financial
Statements (Topic 205) the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statesnen

The EMEA operations were sold to LCC In&ional, Inc. (LCC) on March 9, 2007 for $4.0 nahiin cash, $3.3 million of which was
received on that date. We also received approxign@te8 million from our EMEA operations, prior asdbsequent to the closing date as
payment on outstanding intercompany debt. The belafthe $0.7 million sales price was withheldeasurity for the satisfaction of certain
indemnification obligations and was payable onte daat is the earlier of March 31, 2008 or theedhtt the buyer files its 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2007. The sale of EMEArg&ta gain on disposition of $3.3 million. In foerth quarter of 2007, the Compa
recorded a reserve of $0.7 million on the remairsalgs price holdback based on the Company's assesef LCC's available liquidity and
ability to pay following the Company's review of C& most recently filed financial statements, thgneeducing the net estimated gain on this
transaction to $2.6 million.

On April 20, 2007, the Company entered emicEquity Purchase Agreement to sell all of tlseésl and outstanding equity of its interests
of its wholly owned subsidiary WFI Brazil Techlogta Telecomunicaciones LTDA, to Strategic Projemwiges, LLC (SPS). The
consideration included the assumption of substiyt# outstanding liabilities of WFI Brazil, nomal cash consideration, and additional earn-
out consideration based on 25 percent of net rablsg collected subsequent to the closing date Coimepany recorded an impairment charge
of approximately $5.2 million as of December 310@@o reduce the current carrying value of the Bigzerations to their estimated fair value
based upon current indications of interest. Instbeond quarter of 2007, when this business was a@din on disposition of $0.2 million was
recorded primarily due to lower than expected sgliosts.

On May 29, 2007, the Company entered intdsset Purchase Agreement with LCC pursuant tehvttie Company agreed to sell to L
all of the assets used in the conduct of the ojperalf the Company's Wireless Network Servicesiess segment that provides engineering
services to the non-government wireless commuiieatindustry in the United States.
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The transaction was completed on June @7.2Dhe aggregate consideration paid by LCC in eotion with the Acquisition was
$46.0 million. LCC delivered a subordinated prorargsnote for the principal amount of $21.6 millithe Subordinated Promissory Note),
paid $17.0 million at closing and paid final wor§finapital adjustments of $2.4 million through areagment to the Subordinated Promissory
Note, and the Company retained an estimated $5li@min net working capital of the busine:

On July 5, 2007, the Company announcedithaid sold the $21.6 million Subordinated PromigsNote in a transaction arranged by
KeyBanc Capital Markets. The Company received apprately $19.6 million in net cash proceeds, rdftega discount from par value of less
than five percent and aggregate transaction feapmfoximately $1.0 million, which includes a $@8lion fee to KeyBanc, an affiliate of the
Company's lender. The note was acquired by a ftfilichied with Silver Point Capital, L.P. The Compadid not provide any guaranty for
LCC's payment obligations. Post closing adjustmestise also covered by the note.

On August 10, 2007, in accordance withtémms of the acquisition agreement, the Companyiged the closing balance sheet working
capital calculation, which indicated a $2.6 millimarking capital adjustment was due to the Compagn increase to the balance of the
Subordinated Promissory Note. LCC had thirty daysetiew the calculation and notify the Companyoy dispute. The Company and LCC
agreed to a final working capital calculation of4sghillion. The Company collected $2.3 million ianuary 2008, net of a $0.1 million discount
from Silver Point in accordance with the termstaf hote agreement.

On July 7, 2007, the Company entered irdefaitive agreement with an affiliate of Platinltbquity to sell the Company's wireless
deployment business. Platinum Equity is a Los Aegélased private equity firm whose portfolio inédadervice and distribution businesses in
a number of equity sectors. The total considerdtiotthe acquisition was $24.0 million including8@ million in cash at closing, subject to
post closing working capital adjustments, and agreggte $6.0 million in a three-year earn-out agesment through 2010. The transaction
included a Transition Services Agreement for thadition of certain services for a period of ninentins. The assets sold to an affiliate of
Platinum Equity include all of the Company's wisdeleployment business, and the Wireless Facifii@se. The transaction closed on July
2007.

On September 25, 2007, in accordance Wwétatquisition agreement, the Company providedadtking capital calculation to Platinum
Equity. On July 16, 2008, the Company came to aaeagent with Platinum Equity on a working capitdjustment of $5.0 million. In
connection with that resolution, the earn-out ageament was terminated. The adjustment was to lkipanstallments with the first amount of
$2.5 million due on July 31, 2008 and payments@5$nillion monthly thereafter until paid in fulhiDecember 2008. The Company did not
make the scheduled $2.5 million payment due aslgf3Il, 2008. Payments of $1.0 million were madAuigust and September of 2008, with
an additional $0.5 million paid in December 20G8March of 2009, the Company paid $1.5 milliontw# tvorking capital adjustment. On
August 4, 2009, the Company paid $1.3 million it $ettlement of all amounts due to Platinum Equity

The Company determined that the U.S. erging and U.S. deployment operations met the @iterbe classified as held for sale in the
first quarter of 2007. Accordingly, the Company has
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reflected these operations as discontinued andsesg¢hese assets for impairment in accordancelwijilt 205. The Company determined t
the assets of the U.S. deployment operations wepaired and recorded an impairment charge of afpaiely $13.4 million in the first
guarter of 2007. The fair value of the assets vedsrchined by utilizing the sale price less estimatests to sell the business. The Company
recorded a gain in discontinued operations fronstile of the U.S. engineering operations of $14l8omin the second quarter of 2007. Upon
the divestiture of the deployment business on 2dly2007, the Company recorded a loss from dispafskil.9 million, reflecting the closing
working capital adjustment and final closing bakasbeet. In addition, the Company recorded a chartfe third quarter of 2007 for an exc
facility accrual of approximately $1.1 million rédal to certain facility leases of Deployment fieffices that were not assumed by Platinum.

The determination that the U.S. engineebnginess and U.S. deployment operations met tteziarto be classified as held for sale in the
first quarter of 2007 was also a triggering evarderFASB ASC Topic 350 Intangibles—Goodwill and OtA@ep{c 350)that resulted in an
accelerated review of the Company's goodwill ananigibles assets with indefinite lives. In accomawithTopic 350, the Company allocatt
the goodwill for the WNS reporting unit based upbe fair value of the engineering business andldpoyment business. The fair values used
were based upon market information obtained asutref the sale of the businesses. This resultethiimpairment charge of approximately
$7.2 million related to goodwill for this reportinmit which was recorded in the first quarter 0020

During the due diligence process relatetthéoacquisition of SYS, senior management idesttithree business units of SYS which were
non-core to Kratos' base national security andip@iglcurity businesses. These businesses provided surveillance and information analysis
products, digital broadcasting products and indidesponse management systems. In December 2@88ewhluating these businesses further,
a decision was made to dispose of and sell alkthtesiness units. In accordance withpic 205, these business units were classified as hel
sale and reported in discontinued operations andffor the years ended December 28, 2008 and Dere2id, 2009. The Company recorded a
$4.5 million impairment charge in the fourth quat&2008 primarily related to the impairment ofogwvill allocated to these businesses. In the
first quarter of 2009, all three of the businessese sold for an aggregate cash considerationmapmately $0.4 million.

In addition, the plan to sell these bustessncluded a comprehensive assessment of petsmioeation of personnel, facility
consolidation and exit strategies for certain linEbusiness. The plan provided for approximat&yodmillion of restructuring costs associated
with personnel, and additional costs of $0.6 millfor facilities consolidation. The restructuringsts are primarily associated with the
businesses sold and are accounted for in discatioperations in the accompanying ConsolidatednginhStatements. As of December 27,
2009, approximately $1.1 million of severance cests $0.5 million of facilities costs have beerndp&n addition, the liability related to
severance costs was reduced by approximately $iliarmto reflect a revised estimate, which wasagnized in the net loss of discontinued
operations. The remaining liabilities for severaand facilities are $0.8 million and $0.1 millimespectively, and are included in current
liabilities of discontinued operations in the
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consolidated balance sheet. The following tablevsh@ reconciliation of the beginning accrual to témaining balance as of December 27,
2009 (in millions):

Lease
Severance Termination Total

Original accrual recorded in

2008 $ 2C $ 0€ $ 2€
Payments in 200 (0.2 (0.9) (0.6)
Payments in 200 (0.9 (0.2) (2.0
Adjustments 0.1 — (0.2
Balance December 27,20  $ 08 $ 01 $ 0.¢

On June 24, 2009, as a result of the coatroperating losses in the Southeast divisioh@fdompany's Public Safety & Security
segment, the Company's Board of Directors appraveldn to sell and dispose of the Southeast divisioaccordance witfiopic 205, this
business unit was classified as held for sale apdrted in discontinued operations in the accomipgn@onsolidated Financial Statements.
Company recorded a $2.0 million impairment chargehé second quarter of 2009 related to managesresttmate of the fair value of the
business. The Company continues to operate thén&asttdivision while simultaneously seeking a buyae negative cash flow from
discontinued operations is primarily a result @ ttivision's continuing business activities whieitl substantially end with the sale of this
business in 2010. The Company has taken signifiasttreduction actions throughout 2009 to imprheeoperating margins and operating
cash flows of this business.

In addition, in accordance witlopic 205, interest expense incurred on the debt that wasined to be repaid as a result of the sales of oul
discontinued businesses was allocated to discadioperations. During the years ended Decembe2(817,, December 28, 2008, and
December 27, 2009, interest expense allocatedstmdiinued operations was approximately $2.2 miJl&0.0 million and $0.0 million,
respectively. The following table presents the itssef discontinued operations including gain amsslon disposals which is included in Loss
before taxes (in millions):

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 28, December 27,
2007 2008 2009
Revenue $ 98.c $ 131 $ 5.¢
Loss before taxe (14.0 (8.9 (3.9
Benefit for income
taxes (0.9 (2.9 (0.6)
Net loss $ (13.6) $ 7.1y $ 3.9
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Following is a summary of the assets aaldilities of discontinued operations as of Decen#®r2008 and December 27, 2009 (in
millions) for each of the operations:

December 28 December 27
2008 2009

Cash $ 0.9 $ 0.C
Accounts receivable, n 4.5 2.4
Other current asse 1.C (0.9
Current assets of discontinu

operations $ 51 $ 2.C
Noncurrent assets of discontint

operations $ 1C $ 0.4
Accounts payabl $ 0¢ $ 0.t
Accrued expense 5.1 2.8
Unrecognized tax benefi 0.8 1.1
Other current liabilitie: 0.3 0.3
Current liabilities of discontinued

operations $ 71 % 4.7
Noncurrent unrecognized ti

benefits $ 1.1 $ 0.4
Other noncurrent liabilitie 0.8 0.2
Noncurrent liabilities o

discontinued operatior $ 1¢ $ 0.€

Note 9. Fair Value Measurement

The Company adopt€dSB ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements anddgces (Topic 8203s of January 1, 2008, with the
exception of the application of the statement to-recurring nonfinancial assets and nonfinancaddilities. Non-recurring nonfinancial assets
and nonfinancial liabilities for which it has nqi@ied the provisions cfopic 820include those measured at fair value in goodwifp@inment
testing, indefinite lived intangible assets meadwfair value for impairment testing, asset egtient obligations initially measured at fair
value, and those initially measured at fair valua business combination.

Topic 820 establishes valuation hierarchy for disclosure of the inpiotsaluation used to measure fair value. This hé@naprioritizes
the inputs into three broad levels as follows. lldvmputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in aatiaekets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 inputs are quoted prices for similar asaets$ liabilities in active markets or inputs the¢ abservable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly through market corroboratjdar substantially the full term of the financiaktrument. Level 3 inputs are unobservable
inputs based on the Company's own assumptionstagadasure assets and liabilities at fair valuénancial asset or liability's classification
within the hierarchy is determined based on theskilevel input that is significant to the fair walmeasurement.
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The only asset or liability carried and s@@d at fair value on a recurring basis is arrésterate swap agreement not qualified as a
hedging instrument carried in other long-term liéies on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Gaind@swks resulting from marking to market
the interest rate swap are recorded in other ing@xgenses), net in the Consolidated Statemenpefa&lions. The total gain or loss on the
interest rate swap as of December 28, 2008 andritere27, 2009, was a loss of $1.7 million and a @&i$0.3 million, respectively. The
following table provides the fair value measuremathe interest rate swap (in millions):

Significant Significant
Quoted prices other observable unobservable
Total in active markets inputs inputs
Carrying Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
December 27, 200 $ 14 $ — $ 14 $ —
December 28, 200 $ 17 $ — 3 17 $ —

The significant Level 2 observable inpuitized to value the Company's derivative finanangtruments are based upon calculations
provided by an investment advisor and is validatét the use of a nationally recognized financegarting service.

Carrying amounts and the related estimfatiecdvalues of the Company's financial instrumemsmeasured at fair value on a recurring
basis at December 28, 2008 and December 27, 2@0%@sented in the following table. The carryinpgeof all other financial instruments,
including cash and cash equivalents and short-tistoh, approximated their estimated fair valuesetdnber 28, 2008, and December 27,
2009.

2008 2009
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
$ in millions Amount Value Amount Value
Long-term debt $ 78¢ $ 762 $ 554 % 54.1

Long-Term Debt—The fair value of the loregrh debt was calculated based on interest ratélsbleafor debt with terms and due dates
similar to the Company's existing debt arrangements

Note 10. Stockholders' Equity
(@  Common Stock

On September 2, 2009, the Company soldn#l®n shares of its common stock to institutioimalestors at a purchase price of $7.20 in a
registered direct public offering. The Company reeé gross proceeds of $18.7 million. After dedogtplacement agent fees and other
offering expenses, the Company received $17.5anillh net proceeds. The Company used the net ptedeem this transaction to repay
existing indebtedness.

On September 10, 2009, the Company contpketefor-10 reverse split of its common stock vahicas approved at the Company's
Annual Meeting on June 4, 2009. The reverse spiiticed the number of shares of the Company's consinok outstanding from 156,274,%
to 15,627,031. Proportional adjustments were madieet Company's stock options and other equityntiee awards,

111




Table of Contents

KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 27, 2009

Note 10. Stockholders' Equity (Continued)

equity compensation plans, and convertible notbs.tdtal number of authorized shares of the Comparapital stock was not affected by the
reverse stock split.

In connection with the SYS acquisition, @@mpany issued approximately 64,000 warrants tolase common stock at per share prices
ranging from $17.88 per share to $31.79 per sfidre.expiration dates of the warrants are from R0 to September 2012.

(b) Preferred Stock

There was no issuance, redemption or ceimeof the Series B Convertible Preferred Stocthenmost recent fiscal years ended
December 31, 2007, December 28, 2008, and Dece?ib@009. At December 27, 2009, the total liquinlatpreference equaled $5.0 million.
In accordance witkRASB ASC Topic 260 Earnings Per Shatlee Company's Series B Preferred Stock was cereica participating security
for purposes of computing basic earnings per share.

(c) Stock Option Plans and Restricted Stock UniPlans

The Board of Directors may grant optionsestricted stock units to selected employeescttire and consultants to the Company to
purchase shares of the Company's common stocgrateanot less than the fair market value of tloelsiat the date of grant. In July 2004, the
Board of Directors resolved that all future stogkion grants under all of the Company's stock apfilans would be non-statutory stock
options, until such further determination by theaBbof Directors. In February 2005, the Board afebiors approved the 2005 Equity Incen
Plan (the 2005 Plan). The 2005 Plan was subseguagmroved by a majority of the Company's stockbdcbn May 18, 2005. If any shares
covered by an award under the 2005 Plan are nohpsed or are forfeited, or if an award otherwsseiminated, cancelled or retired, such
shares are again made available for awards und&0®5 Plan. The 2000 Non-statutory Stock Opti@mP1999 Equity Incentive Plan and all
prior plans have expired and shares that are rmehpeed, are forfeited, or are subject to awaralshhve terminated are not available for grant
under those or any other plan. As of December Q@9 2here are approximately 153,000 shares reséovéssuance for future grant under the
2005 Plan. The Board of Directors of the Company araend or terminate the 2005 Plan at any timeta@eamendments, including an
increase in the share reserve, require stockhalgigroval. Generally, options and restricted statkswutstanding vest over periods not
exceeding ten years. Options are exercisable foo tgn years from the grant date.

Digital Fusion Inc. Stock Option and Stdekentive Plans. Digital Fusion, Inc.'s Stock Option and Stookéntive Plans acquired
through the Company's acquisition of DFI were teatéd on December 24, 2008, and no further graayshe made under these plans after
that date. Award grants that were outstanding utiteese plans on December 24, 2008 will continugetgoverned by their existing terms and
may be exercised for shares of the Company's constoak at any time prior to the expiration of tha-year option term or any earlier
termination of those options in connection with tiion holder's cessation of service with the Camyp Stock options granted under these
plans included incentive stock options or non-s$tajustock options. All non-statutory options vapbn change in control and were 100%
vested on December 24, 2008. With respect to in@stock options, the qualified stock option plansvide that the exercise price of each
such option must be at least equal to 100% ofadhrariarket value of its common stock on the datgraht. Stock options
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granted under these plans may generally be exdrfrism one to ten years after the date of granttaeof these options had change in control
provisions that extended the exercise period fanty for two years from the transaction closingdatvards granted under these plans
generally vest equally over three years; howewvecpnnection with the Company's acquisition of Eid plans were amended to include
immediate vesting of all unvested grants upon atyré change in control of the Company. DFI alst textain options granted outside of its
qualified stock option plans. These non-qualifiedt’of plan" stock options expire 10 years fromngidate.

On January 10, 2007, the Compensation Ctteendf the Board approved a form of RestrictectiStanit Agreement (the RSU
Agreement) to govern the issuance of restricteckstimits (RSU) to executive officers under the Camyps 2005 Plan. Each RSU represents
the right to receive a share of common stock (a&han the vesting date. Unless and until the R&ds¢, the Employee will have no right to
receive Shares under such RSUs. Prior to actuaitdison of Shares pursuant to any vested RSUs) 88Us will represent an unsecured
obligation of the Company, payable (if at all) oflgm the general assets of the Company. The RBatsiay be awarded to executive officers
under the RSU Agreement will vest according to mgsschedules specified in the notice of grant equanying each grant. The Company
recognizes compensation expense on a straighbdiais over the vesting periods based on the marlost of the Company's stock on the grant
date. The awards granted in 2007, 2008, and 200%ésting periods ranging from 11 months to 10 yehito ten years; and 4 to ten years,
respectively. Some of the grants for these yeare hacelerated vesting occurring upon change dfaloor termination. Upon exercise of the
RSU, the Company issues new shares of common stock.

The Company records compensation expemsaniployee stock options based on the estimateddhie of the options on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing maated the weighted average assumptions (annualizedmages) included in the following
table. Awards with graded vesting are recognizédguhe straight-line method with the following asgptions:

2007 2008 2009
Expected life:(1

Stock options 10.0 year: 5.3 years 10.0 year:
Risk-free interest rate(Z 4.3%-4.7%  0.0%-2.1% 2.8%- 3.7%
Volatility(3) 56.8% 38.8%- 70.3% 59.2%- 63.3%
Forfeiture rate(4 23.7% 10.6% 19.9%

Dividend yield(5) — _ _

(D) The expected life of stock options granted undemtlan is the life of the option when the optiod@®% vested at grant. No unvested
options were granted in 2007 or 2009. In 2008uallested options granted related to the acquisifddFIl. As historically, the majorit
of options granted were part of the Company's niseothtinued Wireless Network Services segment andhe Company's KGS
segment, the Company did not have historical indrom related to the expected term of the opticgasigd to DFI. The Company used
market information from the Company's peers tonest the expected life of these grants which wasistent with the methodology
previously used by DFI. A majority of the optionsgted to DFI were 100% vested at grant.
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(2)  Therisk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury yiel@$fect at the time of grant with a term equattie expected term of tl
options.

3) In 2007, 2008, and 2009 the Company estimated @dplolatility based upon trailing volatility.

4) Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grantdag®n historical information. Forfeitures will bevised, if necessary, in subsequ
periods if actual forfeitures differ from estimatés 2008, the estimated forfeitures for the DFliaps were based upon the historical
information of DFI option holders.

(5) The Company has no history or expectation of paglimglends on its common stoc

A summary of the status of the Compangsksbption plan as of December 27, 2009 and of gbsun options outstanding under the plan
for the year ended December 27, 2009 is as follows:

Weighted-
Average
Weighteo- Remaining
Average Contractual
Number of Exercise Price Term Aggregate
Shares per Share (in years) Intrinsic Value
(000's) (000's)
Options outstanding at December 28,
2008 1552 $ 30.9( 53 $ 3,25(
Options grante: 5 % 7.87
Options exercise 22) $ 5.6¢
Options forfeited or expire (107) $ 60.72
Options outstanding at December
2009 1,42¢ $ 29.02 41 $ 1,94¢
Options exercisable at December 27, Z 1,407 $ 29.2¢ 4C $ 1,94¢

As of December 27, 2009, there was $0.lianibf total unrecognized stock-based compensatipense related to nonvested shares

which is expected to be recognized over a remaiwieighted-average vesting period of 0.8 years.

During the years ended December 31, 20@¢ebber 28, 2008, and December 27, 2009 the foilpatctivity occurred under our option

plans:

2007 2008

2009

Weighted average grant date 1
value of options grante
Total intrinsic value of option

exercised (in thousand 10 —
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Additional information about stock optiomststanding at December 27, 2009 with exerciseepriess than and greater than $10.20 per
share, the exercise price at December 24, 200%ashé&ading day of the period, follows:

Exercisable Unexercisable Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number Average Number Average Number Average
of Shares Exercise of Shares Exercise of Shares Exercise
Stock Options (000's) Price (000's) Price (000's) Price
Less than $10.2 491 $§ 6.24 16 $ 9.97 507 $ 6.3¢
Above $10.2( 91€ $ 41.6¢ 5 $ 13.3¢ 921 $ 41.5(
Total outstanding 1,407 $ 29.2¢ 21 $ 10.7C 1,42¢ $ 29.0Z

The following table summarizes the CompsuRéstricted Stock Unit activity:

Weighted-
Restricted Average
Stock Units Grant Date
(000's) Fair Value
Nonvested balance at December
2008 284 $ 22.1(
Grants 17¢ $ 14.0(
Vested 8 $ 20.3¢
Forfeitures (23) $ 15.9¢
Nonvested balance at December
2009 43z $ 19.17

As of December 27, 2009, there was $5.9anibf total unrecognized stock-based compensatipense related to nonvested restricted
stock units which is expected to be recognized avemaining weightedverage vesting period of 6.4 years. The fair vafuRSU awards thi
vested in 2007, 2008, and 2009 was $1.2 million3 $dillion, and $0.2 million, respectively.

(d) Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In August 1999, the Board of Directors apad the 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (E@PB)al of 435,000 shares of Common
Stock have been authorized for issuance underuhehBse Plan. The Purchase Plan qualifies as alogeepstock purchase plan within the
meaning of Section 423 of the Internal RevenueiSer@ode. The Purchase Plan commenced in Noven3i9&r dpon completion of the
Company's initial public offering. On November 2605, the Compensation Committee of the Board cédors elected to suspend all future
offerings under the Purchase Plan effective Janlia?p06. On February 27, 2008, the Compensationmitiee elected to reinstate offerings
under the Purchase Plan effective April 1, 2008.

Unless otherwise determined by the Compers&€ommittee of the Board of Directors, all emy#es are eligible to participate in the
Purchase Plan so long as they are employed bydhgény (or a subsidiary designated by the boardjtfeeast 20 hours per week and were
customarily employed by the Company (or a subsydisignated by the board) for at least 5 monthsglendar year.
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Employees who actively participate in thedhase Plan are eligible to have up to 15% of therinings for each purchase period withheld
pursuant to the Purchase Plan. The amount thathéeld is used at various purchase dates witreroffering period to purchase shares of
Common Stock. The price paid for Common Stock ehesach purchase date is equal to the lower of 8b8te fair market value of the
Common Stock at the commencement date of thatioffgreriod or 85% of the fair market value of then@non Stock on the relevant purck
date. Employees are also able to end their paatiop in the offering at any time during the offeyiperiod, and participation ends
automatically upon termination of employment. Fritrea Purchase Plan's inception through Decembe2@R, the cumulative number of
shares of Common Stock that have been issued timel@urchase Plan is 314,000 and approximatel\00RGhares were available for future
issuance. During fiscal 2008 and 2009 approxim&6lp00 and 50,000 shares were issued under the gtan average price of $15.56 and
$9.73, respectively.

The fair value of Kratos's ESPP share2@f)9 was estimated using the Black-Scholes optiming model. The assumptions and
resulting fair values of options granted for 200&evas follows:

Offering Offering
Periods Periods
April 1 to January 1 to
December 31, December 31
2008 2009
Expected term (in years)( 0.5 0.5
Risk-free interest rate(Z 0.85%- 1.53% 0.27%- 0.33%
Expected volatility(3' 48.4%- 63.1% 61.5%- 121.0%
Expected dividend yield(« 0% 0%
Weighted average grant-date
fair value per shar $5.60 $4.39

(1) The expected term is equivalent to the offeringquer

(2) The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Tmyagelds in effect at the time of grant with arteequal to
the expected term.

(3) The Company estimated implied volatility based upailing volatility.

4) The Company has no history or expectation of paginglends on its common stock.
As of December 27, 2009, there was no wyeieed compensation expense related to the EmpiSieck Purchase Plan.
(e) Stockholder Rights Agreement

On December 16, 2004, the Company enterteda Stockholder Right Agreement (the Rights Agreset). Under the terms of the Rights
Agreement, initially, the Rights will attach to akrtificates representing shares of outstandingzmy common stock and no separate Rights
Certificates will be distributed. Subject to th@yisions of the Rights Agreement the Rights wifpaete from the Company common stock and
the Distribution Date will occur upon the earliér(i) ten business days following a public announeet (the date of such announcement being
the Stock Acquisition Date) that person or groupffifiated or associated persons has acquiredtaimed the
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right to acquire beneficial ownership of 15% or mof the then-outstanding common stock (an AcqgiRerson), or (ii) ten business days (or
such later date as may be determined by actioheoBbard of Directors prior to such time as anysperbecomes an Acquiring Person
following the commencement of a tender offer orhexge offer that would result in a person or grbepoming an Acquiring Person. An
Acquiring Person does not include certain perspesified in the Rights Agreement.

On December 16, 2004, the Company's BoBirectors authorized and declared a dividendr# dght (a Right) to purchase one one-
hundredth of a share of the Company's Series @ifPeef Stock (Series C Preferred) for each outstgshare of common stock, par value
$0.001 (Common Stock), to stockholders of recordfake close of business December 27, 2004 (tlwoeDate). Each Right entitles the
registered holder, subject to the terms of the Riglyreement, to purchase from the Company onehoneredth of a share of Series C
Preferred at a purchase price of $54.00, subjeatljisstment (the Purchase Price).

The Rights are not exercisable until thetlibution Date and will expire at the close of iness on the tenth anniversary of the Rights
Agreement unless earlier redeemed or exchangeleb@ampany.

Note 11. Employee Benefit Plan

In 1996, the Company implemented a 4014k)reys plan pursuant to Section 401(k) of the maeRevenue Code (the Code), covering
substantially all employees. Participants in trenphay contribute a percentage of compensatiomditut excess of the maximum allowed
under the Code. The Company may make contribuibtise discretion of its Board of Directors. Then@uany made contributions of
$2.1 million in 2007, $2.7 million in 2008 and $6r0llion in 2009.

On November 18, 2004, the Board of Dirextmlopted the Wireless Facilities, Inc. Nonqualifizeferred Compensation Plan, effective
of January 1, 2005 (the Plan). The Plan providesetive officers and other eligible highly comperseemployees with the opportunity to
enter into agreements to defer up to eighty per@a%0o) of their cash compensation derived from Isadary, bonus awards and/or
commissions. In addition, the Company may, indie &ind absolute discretion, award any participaicter the Plan an additional employer
contribution. Deferrals are adjusted for gain @slbased on the performance of one or more investoptions selected by the participant from
among investment funds chosen by the committeeiaigabto administer the Plan. Participants mayteteat distribution of deferred amounts
be paid in the form of either a lump sum or in adrinstaliments if the participant terminates enypdent as a result of his or her retirement.
However, all other distributions under the Plan W made in a single lump sum. Distributions oagoon termination of service or upon such
other dates that may be elected by the participaamtcordance with the terms of the Plan. The Caompia its sole discretion, may suspend or
terminate the Plan or revise or amend it in anpeeswhatsoever; provided, however, that no sutbramay reduce amounts credited to
deferral accounts and such accounts will continugetowed to the participants or beneficiariesaiiccontinue to be a liability of the
Company.
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The following table presents our key custasrfor the years presented and the percentaget ghles made to such customers (in millic

% of Total

Kez Customer Revenue Revenue
2007
U.S. Navy $ 38.7 20%
U.S. Army $ 46.7 24%
2008
U.S. Navy $ 106.c 37%
U.S. Army $ 49.C 17%
2009
U.S. Navy $ 100.¢ 30%
U.S. Army $ 72C 22%

Our top five customers accounted for appnaxely 62%, 65% and 62% of our total revenue i872@2008 and 2009, respectively.

The following table presents net accouatgivable for customers with significant concemrat (in millions):

Accounts % of Total accounts
Key Customer receivable, net receivable, net
2008
U.S. Navy $ 26.€ 28%
2009
U.S. Navy $ 125 17%
U.S. Army $ 10.1 14%

Note 13. Segment Information

The Company operates in two principal besinsegments: Kratos Government Solutions (KGSPaibtic Safety and Security (PSS).
Company organizes its business segments base@ oratilre of the services offered. Transactions é&tveegments are generally negotiated
and accounted for under terms and conditions sirtdlather government and commercial contractsthese intercompany transactions are
eliminated in consolidation. This presentationaagistent with the Company's operating structuegtain income and charges that are not

allocated to segments in the Company's managerpotts because they are not considered in evafutittnsegments' operating performance
are categorized as reconciling items in the tablevo.
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Revenues, operating income (loss) and sipsevided by the Company's segments for the yarated December 31, 2007, December 28,
2008, and December 27, 2009, are as follows (iiang):

2007 2008 2009

Revenues

Kratos Government Solutior $ 142.F $ 246.7 $ 304.:
Public Safety & Securit 38.2 39.5 30.2
Total revenue $ 180.7 $ 286.2 $ 334t

Depreciation and amortizatio
Kratos Government Solutiot $ 34 % 64 % 7TE

Public Safety & Securit 0.¢ 0.9 0.8
Total depreciation an
amortization $ 432 % 73 $ 82

Operating income (loss) fro
continuing operation:
Kratos Government Solutiot $ 332 % (97.9 $ (23.9

Public Safety & Securit (5.6) 0.6 1.9

Corporate activitie (21.9) 3.5 (2.0
Total operating loss from

continuing operation $ (23.6) $ (93.9) $ (27.0

Unallocated charges are related to corpagpenses previously allocated to the discontimiszless network services segment prior to
the disposal of those businesses, stock based csetjpen charges and related tax adjustments, impair and restructuring charges and
expenses related to the stock option investigatrducted in 2007. As a result of the divestiturthe WNS businesses, the corporate
expenses allocated to the PSS and KGS segmenitscheased in 2007, negatively impacting the opegaticome (loss) for these continuing
operations.

Amounts related to corporate activities evienpacted by the following items in 2007, 2008 2089. In 2007, there were $10.6 million in
costs of the stock option investigation and relatests as well as the recovery from the formerkstgtion administrator. In 2008, there was a
benefit of $4.5 million in corporate activities digeinsurance reimbursements of costs and lostgedeo the stock option investigation in
2007 as well as recoveries from the theft of simgfions that had not previously been agreed toobered. In 2009, the Company reached an
agreement with the plaintiffs to settle the outdtag 2004 and 2007 derivative lawsuits. This reglilh a benefit in 2009 of $0.2 million as a
result of the reduction in the estimated accrualtee to this litigation offset by expenses relatedovernment inquiries by the Department of
Justice related to the Company's historical stgatlon granting practices which was completed in@200 addition, in 2009, there was an
expense of $0.6 million for the year ended Decer@@e2009, which was a result of a change in then@my's excess facility accrual due to
the consolidation of space at its corporate heatepsafollowing the sale of the SYS commercial besses and a cancellation of a sublease of
one of its tenants due to financial difficulties.
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In 2008 and 2009, the KGS segment had gdlidwpairment charges of $105.8 million and $4i8lion, respectively.

2008 2009

Assets:
Kratos Government Solutior $ 275.¢ $ 217.t
Public Safety & Securit 12.2 9.4
Discontinued Operatior 6.1 2.3
Corporate activitie 18.1 12.1
Total asset $ 3124 $ 241

Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company periodically evaluates all pegar threatened contingencies and any commitméreay, that are reasonably likely to
have a material adverse effect on its operatiorimancial position. The Company assesses the pilityeof an adverse outcome and
determines if it is remote, reasonably possiblprobable as defined in accordance with the pronsiufSFAS ASC Topic 450 Contingencies
(Topic 450). If information available prior to the issuancetisé Company's financial statements indicatesitlimprobable that an asset had
been impaired or a liability had been incurrechatdate of the Company's financial statementstlzdmount of the loss, or the range of
probable loss can be reasonably estimated, thénlsss is accrued and charged to operations. #acoual is made for a loss contingency
because one or both of the conditions pursuafbpic 450are not met, but the probability of an adverse autke is at least reasonably poss
the Company will disclose the nature of the corgimzy and provide an estimate of the possible losarme of loss, or state that such an
estimate cannot be made.

The Company maintains an accrual for then@any's health and workers' compensation partialrsirance, which is a component of
total accrued expenses and current liabilitiesigé@htinued operations in the Consolidated Bal&toeets. Management determines the
adequacy of these accruals based on a monthlyatiaiwf the Company's historical experience aadds related to both medical and worl
compensation claims and payments, information plexito the Company by the Company's insurance hrivkdustry experience and the
average lag period in which claims are paid. Ifsindormation indicates that the Company's accrreggire adjustment, the Company will,
correspondingly, revise the assumptions utilizethexCompany's methodologies and reduce or prdeidadditional accruals as deemed
appropriate. As of December 31, 2007, Decembe2@@3, and December 27, 2009, the accrual for thregaay's partial self-insurance
programs approximated $1.1 million, $0.7 milliorde$0.6 million, respectively. In 2007, 2008 and 20he provision for these programs
which was related to continuing operations was $tilon, $0.4 million, and $0.3 million, respecéily. The Company also carries stop-loss
insurance that provides coverage limiting the Camyfsatotal exposure related to each medical andevercompensation claim incurred, as
defined in the applicable insurance policies. Thealival and workers compensation annual claim liswies$50,000 and $250,000, respectively.
In 2007, 2008, and 2009, no claims exceeded thisliior workers compensation. In 2007, 2008 and®2@®e Company had three, none, and
two claims, respectively, which exceeded the lirfotsmedical insurance.
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IPO Securities Litigation

Beginning in June 2001, the Company anthoeof its officers and directors were named dsmigants in several parallel class action
shareholder complaints filed in the United Statéstriat Court for the Southern District of New Ygnkow consolidated under the caption, In re
Wireless Facilities, Inc. Initial Public OfferingeBurities Litigation, Case 01-CV-4779. In the amesthdomplaint, the plaintiffs allege that the
Company, certain of its officers and directors, #ralunderwriters of the Company's initial publftedng (IPO) violated section 11 of the
Securities Act of 1933 and section 10(b) of theusiies Exchange Act of 1934 based on allegatibas the Company's registration statement
and prospectus failed to disclose material fagianding the compensation to be received by, andttitk allocation practices of, the IPO
underwriters. The plaintiffs seek unspecified mangtlamages and other relief. Similar complaintseviided in the same court against
hundreds of other public companies ("Issuers") toaducted IPOs of their common stock in the [&@0k and 2000. These complaints have
been consolidated into an action captioned InitealfPublic Offering Securities Litigation, 21 M@2 (the IPO Cases).

In June 2004, the Issuers (including thenBany) executed a partial settlement agreementthétiplaintiffs that would have, among other
things, resulted in the dismissal with prejudicalbttlaims against the Issuers and their offi@erd directors and the assignment of certain
potential Issuer claims to the plaintiffs. On Fedrgul5, 2005, the district court issued a decisienifying a class action for settlement purpc
and granting preliminary approval of the settlenmrtiject to modification of certain bar orders emmplated by the settlement. On August 31,
2005, the court reaffirmed class certification lef settlement class and preliminary approval oftbdified settlement in a comprehensive
Order. On February 24, 2006, the court dismisdéeghtion filed against certain underwriters in ceation with certain claims to be assigned
under the settlement. On April 24, 2006, the distourt held a Final Fairness Hearing to determihether to grant final approval of the
settlement, and the court reserved decision atithat While the partial settlement was pendingrapgl, the plaintiffs continued to litigate
against the underwriter defendants. The distriatrtcdirected that the litigation proceed withinamber of "focus cases" rather than all of the
310 cases that had been consolidated. The Compasgds not one of these focus cases. On Oct8h@004, the district court certified the
focus cases as class actions. The underwriter dafes appealed that ruling and on December 5, 2886 econd Circuit Court of Appeals
reversed the district court's class certificatiecidion. On April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit denaaintiffs' rehearing petition, but clarified
that the plaintiffs could seek to certify a momaitied class in the district court. In light of tBecond Circuit opinion, liaison counsel for all
issuer defendants, including the Company, infortheddistrict court that the settlement could noaipproved because the defined settlement
class, like the litigation class, could not be ified. On June 24, 2007, the district court enteaedrder terminating the proposed settlement.

Plaintiffs filed second consolidated amahdemplaints in the six focus cases on August 0872and, on September 27, 2007, again
moved for class certification. On November 12, 20f¥ftain of the defendants in the focus cases thtivdismiss the second consolidated
amended class action complaints. On March 26, 20@8]istrict court denied the motions to dismissept as to section 11 claims raised by
those plaintiffs who sold their securities for &prin excess of the initial offering price andsbavho purchased outside the previously cert
class period. The motion for class
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certification was withdrawn without prejudice ont@Gger 10, 2008. On April 2, 2009, a stipulation @gdeement of settlement among the
plaintiffs, issuer defendants and underwriter dégens was submitted to the Court for preliminargrapal. The Court granted the plaintiffs'
motion for preliminary approval and preliminarilgrtified the settlement classes on June 10, 2008 s€ttlement fairness hearing was held on
September 10, 2009. On October 6, 2009, the Coteted an opinion granting final approval to thitlement and directing that the Clerk of
the Court close the IPO Cases. Notices of appehi®fiecision have been filed. Due to the inhevmtertainties of litigation and because the
settlement remains subject to appeal, the ultimateome of the matter is uncertain.

2004 and 2007 Derivative Securities Litigation

In August 2004, following the Company's anncement on August 4, 2004 that it intended ttatests financial statements for the fiscal
years ended December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and #@8ompany and certain of its current and foraficers and directors were named
defendants (Defendants) in several securities eletssn lawsuits filed in the United States Didtf@urt for the Southern District of Californ
These actions were filed on behalf of those whelpased, or otherwise acquired, the Company's consteak between April 26, 2000 and
August 4, 2004. The lawsuits generally alleged, tthating that time period, Defendants made falskraisleading statements to the investing
public about the Company's business and finanegallts, causing its stock to trade at artificidtiffated levels. Based on these allegations, the
lawsuits alleged that Defendants violated the SgesiExchange Act of 1934, and the plaintiffs dotugnspecified damages. On January 13,
2009, following a motion by the parties, the Cayranted final approval of the settlement of thdaets, issued its final judgment on the
matter, and entered an order dismissing the cabepngjudice.

In 2004, two derivative lawsuits were filedthe United States District Court for the SouthBistrict of California against certain of the
Company's current and former officers and directBeslicini v. Wireless Facilities, Inc., Case 04®83; and Roth v. Wireless Facilities, Inc.,
Case 04CV1810. These actions were consolidatedisiogle action in In re Wireless Facilities, IBerivative Litigation, Lead Case No
04CV1663-JAH. These lawsuits contain factual alliege that are substantially similar to those miadhe class action lawsuits, but the
plaintiffs in these lawsuits assert claims for loteaf fiduciary duty, gross mismanagement, abusmofrol, waste of corporate assets, viola
of Sarbanes Oxley Act section 304, unjust enrichtraed insider trading. The plaintiffs in these laws seek unspecified damages and
equitable and/or injunctive relief. The lead pléfrftled a consolidated complaint on March 21, 30@n May 3, 2005, the defendants filed
motions to dismiss this action, to stay this acpending the resolution of the consolidated nonvdéve securities case pending in the
Southern District of California, and to dismiss ttenplaint against certain non-California residdefiendants. Pursuant to a request by the
court, the defendants' motions were withdrawn wittgrejudice pending a decision on defendants'andt dismiss the complaint against the
non-California resident defendants. On March 2@72®he court ruled that it lacked personal judtidn over five of the six non-California
defendants and dismissed them from the federalatére complaint. On March 27, 2007, plaintiffefil an amended derivative complaint
setting forth all of the same allegations from dhigiinal complaint and adding allegations regardimg Company's stock option granting
practices. The amended complaint names all of tiggtnal defendants (including those dismissed &aklof jurisdiction) as well as nine new
defendants. On July 2, 2007, the
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non-California resident defendants moved to disrtiescomplaint for lack of personal jurisdictionn ©ctober 17, 2007, the court took the
motion under submission without oral argument. @hrbary 26, 2008, the court again ruled that idaicpersonal jurisdiction over five of the
six non-California defendants and dismissed themmfthe amended federal derivative complaint. Asrgubsequently moved the court for
certification and entry of final judgment of theuctls order dismissing the non-residents for lafcReysonal jurisdiction so that the plaintiffs
may seek immediate appellate review of the maBarJuly 10, 2008, the court granted plaintiffs’ imotfor certification, which was not
opposed by defendants. On August 12, 2008, thaetjifaifiled a notice of appeal of the personaigdictional order. In light of the proposed
settlement of all derivative litigation, discusds&ow, the court has stayed all other matters ed@epecessary to document and consummate
the proposed settlement, pending final approvéhefproposed settlement. Similarly, the appellatgtchas stayed all matters related to
plaintiffs' notice of appeal of the personal jurignal order pending district court approval loé tproposed settlement.

In August and September 2004, two virtuadlntical derivative lawsuits were filed in Califda Superior Court for San Diego County
against certain of the Company's current and fowffezers and directors. These actions containuicallegations similar to those of the
federal lawsuits, but the plaintiffs in these caagsert claims for violations of California’s insidrading laws, breaches of fiduciary duty, abuse
of control, gross mismanagement, waste of corp@sdets and unjust enrichment. The plaintiffs @s¢éhactions seek unspecified damages,
equitable and/or injunctive relief and disgorgemafrall profits, benefits and other compensatiotaoted by defendants. These lawsuits have
been consolidated into one actioim+e Wireless Facilities, Inc. Derivative Litigati, California Superior Court, San Diego Countyadl€ast
GIC 834253. The plaintiffs filed a Consolidated &teolder Derivative Complaint on October 14, 20Ddis action has been stayed pending a
decision in federal court on a motion to dismissféderal derivative lawsuit. In October 2009, plagties notified the Court of the status of the
federal action and stipulated to stay the matteafoadditional six months. The Court subsequegriynted the parties' stipulation and stay
request and ordered the parties to file an updsteeds report in April 2010.

In October 2009, following a voluntarily diation and subsequent negotiations related tofalie above-described derivative litigation,
the parties reached an agreement in principlette sl claims in the federal and state derivatitigation. The district court granted the part
joint motion for preliminary approval of their proped settlement in January 2010 and will hold aihgan March 29, 2010 to determi
whether the proposed settlement should be apprasdéidal and whether the court should enter a fudgment order dismissing the matter
with prejudice. The details of the settlement atefarth in the settlement papers filed with thertoThere is no guarantee, however, that the
settlement ultimately will be approved by the courtaddition, defendants continue to believe tiaintiffs’ allegations lack merit and intenc
vigorously defend all claims asserted if the setdat is not approved as final and the case dischissis impossible at this time to assess
whether or not the outcome of these proceedingshaile a material adverse effect on the Company.

The Company has recorded an accrual fonéingent liability associated with the legal prediangs related to the derivative actions of
$0.1 million based on the Company's estimate optitential amount it would have to pay in relatiorthe settlement of these derivative
lawsuits. The Company deposited the $0.1 millido escrow with the court in January, 2010. The Camypexpects
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the majority of any additional costs incurred imaoection with the settlement of these lawsuitsegdid by its Directors' and Officers' liability
insurer(s).

Other Litigation and Government Reviews and Investjations

In addition to the foregoing matters, frime to time, the Company may become involved inots claims, lawsuits and legal
proceedings that arise in the ordinary course sfrtmss. However, litigation is subject to inheremtertainties, and an adverse result in the:
other matters may arise from time to time that fmaym the Company's business. The Company is cilymeott aware of any such legal
proceedings or claims that it believes will havelividually or in the aggregate, a material advef§ect on our business, financial condition,
operating results or cash flows.

Note 16. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following financial information reflectll normal and recurring adjustments that aréhénopinion of management, necessary for a
fair statement of the results of the interim pesidBummarized quarterly data for the years endegiber 28, 2008 and December 27, 20C
as follows (in millions, except per share data):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Fiscal year 200¢
Revenue! $ 6585 $ 695 $ 77¢C $ 73l
Gross profil $ 122 $ 12t $ 172 $ 16.
Operating income (loss) from continuing operati $ 1C $ 32 % 42 $ (1019
Provision (benefit) for income tax: $ 0E $ 04 3% 0E $ (21
Net income (loss $ 19 $ 08 $ (02 $ (1099
Net income (loss) per common she
Basic $ (029 $ 0.1C $ (0.02) $ (10.3¢)
Diluted $ (029 $ 0.1C $ (0.02) $ (10.3¢)
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Quarterly Results in 2008

In the fourth quarter of 2008, the Compeegorded a non-cash impairment charge of the cayyalue of its goodwill of $105.8 million
as a result of adverse equity market conditionstaedesulting decline in market multiples and ¢henpany's stock price. The Company
recorded benefits for the recovery of unauthorigedk options and fees related to the investigdipthe U.S. Attorney's Office of
$0.6 million, $1.0 million and $2.9 million for theecond, third and fourth quarters, respectivedya sesult of agreements reached with the
Company's insurance carriers to cover these l@sskexpenses.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Fiscal year 200¢
Revenue: $ 82¢€¢ $ 90 $ 861 $ 75z
Gross profil $ 172 $ 174 $ 177 $ 17.C
Operating income (loss) from continuing operati $ 387)% 38 3% 45 $ 34
Provision (benefit) for income tax: $ 03 $ 02 $ (01)$ O0F
Net income (loss $ 42) % (25 $ 27 $ 04
Net income (loss) per common she
Basic $ (329 $ (019 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.0°
Diluted $ (329 $ (0.19 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.0Z

Quarterly Results in 2009

In the first quarter of 2009, the Compaegarded a non-cash impairment charge of the cagrmatue of its goodwill of $41.3 million as a
result of adverse equity market conditions andrésalting decline in current market multiples ane tompany's stock price.

In September 2009, the Company reachedj@ement with the plaintiffs to settle the outsiagd2004 and 2007 derivative lawsuits. The

Company had previously accrued $0.7 million relatethe estimated settlement of this matter arttiérthird quarter of 2009, the Company
recorded a reduction to the estimated settleme®0& million as a result of the settlement agre@me

In the fourth quarter of 2009, there was/$@illion in interest expense related to the ameglon of the amortization of deferred financing

costs due to the $17.5 million early extinguishmarthe first lien term loan in October 2009.

As a result of the impact of the issuanic2.6 million shares in September 2009 on the Camisaguarterly and yearly weighted average
basic and diluted shares outstanding, the sum @ 20arterly earnings per share does not equaldnepany's 2009 earnings per share.

Note 17. Subsequent Events

On March 3, 2010, the Company enteredantew senior secured credit agreement (the Crepgéinent) with Key Bank National
Association (KeyBank) as Administrative Agent areghtder for a new credit facility (the New Credit Fi&g in the aggregate principal amount
of $60.0 million. The
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Note 17. Subsequent Events (Continued)

New Credit Facility is comprised of (i) a $35.0 laih term loan facility and (ii) a $25.0 millionvelving line of credit. Bank of America, N.A
is Syndication Agent and Lender, and KeyBanc Caplerkets and Banc of America Securities, LLC acsdCo-Lead Arrangers and Book
Runners. Pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agezenthe term loan and revolving credit facilitg &oth three year facilities. The proceeds
under the Credit Agreement may be used for geweralorate purposes including refinancing of exgtdiank debt, working capital and
acquisitions.

Also on March 3, 2010, the Company enténéaltwo Payoff Letters with KeyBank terminating &xisting $85.0 million credit facility
(the Prior Credit Facility). In connection with thefinancing of the Prior Credit Facility, the Coamy borrowed $57.5 million under the New
Credit Facility. Approximately $25.0 million of theroceeds were used to pay in full the remainirigrizae on the first lien term loan under the
Prior Credit Facility held by Silverpoint CapitaPL(Silverpoint), at par, with no prepayment perasltpursuant to the Settlement Agreement
that the Company entered into with Silverpoint ict@der 2009. As a result of the refinance, the Camgpexpects to record an approximate
$2.2 million interest charge related to the writeed unamortized financing costs related to thePCredit Facility. As of March 3, 2010, after
giving full effect to the refinancing and repaymenfull of the Prior Credit Facility, the Compahgd outstanding debt of $35.0 million under
the New Credit Facility term loan and $22.5 millionder the New Credit Facility revolving line okdiit.

The Company may borrow funds under the €Aegteements (i) at the base rate, determineth@gteater of (A) the prime loan rate
announced by KeyBank and (B) the sum of the wejateerage overnight federal funds rate publishethbyFederal Reserve Bank plus 50
basis points, or (ii) at the offshore rate, detediby the Administrative Agent as the offered fatdJ.S. dollar deposits in the approximate
amount of the requested loan and having a matcoityparable to such interest period, which rate aysp@\) on the British Bankers'
Association internet web page (http://www.bba.dkfpublic/libor/), or via (B) Reuters (BBALIBORS),IBomberg, Moneyline Telerate
(Page 3750) or any other information provider & British Bankers' Association daily Libor ratesod41:00 A.M., London time, on the date
which is the second day on which banks are opeimferbank deposits in London prior to the commemeet of such interest period; as
adjusted for reserve requirements and rounded wsnfinecessary to the next higher 1/100%. Borrgwiare subject to a Libor floor rate of
2.75% or a Base Rate floor of 5.25%. Term loandwimgs and revolver borrowings may be subject tadditional 450 basis points and 375
basis points, respectively, based on the Companstiit ratings. In addition, the Company must pdgearanging from 30 basis points per
annum to 75 points per annum, based on its cratiitgs, on the daily amount of the unused commitsender the revolving credit facility.
The initial interest rate under the New Credit kcfor the term loan is 7.25%, compared to thpragimate 11.75% interest rate under the
Original Credit Facility term loan. The initial irtest under the New Credit Facility for the revotyiine of credit is approximately 6.50%,
compared to the approximate 6.75% rate under tiggr@r Credit facility revolving line of credit.

Pursuant to certain terms of the Credite®gnent, in certain instances the Company is redjtirprepay outstanding indebtedness prior to
its stated maturity date. Specifically, certain fienurring cash inflows such as proceeds from asdes, insurance recoveries, and equity
offerings as well as
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certain annual operating cash flows may have todeel to pay down indebtedness and may not be e

The terms of the Credit Agreement includstomary representations and warranties, as wed@asting and financial covenants,
customary for financings of this type. The finahciavenants include a quarterly maximum leveragie & 2.75 through December 31, 2010,
reducing to 2.50 thereafter, a quarterly fixed geazoverage ratio of 1.10 through December 31, 20%h an increase to 1.25 thereafter. In
addition, the covenants include a monthly asse¢@ge ratio of Eligible Billed Accounts Receivablas defined, of 1.25 times for outstanding
balances of the revolving credit facility.

The Credit Agreement provides for the &piid increase the revolving line of credit fagillty up to $15.0 million to a total not to exceed
$40.0 million, in the event that the Administratikgent elects to secure additional commitments fEbisting Lenders or from New Lenders.
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EXHIBIT 10.26
SUBLEASE AGREEMENT
4820 Eastgate Mall, San Diego, California 92121

This Sublease (Subleas€’) is made as of the day of DecemB609 (the ‘Effective Date”) by and between AMYLIN
PHARMACEUTICALS, INC., a Delaware corporation$ublessor’), and KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, ING,
Delaware corporation (Sublesses).

Recitals

A. Pursuant to that certain Deed of leedated March 6, 2007 (thd_ease”), between THE IRVINE COMPANY LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (as successoinierest to CA-BRIDGE POINTE CORPORATE CENTRELIMITED PARTNERSHIP,
a Delaware limited partnership) Prime Lessor”), as landlord, and Sublessor, as tenant, as aetkloyl that certain First Amendment to Lease
dated as of May 28, 2008, between Prime LessoSaikessor (the Lease and any amendments theretolbeetively referred to herein as the
“ Prime Lease” and is attached hereto Bghibit A ) Prime Lessor leased and demised to Sublessairt@remises (the Leased Premise$)
including the building known as 4820 Eastgate NtaBuilding 6 "), which building is situated in the City of Sandgo, County of San Diego,
State of California, in the project commonly knoasBridge Pointe Corporate Centre (tHerbject ") as depicted on and more fully descril
in the Prime Lease.

B. Sublessor wishes to sublease to Ssbéeand Sublessee wishes to sublease from Suldgssdion of the Leased Premises
consisting of approximately 31,766 rentable sqfieeéon the second floor, and 2,158 rentable sdigateon the first floor of Building 6
(hereinafter, the Sublet Premises’) as depicted otexhibit B attached heretpunder the terms and subject to the conditions hafir set
forth, the actual measurement of which will be @onéd by Sublessor’s architect using the Standagthibd for Measuring Floor Area in
Office Buildings published by the Building OwnersdaManagers Association International (‘BOMA”). €nconfirmed, any discrepancy
between the square footage set forth above anakctial square footage of the Sublet Premises ginvers footage set forth above shall prevail
for all purposes.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of theefywing Recitals and the mutual covenants, promé&esagreements herein
contained, the parties hereto, intending to bellieaund hereby, covenant and agree as follows:

1. Demise and PremiseSublessor hereby grants and demises to Subjesm&ublessee hereby accepts from Sublessor,
subject to the terms and conditions of this Suldeas] the Prime Lease, for the period set forBeiction 2 below, the Sublet Premises toge
with the nonexclusive right to use the parking, driveway ar@ed all common facilities, if any, available to $&gsor under the Prime Lease
common with Prime Lessor and other tenants of Ptiessor, and their invitees, licensees, employ&ésers, servants, contractors and
visitors.




2. Sublease TermSublessor shall deliver possession of the Siblamises to Sublessee on or before December 08, (&te
“ Delivery Date”). Sublessee shall be permitted to begin constmof its improvements and installation of itsrfiture, fixtures and
equipment after the Delivery Date. The term of thublease (theSublease TernT) shall commence on May 1, 2010Commencement
Date ™), assuming Sublessor has received both the con$d¢ine Prime Lessor to this Sublease and theeLeftCredit (hereinafter defined) and
shall end on September 30, 2018 (ttfublease Expiration Dat€’). Rent shall commence on May 1, 2011 (tHeeht Commencement Date
™). Sublessor shall not be liable to Sublesseafyrloss or damage incurred by Sublessee if Sublels®s not deliver possession of the Sublet
Premises to Sublessee on the Delivery Date; prdyidewever, that if Sublessor does not, for anggeadeliver possession of the Sublet
Premises to Sublessee by the anticipated Delivatg,Dhen (a) Sublessee shall not be subject tdiaility therefor, nor shall such failure
affect the validity of this Sublease, or the obligas of Sublessee hereunder, or extend the Sublesrsn, but in such case, Sublessee shall,
except as otherwise provided herein be entitledoe (1) day postponement, without payment ofd-oteAdditional Rent during such period,
of the Rent Commencement Date for each day of deldglivery of the Sublet Premises until Sublestslivers possession of the Sublet
Premises to Sublessee. Notwithstanding anythingisnSublease to the contrary, in the event tiaét ease is terminated for any reason, this
Sublease Agreement shall also terminate as ofdteeaf termination of the Prime Lease. Sublessall fave no liability to Sublessee due to
the termination of this Sublease Agreement asdtrethe termination of the Prime Lease, provi@iblessor is not in default of its obligat
to pay rent as provided in the Prime Lease or do¢stherwise cause a default which results ine¢hmination of the Prime Lease.
Notwithstanding anything contained in the Primedeear this Sublease to the contrary, Sublesseklegha no right or option to extend t
term of this Sublease beyond the expiration or sotermination of the Sublease Term.

3. Fixed Rent Commencing on the Rent Commencement Date, Siddeshall pay to Sublessor’s property managerietsll
International, at 4660 La Jolla Village Drive, 2uit00, San Diego, CA 92122, or at such other addare® such other property manager as
Sublessor shall notify Sublessee in writing, theebmonthly rent per rentable square foot of thd&dtremises set forth below (thé&iked
Rent”):

Months After Fixed Monthly Rent
Commencement Date (NNN)/Sq. Ft

1 through 12 $ 1.2¢*
13 through 2¢ $ 1.3¢
25 through 3¢ $ 1.37
37 through 4¢ $ 1.41
49 through 6( $ 1.4t
61 through 7: $ 1.5C
73 through 8¢ $ 1.54
85 through 9¢ $ 1.5¢
97 through Expiration Dat $ 1.6

* Subject to abatement as set forth below.




Provided there is no continuing and uncured Evéitefault (as defined below) by Sublessee under $hiblease, Sublessor and
Sublessee agree that commencing on the Rent Corement Date and continuing until the date whiclwvislte (12) months after the Rent
Commencement Date (theRent Abatement Period”) Fixed Rent and Expenses and Taxes (defined Hedball be abated, except that
Sublessee shall pay for all electricity and jarndtioservices provided to the Sublet Premises frachatter the Delivery Date. If, at the
expiration of the Sublease Term, there is no coiritnand uncured Event of Default by Sublessee uhike Sublease, Sublessor shall waive
the payment of all such conditionally abated Fikesht and Expenses and Taxes. Should there beear & Default, at any time during the
Sublease Term, and such Event of Default giveseSsbl the right to terminate this Sublease pri@dptember 30, 2018, pursuant to the
express terms of this Sublease then the total ahwduhe conditionally abated Fixed Rent and Exesrand Taxes shall be immediately due
and payable by Sublessee to Sublessor and Sublessdry waives any and all rights and defensesyt have with respect to any statute of
limitations arising in connection with Sublessasercise of its rights and remedies relating todheditionally abated Fixed Rent and
Expenses and Taxes.

Subject to the abatement set forth above, Fixed &all be payable in monthly installments in acdeaduring the Sublease Term on
the first day of each month, commencing on Rent @encement Date. Notwithstanding the above, Subdesisall pay the Fixed Rent for the
thirteenth (13" ) month of the Sublease Term ortfiective Date.

4, Additional Rent Subject to the abatement provisions set fortBdantion 3 above, from and after the Rent Commeanéem
Date, Sublessee shall pay to Sublessor’s propeatiager, Sublesseepro rata share of Expenses and Taxes (as defirtkd Prime Lease) a
other associated project operating expenses asedefi Exhibit B to the Prime Lease as additioealrto the Sublessor or Sublessor’s agents.
Sublessee’s pro rata share of such Expenses amd T@gurrently estimated to be $0.49 per rentsdplere foot per month. Sublessor or Prime
Lessor shall provide common area maintenance &rand daily janitorial services (Monday — Fridaie cost of which shall be included in
Expenses and Taxes. Sublessor shall not charggparpy management fee or administration fee réltiehis Sublease other than those
charges by Prime Lessor under the Prime Leasewitigtanding the foregoing, Sublessor and Subleaskeowledge that the Sublet Premises
will be separately metered for electricity at Sulske’s sole cost and expense and Sublessee sbellydpay to the electricity provider, prior to
the due date thereof, all charges for electricétgge in the Sublet Premises. Notwithstanding thegfiing or anything to the contrary in this
Sublease or the Prime Lease, Sublessee shall pall tdilities commencing on the Delivery Dateppided thatSublessee shall not pay any
utilities in the nature of Expenses and Taxes duttie Rent Abatement Period. As used herein, tine ‘teent” shall mean and include Fixed
Rent, additional rent and any other sums due hdesunr pursuant to the Prime Lease. Except a®rhtherein, all rent shall be due and
payable without prior notice, demand, deductionftset.

5. Interest on Overdue Payments the event that Sublessee shall fail to pagyiastallment of Fixed Rent or additional ren
any other sum due hereunder or pursuant to theeHrease, Sublessee shall pay Sublessor the admifiustfee equal to $500 pursuant to
Section 4.01 of the Prime Lease, provided that &sdgle shall be entitled to a grace period of Byd(siness days for the first two (2) late
payments of rent in a calendar year without payrétite administrative fee. In addition, past deet shall accrue interest at 12% per




annum, provided that Sublessee shall be entitledgiace period of five (5) business days for tre fwo (2) late payments of rent in a
calendar year, during which two (2) grace period$nterest shall accrue. The parties agree thagpdlgenent of such interest represents the
liability that Sublessor will incur to Prime Lesdoy reason of the late payment by Sublessee, ahériefore not a penalty.

6. Use Sublessee shall use and occupy the Sublet Rrerfitisthe uses permitted under the Prime Lease.

7. Access to Sublet PremiseBuring the period of time from the date herewfillthe Delivery Date, Sublessee shall be
granted access to the Sublet Premises one daykadugag a four-hour time period (which day of theek and time period shall be mutually
agreed upon by Sublessor and Sublessee) subjatteast 48 hour advance notice to Sublessor teegaiformation for initial planning and
design to the Sublet Premises. Notwithstandingdhegoing, the Sublet Premises shall not be deadetdered to Sublessee, and Sublessee
shall not be deemed in possession of the SubletiBes until the Delivery Date. In the event Prinessor has consented to this Sublease on o
before the Delivery Date, Sublessee shall haveigi to occupy the Sublet Premises from and affteiDelivery Date for construction of
Sublessee’s improvements and/or instillation ofifure equipment and furnishings in the Sublet Rses1 The obligation to pay Fixed Rent
shall be abated for any such period of early ocoapdut all other terms of this Sublease (includimgt not limited to, Sublessee’s obligation
to carry the insurance required by Section 10)l $feain effect during such period, and prior to [Bgbee’s early occupancy of the Sublet
Premises, Sublessee shall have previously prowdiede Lessor and Sublessor with proof of Sublesseeurance as set forth in Section 10 of
this Sublease. Any such early possession shallffextt nor advance the Sublease Expiration DatheBublease Term. Any and all mater
work, installations, equipment and decorationsnyf mature brought upon the Building or installedSuyblessee in the Sublet Premises prior to
the Rent Commencement Date shall be at Sublessele’'sisk. Neither Sublessor nor any party actingsublessor’s behalf on or about the
Building shall be responsible for any claim, damagé#ss or destruction of such items brought soBhiilding or installed in the Sublet
Premises prior to the Rent Commencement Date abkk&ee shall indemnify, defend and hold Subldsaonless from any claim, loss,
damage or destruction as a result of such earlypzwy.

7.1 Application of Prime LeaseAs applied to this Sublease, the wordsahdlord " and “ Tenant” in the Prime
Lease will be deemed to refer to Sublessor andeSabe, respectively under this Sublease. Exceghasvise provided in this Sublease, or
except to the extent inconsistent herewith, thetsigand obligations of Prime Lessor and Sublessdeuthe Prime Lease will be deemed to be
the rights and obligations of Sublessor and Subksgspectively, under this Sublease, and willdria the benefit of, and be binding on,
Sublessor and Sublessee, respectively. All prongsbf the Prime Lease shall apply to this Subleagess specifically excluded or modified
this Agreement. Sublessor represents that it Blgeded to Sublessee a true and complete cogyeoPtime Lease to Sublessee, and Sublesse
acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Prime Lees® Sublessor, which such copy is attached hessfxlaibit A . Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the parties hereto acknowledge thatdhewing sections of the Prime Lease shall notrtm®rporated within this Sublease: 1.02,
1.03,1.04, 1.05, 1.06, 1.07, 1.08, 1.10, 1.141,36018, the first three sentences of Section




20, 22 (except as incorporated by reference ini@e86 of this Sublease), Section 2.04 of ExhihiERhibit C, and Sections 1 through 3 and 9
of Exhibit F.

8. Indemnification of SublessoiTo the extent permitted by law, Sublessee strlldoes hereby indemnify Sublessor as a
result of or arising out of Sublessee’s breachizf Bublease or the Prime Lease and agrees tdSsdnkessor harmless and, at Sublessor’s
option, defend Sublessor from and against any dmthéms, actions, damages, liabilities and exgsn@ncluding reasonable attorneys’ and
consultants’ fees) judgments, settlement payments fines paid, incurred or suffered by Sublessa eesult of or arising out of Sublessee’s
breach of this Sublease or the Prime Lease, vimiatdf any law or in connection with loss of lifesrsonal injury and/or damage to the prop
or environment suffered by third parties arisingniror out of the occupancy or use by SublesseleecBtiblet Premises or any part thereof
occasioned wholly or in part by any act or omissibsublessee, its officers, agents, contractonpleyees or invitees (each &lblessee
Party ” and collectively, the ‘Sublessee Partie¥), or arising directly or indirectly, wholly or ipart, from any conduct, activity, act, omission
or operation by any Sublessee Party involving e handling, generation, treatment, storage, dadpother management or Release
(hereinafter defined) of any substance or mateeéihed or designated as hazardous or toxic, araimilar term, by any present or future
local, state or federal environmental statute, l@gn or ordinance, in, from or to the Sublet Pisas, whether or not Sublessee may have .
negligently with respect to such substance or rieteBublessee’s obligations pursuant to thisiBeahall survive any termination of this
Sublease with respect to any act, omission, orroenae which took place prior to such terminatiéts used in this Section, the term “Release”
shall have the meaning ascribed to such term ifréteral Comprehensive Environmental Response, €asagion and Liability Act, (42
U.S.C. Section 6901 et seq. GERCLA ).

9. Sublessar Performance Sublessee has reviewed the provisions of thedPiease concerning the obligation of the Prime
Lessor to supply building services to the Sublenfses. Sublessee recognizes that Sublessot iis agosition to render nor is Sublessor
obligated to render any of the services or perfany of the obligations required of Prime Lessoth®y/terms of the Prime Lease, including,
without limitation, (i) the furnishing of electritanergy, heat, ventilation, water, air conditiayielevator service, cleaning, window washing,
or rubbish removal services, (ii) making any atierss, repairs or restorations, (iii) complying iny laws or requirements of any
governmental authorities, or (iv) taking any actibat Prime Lessor has agreed to provide, makephowith, take or cause to be provided,
made, compiled with or taken under the Prime Ledseerefore, despite anything to the contrary ia Bublease, Sublessee agrees that
performance by Sublessor of its obligations unbier $ublease is conditioned on performance by Ptiessor of its corresponding obligations
under the Prime Lease, and Sublessor will notdi@dito Sublessee for any default of the Prime dregsder the Prime Lease unless such
default results from Sublessor’s failure to perfatsnobligations hereunder. If and to the exteuml8ssor is entitled to any rent abatement from
Prime Lessor under the terms of the Prime Leasdu@img, without limitation, Section 7.05 of theifie Lease), then Sublessee shall be
entitled to a corresponding abatement of rent utiderSublease.




10. Insurance.

10.1 Sublessee, at Sublessee’s sole expaErsemaintain for the benefit of Sublessor anidhBrLessor such policies of
insurance (and in such form) with respect to thiel&WPremises as are required by the Prime Ledsehwolicies shall be reasonably
satisfactory to Sublessor as to coverage and insshall be maintained as a primary policies, arall®xtend to and cover the acts and
omission of Sublessee, and anyone acting by, througinder Sublessee notwithstanding anything aoedan the Prime Lease to the
contrary. Each policy of insurance required urttiexr paragraph shall name Sublessor and Prime Leash as an additional insured.
Sublessee shall provide Sublessor with certificaféssurance evidencing such policies and thatexglor has been named as an additional
insured as promptly as reasonably practical, babievent later than thirty (30) days after theceien of this Sublease, and copies of such
policies upon Sublessor’s request therefor. Adlince policies shall contain a provision andctréificate of insurance shall expressly state
that the insurer will give to Prime Lessor and #8bbr and such other parties in interest at laast {30) days notice in writing in advance of
any material change, cancellation, terminatiorapsé, or the effective date of any reduction inafm@unts of insurance below the amounts
specified herein.

10.2 The parties hereto, by reason of ttmiisent hereto, release each other, the Prime Lasddheir respective agents,
employees, successors and assigns from all liafditdamage to any property that is caused bysults from a risk which is actually insured
against or which would normally be covered by ttamdard form of “all risk” property insurance, watlt regard to the negligence or willful
misconduct of the entity so released. Each pdidyl sise its reasonable efforts to cause eachanserpolicy it obtains to provide that the
insurer thereunder waives all right of recoveryay of subrogation as required herein in conneactidth any damage covered by the policy.

11. Sublessee Default3'he occurrence of any of the following, beyolidapplicable notice and cure periods, shall befadlt
(an“Event of Default” ) under this Sublease:

111 Sublessee shall fail to pay in full whiie any and all installments of rent or any ottierrge agreed to be paid by
Sublessee, if the failure continues for five (5%ibess days after written notice to Sublessee; or

11.2 Sublessee violates or fails to perfary term, covenant, condition or agreement heraiained or provided for in
the Prime Lease and such failure continues foria@ef seventeen (17) days after written notic¢lof is given to Sublessee. If the default is
of such a nature that it cannot be completely reetkdithin the seventeen (17) day period, this fmion shall be complied with if Sublessee
begins correction of the default within the seventél7) day period and thereafter proceeds witbarable diligence and in good faith to efl
the remedy as soon as practicable and to prostmisame to completion, or

11.3 Sublessee becomes insolvent, or makassignment for the benefit of creditors, or ffedition in bankruptcy is
filed by or against Sublessee, or a bill in equityther proceeding for the appointment of a rezrefor Sublessee is filed, or if proceedings for




reorganization or for composition with creditorsdenany state or federal law be instituted by @irgt Sublessee, or if the subleasehold
interest is levied on under execution, or

11.4 Sublessee abandons (as defined ino@ahf Civil Code §1951.3 (or any successor prowigiall or any portion of
the Sublet Premises.

12. Sublessor Remedietn the Event of Default by Sublessee, and wittaoy other action by Sublessor, and at Sublessor’s
option, Sublessor may exercise any and all remedlidt®e Prime Lessor under the Prime Lease. litiaddo the foregoing, Sublessor may
exercise any and all other rights or remedies,tgthar allowed landlords by any existing or futetatute or other law applicable in cases w
a landlord seeks to enforce rights arising undease agreement against a tenant who has defaultberwise breached the terms of such
lease agreement- subject, however, to all of gigsigranted or created by any such statute or afiicable law existing protection and
benefit of tenants.

13. Remedies CumulativeAll of the remedies hereinbefore given to Subdesand all rights and remedies given to it by &
equity shall be cumulative and concurrent. Exespexpressly provided herein and in the Prime Laasé&rmination of this Sublease or the
taking or recovering of the Sublet Premises shegrive Sublessor of any of its remedies or actagainst Sublessee for rent due or other
breach hereof at the time or which, under the tdrereof, would in the future become due as if the® been no termination, or for any and all
sums due at the time or which, under the termsofieneuld in the future become due as if there been no termination, nor shall the bringing
of any action for rent or breach of any covenanthe resort to any other remedy herein providedte recovery of rent or other breach be
construed as a waiver of the right to obtain pagsaf the Sublet Premises.

14. Notices All notices required hereunder shall be deemdaktgiven when hand delivered or one day afteosiewith
express overnight courier delivery, or three ddter anailing by certified U.S. malil, return recergijuested, postage prepaid. Any notices to
Sublessor shall be addressed as follows:

If to Sublessor:

Attention: Real Estate Manager

9360 Towne Centre Drive

San Diego, California 92121

With a copy of legal notices to:

Amylin Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

9360 Towne Centre Drive

San Diego, California 92121

Attn: Marcea Bland Lloyd, General Counsel

and

Grant Puleo, Esq.




Procopio, Cory, Hargreaves & Savitch LLP
530 B Street, Suite 2100
San Diego, CA 92101

Address for Payment of Rent:

Colliers International
4660 La Jolla Village Drive, Suite 100
San Diego, CA 92122

If to Sublessee prior to Delivery Date:

Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.
4810 Eastgate Mall

San Diego, CA 92121

Attn: Law Department

If to Sublessee after Delivery Date:

Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.
4820 Eastgate Mall

San Diego, CA 92121

Attn: Law Department

The time limits provided for in the provisions bitPrime Lease for the giving of notice, makinglefands, performance of any act,
condition or covenant, or the exercise of any rigétnedy or option, are amended for the purposési®Bublease by lengthening or shorter
the same in each instance by two (2) business dayeppropriate, so that notices may be given, ddsmade, or any act, condition or
covenant performed, or any right, remedy or optiereunder exercised, by Sublessor or Sublessé® aase may be, within the time limit
relating thereto contained in the Prime LeasahdfPrime Lease allows only four (4) business aayess for Sublessor to perform any act, or
to undertake to perform such act, or to correctfailyre relating to the Sublet Premises or thibl8ase, then Sublessee shall nevertheless be
allowed two (2) business days to perform suchwaadertake such act and/or correct such failure.

15. Assignment and Sublettingublessee shall comply with the provisions afti®a 11 of the Prime Lease with regard to
assignment and subletting and in those instancesendpplicable, shall be subject to the Prime Lesspproval as provided in the Prime
Lease; provided, however, if Sublessor must fildtim the consent of Prime Lessor, Sublessor’'samnsvhich shall not be unreasonably
withheld or delayed. Notwithstanding the foreggingthing in this Section shall impose upon Suldessy obligation to obtain, beyond its
reasonable efforts to do so, the consent of Prigssar or any other third party. Sublessor shalifpas up to $1,500.00 due to Prime Lessor
under the Prime Lease in connection with the stibtgbf the Sublet Premises to Sublessee. Any amiawexcess of $1,500.00 to obtain Pr
Lessor consent shall be paid by Sublessee.




16. Parking Sublessee shall have the non-exclusive righs& free of charge for the duration of the Sulddasm, 4.3 non-
reserved non-exclusive parking spaces per 1,00@bknsquare feet of the Sublet Premises whicHl, isittude a pro rata share of covered
parking spaces (Parking Spaces’) in designated parking areas in common with ttieentenants, occupants, and visitors of the Ptrojec
During the Sublease Term, Sublessee shall beehtitl designate its pro rata share of designatedngespaces described on Exhibit G to the
Prime Lease as reserved parking spaces for Sublessgsitors and employees in areas immediatelgcedjt to or below Building 6; provided,
however, Sublessee must pay all costs and expérseame Lessor to mark such spaces and restatespaces at the expiration of the Term.
Sublessee’s continued right to use the Parking &pacconditioned upon Sublessee abiding by thegioms of the Prime Lease and all
commercially reasonable rules and regulations whrehprescribed from time to time for the ordegpemtion and use of the parking facility
where the Parking Spaces are located, includingstiolger or other identification system establisbgdPrime Lessor, Sublessee’s cooperation
in seeing that the Sublesee Parties also complyswith rules and regulations, and Sublessee nuog bedefault under this Sublease.

17. Communication EquipmenSubject to Sublessor and Prime Lessor’s appravalto the terms of the Prime Lease,
Sublessee shall have the non-exclusive right, BleSsee’s sole cost and expense, to reasonablesaante use of its pro rata share of the
(i) roof of the Sublet Premises to install, regaid maintain upon the roof, Sublessee installetéshmunication devices, such as satellite
dishes and antennae or other similar devicesh®ptirpose of receiving and sending radio, telemistomputer, telephone or other
communications signals and (ii) internal passagewslyafts, utility connections, risers and conduitsrder to connect such telecommunica
devices to the Sublet Premises and/or to the LeRsadises Space. Sublessee shall advise Subtessérime Lessor in advance of the
planned installation of such devices. Sublessa#, st its sole cost, repair any damage causezhipyroof penetration which may result from
the installation or removal of any rooftop equipmand shall defend, indemnify and hold Sublessombess for any claim, liability or damage
caused by Sublessee’s installation, repair, removaintenance or replacement of or access to oofusech equipment.

18. Right of First Offer Sublessor hereby grants to Sublessee the ridinsiooffer to sublease available space in Buiggb (“
Expansion Space). Sublessor shall use its reasonable effortsotify Sublessee of the availability of the ExpamsEpace and the anticipated
date on which the Expansion Space will be vacayeeisting subtenants. For a period of five (5)ygfollowing receipt of Sublessor’s written
notice containing such information, Sublessee stelk the right of first offer to sublease the Exggan Space commencing on the date set
forth in Sublessor’s notice and on the same temdscanditions as those contained in the noticeckwvBhall be the then current “Market Rental
Rate” for comparable steel frame and glass buiklinghe UTC submarket offering covered parkingatkkt Rental Rate” means the average
per square foot rental rate per month for comparaphce pursuant to fully executed subleases sedeand approximately the same number of
months, executed by existing tenants in the Bujdor comparable space expansions during the tw@®emonths immediately prior to the
date upon which such Market Rental Rate is to beceffective and payable under the terms of thidetge, where the rates for such
expansions were not set in such leases, subjeeasmnable adjustments for comparable space




on more desirable, or less desirable floors orsaoéshe Building. If no such comparable spacelieen leased during such twelve (12) month
period, the rental rates used for purposes ofpittigision shall be adjusted to the amounts Subtegsald have used had leases for such
comparable space been entered. In all casesyatgshshall be determined inclusive of any fre¢ pemiods, improvement allowances, taket
lease obligations, or other economic incentivesyéwer, any such economic incentives generally piexviby Sublessor in such comparable
expansion subleases shall also be provided to Sadde In addition, if such comparable expansiasde include base years, tax or expense
stops or other provisions respecting taxes or dipegraxpenses, or include any other economic piavés such as but not limited to consumer
price index provisions, utility reimbursements ixefl rent increases, the same shall be includéaeirxpansion terms to Sublessee.

If Sublessee fails to elect to sublease the ExparSpace within said five (5) day period, Sublest@ll be entitled to place such Expansion
Space on the open market for sublease by thirdegash terms no more favorable than those upontwthie Expansion Space was offered to
Sublessee. Notwithstanding any provision of tl@sti®n 18 to the contrary, the rights granted meséill be personal to the originally named
Sublessee, and may not be exercised or assignedtadly or involuntarily by or to any person ortignother than the original Sublessee, and
shall not be assignable.

If the Expansion Space is currently not legallyide to sublease, the foregoing expansion rightlde subject to the existing subtenants or
occupants thereof renewing their existing leaseléoarexercising any options to extend or expand,iarall events is subject and subordinat
any other rights of any other person or entityublease the Expansion Space, if such rights hagad} been granted prior to the date of this
Sublease.

19. Sublease Contains All Agreementsis expressly understood and agreed by anddmat the parties hereto that this Subl
(together with the Prime Lease and any amendmkatstb) sets forth all the terms, conditions angagents between Sublessor, Sublessee
and Prime Lessor relative to the Sublet Premigastlzat there are no promises, agreements, conslitiounderstandings, either oral or writ
between them other than as are herein set fortis.further understood and agreed that, excepegsin otherwise provided, no subsequent
alteration, amendment, change or addition to thisl&ase shall be binding upon Sublessor or Sul#assess reduced to a writing and signed
by Sublessor and Sublessee. Notwithstanding amyihithe foregoing to the contrary, Sublessorasgnts and warrants to Sublessee that
Sublessor, as of the Effective Date, is not in diéfia any material respect under the terms ofRliee Lease nor has Sublessor received w
notice from Prime Lessor that Sublessor is in defauder the Prime Lease.

20. Successors and Assigneddl rights and liabilities herein given to, anposed upon, the respective parties hereto shall
extend to and bind the several and respective ssoceand permitted assigns of said parties.

21. Security DepositSublessee shall have no right, title or inteiresir with respect to the Sublessor security diposany
portion thereof, that is held by Prime Lessor uritlerPrime Lease. Within ten (10) business daykeEffective Date, Sublessee shall deliver
to Sublessor, as collateral for the full performeabg Sublessee of all of its obligations under this

Sublease and for all losses and damages Sublesgosuffer as a result of Sublessee’s failure toggrwith one or more provisions of this
Sublease, including, but not limited to, any padilease termination damages under section 1951t alifornia Civil Code, a standby,
unconditional, irrevocable, transferable lettecdit (the “Letter of Credit ") substantially in the form of Exhibit J to theife Lease and
containing the terms required herein, in the oagface amount equal to the Fixed Rent and Subtenaim rata share of the estimated
Expenses and Taxes (as defined in Section 4 alf@vt)e last month of the Sublease Term (thetter of Credit Amount ), naming
Sublessor as beneficiary, issued (or confirmed) Epancial institution that is mutually acceptatdeSublessor and Sublessee, permitting
multiple and partial draws thereon, and otherwistorm acceptable to Sublessor in its sole disonetiSublessee shall cause the Letter of C

to be continuously maintained in effect (whetheotlgh replacement, renewal or extension) in théekeif Credit Amount through the date (

“ Final LC Expiration Date ) that is thirty (30) days after the scheduled exjgradate of the term or any renewal term of thibl8ase. If th
Letter of Credit held by Sublessor expires eath@n the Final LC Expiration Date (whether by reasba stated expiration date or a notice of
termination or non-renewal given by the issuingk)aBublessee shall deliver a new Letter of Creditertificate of renewal or extension (a “
Renewal or Replacement LC’) to Sublessor not later than thirty (30) dayptb the expiration date of the Letter of Crel&n held by
Sublessor. Any Renewal or Replacement LC shallptpmvith all of the provisions of this Section, dHze irrevocable, transferable (provided
Sublessor pays any transfer fees) and shall reimafiect (or be automatically renewable) throulgé Einal LC Expiration Date upon the same
terms as the expiring Letter of Credit. Upon Sabés failure to comply with one or more material pgions of this Sublease, Sublessor r
without prejudice to any other remedy providedhiis tSublease or by Law, draw on the Letter of Gradd use all or part of the proceeds to
(a) satisfy any amounts due to Sublessor from Sebks and (b) satisfy any other damage, injuryeesg or liability caused by Sublessee’s
failure to so comply. In addition, if Sublesse#sfto furnish a Renewal or Replacement LC commwirith all of the provisions of this

Article 6 at least thirty (30) days prior to thatetd expiration date of the Letter of Credit thetdtby Sublessor, Sublessor may draw upon suck
Letter of Credit and hold the proceeds thereof (@mth proceeds need not be segregated) in accerdaticthe terms of this Sublease (the “
LC Proceeds Account’). An authorized officer or other representatdfeSublessor may make demand on Sublessor’s biehalfe Letter of
Credit Amount, or any portion thereof, from timetitme; provided the proper identification of thatgamaking such demand accompanied by
the original Letter of Credit and a written statemgigned by such party certifying that such amasiaiue and owing; together with a certific

of incumbency executed by Sublessor which certtfiesposition and signature of such party is priegkto the issuing financial institution.
Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in the Subkeaball be deemed to prohibit or restrict Suble$§ser challenging the validity or amount

the draw after the draw occurs. The proceedseof #iter of Credit shall constitute Sublessor'®soid separate property (and not Sublessee’s
property or the property of Sublessee’s bankrupstgate) and Sublessor may immediately upon any thad/without notice to Sublessee)
apply or offset the proceeds of the Letter of Crgd) against any rent payable by Sublessee uheSublease that is not paid when due;

(b) against all losses and damages that Subleasuifered or that Sublessor reasonably estintze#t may suffer as a result of Sublessee’s
failure to comply with one or more provisions oistiSublease, including any damages arising undeiosel951.2 of the California Civil Coc



following termination of the Sublease; (c) aga@sy costs incurred by




Sublessor in connection with the Sublease (inclyid@asonable attorneys’ fees); and (d) againsb#mr amount that Sublessor may incur by
reason of Sublessee’s Default. Provided Subldsse@erformed all of its obligations under this I8abe, Sublessor agrees to pay to Sublesse
within thirty (30) days after the Final LC Expirati Date the amount of any proceeds of the Lett@retlit received by Sublessor and not
applied as allowed above; provided, that if priothte Final LC Expiration Date a voluntary petitigrfiled by Sublessee

or any Guarantor, or an involuntary petition igdilagainst Sublessee or any Guarantor by any déSsde’s or Guarantor’s creditors, under the
Federal Bankruptcy Code, then Sublessor shall eatitigated to make such payment in the amourtefihused Letter of Credit proceeds
until either all preference issues relating to pagta under this Sublease have been resolved inbsurdtruptcy or reorganization case or such
bankruptcy or reorganization case has been disthigseach case pursuant to a final court ordesunbject to appeal or any stay pending
appeal. If, as result of any application or useShplessor of all or any part of the Letter of Gretie amount of the Letter of Credit shall be
less than the Letter of Credit Amount, Sublessedl,shithin 5 business days thereafter, providelSsdor with additional letter(s) of credit in

an amount equal to the deficiency (or a replacerattelr of credit in the total Letter of Credit Aenat), and any such additional (or
replacement) letter of credit shall comply with@fiithe provisions of this Section 21, and if Sgkke fails to comply with the foregoing,
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaiimethis Sublease, the same shall constitute arratdel Default by Sublessee.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set farthhis Sublease, if, Sublessee is late in the gayrof any rent due under this Suble:

beyond any applicable notice and cure periods uthieiSublease, three (3) or more times in anyw€l2) calendar month period, Sublessee
shall, within 5 business days after notice from|8sdor, provide Sublessor with additional letteofsgredit in an amount equal to the final last
two (2) months’ Fixed Rent and Expenses and Taxesa (eplacement letter of credit in such amouus phe total original Letter of Credit
Amount), and any such additional (or replacemegttgi of credit shall comply with all of the proies of this Section 21, and if Sublessee
fails to comply with the foregoing, notwithstandiagything to the contrary contained in this SulBe#ise same shall constitute an incurable
Default by Sublessee. Sublessee further coveaatsvarrants that it will neither assign nor encanthe Letter of Credit or any part thereof
and that neither Sublessor nor its successorssgraswill be bound by any such assignment, encanda, attempted assignment or attempted
encumbrance. Sublessee further covenants andnisthet it will neither assign nor encumber thétdreof Credit or any part thereof and that
neither Sublessor nor its successors or assighbevilound by any such assignment, encumbranempted assignment or attempted
encumbrance.

Sublessor and Sublessee (a) acknowledge and &gitsa ho event or circumstance shall the Lette€iadit or any renewal thereof or
substitute therefor or any proceeds thereof (irinlyithe LC Proceeds Account) be deemed to be ateleas a Security deposit” under any
Law applicable to security deposits in the comnarodntext including Section 1950.7 of the Califar@ivil Code, as such section now exist
or as may be hereafter amended or succeedgedcfirity Deposit Laws”), (b) acknowledge and agree that the Letter afdiir(including any
renewal thereof or substitute therefor or any pedsahereof) is not intended to serve as a sealgjtpsit, and the Security Deposit Laws shall
have no applicability or relevancy thereto, andwWe)ve any and all rights, duties and obligatioitlsez party may now or, in the future, will
have relating to or arising from the Security Dépbaws. Sublessee




hereby waives the provisions of Section 1950.hefGalifornia Civil Code and all other provisiorfdaw, now or hereafter in effect, which

(i) establish the time frame by which Sublessortmefind a security deposit under a lease, and)jgrfvide that Sublessor may claim from

the security deposit only those sums reasonablgssacy to remedy Defaults in the payment of rentepair damage caused by Sublessee or t
clean the Premises, it being agreed that Sublesagy in addition, claim those sums specified akiowlis Section 1 and/or those sums
reasonably necessary to compensate Sublessonfdosmor damage caused by Sublessee’s breacks @uhlease or the acts or omission of
Sublessee or any other Sublessee Related Pantikg]ing any damages Sublessor suffers followingitgation of the Sublease.

Tenant Improvement AllowanceSublessor shall, at its sole cost, expense mtdetion, pay all costs to construct any fire whors
on the ground floor of Building 6 required for émg Building 6. In addition, Sublessor shall priSublessee with a tenant improvement
allowance of up to and in no event greater than®2per rentable square foot or $794,150.00 fos#to®nd floor space and $30.—per rentable
square foot or $64,740.00 for the first floor sptarea total of $858,190 (theAllowance”) the final “Allowance” of which will be determirte
using the rentable square footage as describearagmph B of the Recitals. In addition, Subles$adl pay Sublessee a moving allowance
equal to $1.00 per rentable square foot or $33082#.Moving Allowance ") expendable for costs and expenses relatingeagtocation of
Sublessee’s business (including, but not limitedtsts of moving Sublessee’s fixtures, furnitegipment and general moving related
expenses) from its current space to the PremidesMoving Allowance shall be paid by Sublessorubl8ssee upon Sublessor’s receipt of
Sublessee’s written demand therefor, accompaniedsgpplicable, invoices documenting and evidgnsirch moving related costs and
expenses. The Allowance may be used for but notdd to the cost of preparing design and constnatocuments and mechanical and
electrical plans for tenant improvements for thel8uPremises and for both hard and soft costefmection with such tenant improvements.
The Allowance, less a 10% retainage (which retaretall be payable as part of the final draw),Idi@paid to the order of the general
contractor that performs, or architect who desig¢ims tenant improvements, in periodic disbursemeittsn thirty (30) days after receipt of the
following documentation: (i) an application for pagnt and sworn statement of contractor substapiiathe form of AIA Document G-702
covering all work for which disbursement is to bada to a date specified therein; (ii) a certificatirom an AlA architect substantially in the
form of the Architect’s Certificate for Payment whiis located on AIA Document G702, Application aektificate of Payment;
(iii) Contractor’s, subcontractor’s and materiapplier's waivers of liens which shall cover all gavt improvements for which disbursement is
being requested and all other statements and frequared for compliance with the mechanics’ liewdeaof the state in which the Sublet
Premises is located, together with all such inv@icentracts, or other supporting data as Sublesagrreasonably require; (iv) a cost
breakdown for each trade or subcontractor perfogritie tenant improvements; (v) plans and speci@inatfor the tenant improvements,
together with a certificate from an AlA architebtit such plans and specifications comply in allariat respects with all laws affecting the
Project or Sublet Premises; (vi) copies of all ¢nrition contracts for the tenant improvementsetbgr with copies of all change orders, if ¢
and (vii) a request to disburse from Sublesseeadting an approval by Sublessee of the work dowkesagood faith estimate of the cost to
complete the tenant improvements. Upon compleaifdhe tenant improvements, and prior to final disiement of the Allowance, Sublessee
shall furnish Sublessor with: (1) general contreeaied architect's completion




affidavits, (2) full and final waivers of lien, (8gceipted bills covering all labor and materialpended and used, (4) as-built plans of the tenan
improvements, and (5) the certification of Sublesased its architect that the tenant improvemenig baen installed in a good and
workmanlike manner in accordance with the apprgdads, and in accordance with applicable laws, s@ohel ordinances. In no event shall
Sublessor be required to disburse the Allowanceertiaan one time per month. If the tenant improvesiexceed the Allowance, Sublessee
shall be entitled to the Allowance in accordancthilie terms hereof, but each individual disbursgméthe Allowance shall be disbursed in
the proportion that the Allowance bears to thel todat for the tenant improvements, less the 10&image referenced above. Notwithstanding
anything herein to the contrary, Sublessor shdlbecobligated to disburse any portion of the Abmwe during the continuance of Sublessee’s
uncured default under this Sublease, and Sublessbligation to disburse shall only resume whenifiadch default is cured. In no event s
the Allowance be used for rent, operating expenséscation costs, the purchase of equipment, fur@ior other items of personal property of
Sublessee but rather must be used in accordanieehgirequirements as set forth in the Master LeHsgublessee does not submit a request
for payment of the entire Allowance to Sublessaréoordance with the provisions contained in tiEst®n by November 1, 2010, any unused
portion of the Allowance shall accrue to the saedfit of Sublessor, it being understood that Sadde shall not be entitled to any credit,
abatement or other concession in connection thémrev@hould Sublessor fail to pay over any portéthe Allowance or the Moving

Allowance due to Sublessee within the time peretdf@rth herein, then Sublessee may set off suplidramounts from its payment of Fixed
Rent to Sublessor hereunder, provitlegt Sublessee has, prior to November 1, 2010estqd such unpaid amounts from Sublessor in
accordance with this Section 21. Sublessee shat$ponsible for all applicable state sales ortamses, if any, payable in connection with the
tenant improvements and/or Allowance. Furtherm8tdylessee agrees to a full open book processiaidBublessor or Sublessor’s
representative to review construction costs recardsschedule to confirm actual construction iteams costs as outlined above.

There will be no deduction from the Allowance fartiessee’s construction management fee other tyaoanstruction management
fee imposed by Prime Lessor in accordance witlPtimae Lease. Except for any such Prime Lessortoget®n management fee, Sublessee
shall not be required to pay any construction mareant fees or other similar fees for the tenanrawgments. Notwithstanding the foregoi
Sublessee hereby agrees and acknowledges thamafittimprovements to the Sublet Premises mugpfr@waed by Prime Lessor prior to be
made as provided in the Prime Lease.

22. Condition of the Sublet PremiseSublessee hereby acknowledges that Sublessexd@aied the Sublet Premises and that
they are in good and tenantable condition as oEfifective Date. Sublessor has let the Sublet Bresrin their present condition, as
hereinabove provided, and without any further inveraents or alterations and without any represemtatbn the part of the Sublessor, its
officers, further, servants and/or agents.

23. Sublessar Duties.

23.1 The obligations of Prime Lessor unterRrime Lease shall remain the obligations of Piimssor, and shall not be
considered the obligations or responsibility of lBabor. Sublessor shall fully perform all of itdigations under the Prime Lease to the extent




Sublessee has not expressly agreed to performadligations under this Sublease. In the event,dvan that Sublessor defaults in the
performance or observance of any of Sublessor'ai@ng obligations under the Prime Lease as Tenaf#ils to perform Sublessor’s stated
obligations under this Sublease (provided suchifaito perform Sublessor’s stated obligations utltisrSublease is not the result of or caused
by Prime Lessor’s failure to perform Prime Lessatated obligations under the Prime Lease or diritoe Lessor’s default under the Prime
Lease) or to enforce, for Sublessee’s benefit, @tiessors obligations under the Prime Lease then Subledsakbe entitled, following fiftee
(15) days prior written notice of any such failaredefault and the expiration of the thirty (30ydare period, to cure such default and
promptly collect from Sublessor, Sublessee’s realenexpenses in so doing (including, without latian, reasonable attorneys’ fees and
costs). Sublessee shall not be required, howayerait the entire applicable cure period if earéetion is required of Sublessee to comply
with the Prime Lease or with any applicable lavgulation or governmental order, or to ensure tlietgand/or security of the Sublet Premi:

23.2 With respect to the obligations of Rribessor under the Prime Lease, Sublessor’s otiigadion shall be to use
diligent, good faith efforts to cause Prime Legsgperform such obligations for the benefit of Sagslee. Such diligent, good faith efforts shall
include, without limitation: (i) upon Sublessee’stéen request, immediately notify Prime Lessoitefnonperformance under the Prime Lease
and request that Prime Lessor perform its obligationder the Prime Lease; (ii) use commerciallgaaable efforts to obtain Prime Lessor’s
consent to this Sublease and to other actionsniaguPrime Lessor’'s consent and (iii) permittingofassee to commence a legal action in
Sublessor’s name to obtain the performance reqfiiomd Prime Lessor under the Prime Lease, provilediever, that Sublessee shall pay all
costs and expenses and any other liability incumembnnection therewith and Sublessee shall indigrand hold Sublessor harmless against
all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by &dslan connection therewith.

24, Subordination and Nd@isturbance This Sublease is subordinate and subject tovamygages, ground leases and/or other
encumbrances to the same extent, and on the sam® tes the Prime Lease is so subordinate andctulrjder the terms thereof Sublessee
agrees to execute such instruments and, uponitheefto do so, hereby appoints the Prime Lessdf@rSublessor its attorney-in-fact to
execute such instruments.

Sublessor shall use commercially reasonable efforéssist Sublessee in obtaining from Prime Leaswn-disturbance and
attornment agreement in favor of the Sublesse@nadty acceptable to Sublessee so that Sublasseelipancy under the terms and provis
of this Sublease will not be disturbed in the evara default by Sublessor of the Prime Lease‘{tReéme Lessor Non-Disturbance
Agreement”).

25. Alterations and ImprovementSublessee shall be permitted to make any Aiterafas defined in the Prime Lease) in
accordance with Section 9 of the Prime Lease. Eerime Lease or Sublessor require restoratiohltefations made by or for Sublessee,
Sublessee will be responsible, at its sole costeapeénse, to complete such work no later thanstpeaion of this Sublease. Sublessor shall
inform Sublessee of its (or Prime Lessor’s decisemarding removal of such Alterations upon approfshe requested improvements of
Alterations by Sublessor and Prime Lessor. Ifdioy reason Sublessor does not provide




Sublessee direction with regard to restoration Bablessee will be required to remove improvemprits to the sublease expiration date.
Notwithstanding anything in this Section 26 to deatrary, once Sublessor has agreed in writingSlélessee shall not be responsible
restoring Alterations in accordance with this Sat26, Sublessor may not later require Sublessesntove or restore such Alteration.

26. Surrender of the Sublet Premiséfpon the expiration or sooner termination o$ tBublease, Sublessee shall adhere to the
terms and conditions set forth in the Prime Leaseerning the condition of the Sublet Premises wgorender. In addition, Sublessee shall
not be required to remove any alterations or imgnognts made by or for the account of SublessahelPrime Lease requires the removal of
any alterations or improvements made by or for &ssur, Sublessor shall, at its sole cost and erpessiove such alterations and
improvements. However, Sublessee at Sublessep&ns®, may be required at Sublessor’s discretioenmve alterations or improvements
made for the benefit of Sublessee.

27. Damage to Cables and Pip&ublessor shall not be responsible or liabl8ublessee, or to those claiming by, through or
under Sublessee, for any loss or damage resuttirgiblessee, or to those claiming by, throughnoleu Sublessee, or its or their property,
from the breaking, bursting, stoppage or leakagaesftrical cable wires, gas, sewer, water or steg@s unless such loss or damage is caused
by the gross negligence or willful misconduct obfssor or Sublessor’s agents, employees or caotsaar unless Sublessor is made aware of
any condition which results in any of the aforenmmd loss or damage which it willfully neglectsrépair or replace (to the extent it is
obligated to do so).

28. Prime Less@ Approval. This Sublease and Sublessor’s and Sublessee’tjidi@reunder are subject to Prime Lessor’'s
consent hereto, as required under Section 11 dPtimee Lease, and this Sublease shall be null ait] &nd neither Sublessor nor Sublessee
shall have any liability hereunder whatsoever, shéuime Lessor fail to give such consent to thibl8ase. In the event that Prime Lessor has
not consented to this Sublease Janurary 1, 20&0,3hblessee may terminate this Sublease and m8ithéessor nor Sublessee shall have any
liability hereunder whatsoever. Such Prime Lessmsent shall be substantially in the form and wufze ofExhibit C .

29. Separability Should any portion of this Sublease be foundet@nenforceable, the remaining provisions of #hiblease
shall continue in full force and effect, without/gfig regard to such unenforceable provision.

30. Exhibits and Recitals Incorporatedll exhibits referred to in this Sublease areelhy incorporated in this Sublease by this
reference and the Recitals to this Sublease asbhéncorporated in this Sublease by this reference

31. CounterpartsThis Sublease may be signed by the partiesdnotwnore counterparts, each of which shall be @éektm be
an original, and all of which taken together skalhstitute one and the same document. Receiglégapier or email of a signed copy of this
Sublease shall be deemed receipt of the originalment.




32. Signage Subiject to the terms and conditions of the Piim&se and where applicable, subject to the appod\Rxrime
Lessor, Sublessee, at Sublessee’s expense, shalthearight to display appropriate signage wishdigo and name on entrance doors and its
pro-rata share of 1 building top and monument éxtaign which will be inclusive of 1 slot, as givéo Sublessor in the Prime Lease.

33. Warranties Sublessor shall, at Sublessee’s expense, cdepeita Sublessee to enforce, for the benefit dilSssee, all
(a) warranties given and indemnities made, if dayyPrime Lessor to Sublessor under the Prime Leageh would reduce Sublessee’s
obligations hereunder and (b) warranties giveanif, by any contractors concerning any existingromements made to the Sublet Premises.

34. Right to Cure Sublesse®efaults If Sublessee shall at any time fail to make payment or perform any other obligation
of Sublessee hereunder or under the Prime Leame Shblessor shall have the right, but not thegakithn, after ten (10) days notice for
monetary defaults and ten (10) days notice for mametary defaults or the time within which Primester may act on Sublessebehalf unde
the Prime Lease, or without notice to Sublessehdrcase of any emergency, and without waivingtasing Sublessee from any obligations
of Sublessee hereunder, to make such paymentforpesuch other obligation of Sublessee in suchmaaand to such extent as Sublessor
shall deem necessary, and in exercising any sgbl tb pay any reasonable and related costs gmehegrs, employ attorneys and other
professionals, and incur and pay attorneys’ feesodimer costs reasonably required in connectiorethigh. Sublessee shall pay to Sublessor
upon demand all sums so paid by Sublessor andcdiéntal costs and expenses of Sublessor in ctiangbherewith as Sublessee shall
indemnify and hold Sublessor harmless againseakonable costs and expenses incurred by Sublasgsmrnection therewith.

35. Holding Over Sublessee acknowledges that the term of theeFrgase and the Sublease Term expire on the samartth
Sublessor will suffer considerable damage if Suidgdesholds over. Thus, if Sublessee holds over thigeexpiration of the Sublease Term or
earlier termination of this Sublease, with or withthe express or implied consent of Sublesson #teéhe option of Sublessor, Sublessee will
become and be only a month-to-month subtenantexttaequal to the rent payable by Sublessor uitdePtime Lease for the Premises
(including the amount of any holdover rent payabl@rime Lessor under the Premises Lease, as lhoéSublessee’s failure to timely
surrender the Premises at the time and in the tiondequired by this Sublease, and otherwise uperterms, covenants and conditions herein
specified. Notwithstanding any provision to thetary contained herein, (a) Sublessor expressigrves the right to require Sublessee to
surrender possession of the Premises upon theagiopiof Sublease Term or upon the earlier ternonatf this Sublease and the right to as
any remedy at law or in equity to evict Sublesse#@ collect damages in connection with any h@diner, and (b) Sublessee shall pay all
holdover rent or other amounts Sublessor is oldij&d pay under Section 22 of the Prime Lease haltliademnify, defend and hold
Sublessor harmless from and against any and at &itbilities, claims, demands, actions, lossestaration costs, damages, obligations, costs
and expenses, including, without limitation, ateys’ fees incurred or suffered by Sublessor byaead Sublessee’s failure to surrender the
Premises on the expiration of the Sublease Tereadier termination of this Sublease.




36. Authority Each person executing this Sublease on behalpafty hereto represents and warrants that Beeois
authorized and empowered to do so and to theretw/the party on whose behalf he or she is signing.

37. Brokers Sublessor shall pay all commissions owed togughes, as Sublessee’s broker, and Colliersniatienal and
BioScience Properties, as Sublessor’s brokerstasrth in and pursuant to the terms of separgteeaments. Each of the parties represent anc
warrant to the other that all of its dealings igasd to the Sublet Premises have been solely witlbtokers referenced above and that no other
real estate broker, agent, finder or intermediay $hown the Sublet Premises to Sublessee oragfire Sublessee to Sublessor or the
Sublessor to Sublessee, or otherwise involvedarysed Sublessee with respect to the Subleaseh dabe parties agrees to indemnify and
hold the other harmless against any claims for é&made or other commission arising by reason oadir by such party of the aforesaid
representations and warranties.

38. Confidentiality Sublessor and Sublessee hereby agree to ke@gedial the terms of this Sublease and the Pliesse
and any financial information transmitted in contiwt with this Sublease; provided, however, eitharty may disclose such terms (i) to its
attorneys, brokers, accountants, lenders, proyeeleinders, prospective purchasers, prospectivgress, prospective sub-sublessees, partner:
and prospective partners and in SEC filings, bly tmthe extent such persons or entities needview such information in connection with
this Sublease and further provided that such gaatxses such persons or entities to keep such iafamstrictly confidential as required by
this Sublease or (ii) to the extent required by.law

39. Workstations For the entire Term of this Sublease, Subleska# have the use of up to 150 of Sublessor'diegis
workstations (general depictions of which appeaEghibit D attached hereto) (théNorkstations ”) pursuant to a mutually agreed space plan
and agreed upon ratio of office Workstations arfsi@al Workstations, subject to availability of Seksors existing inventory of Workstation
The Workstations shall be provided for Sublessasésin their “as-is”, “where-is” and “with all fasl' condition, at no additional cost to
Sublessee but Sublessee shall have the obligaticonfigure, repair, replace, store, maintain, iasand surrender such Workstations at the
expiration or earlier termination of the Term ire ttame condition as upon the Delivery Date, nomear and tear excepted. Sublessee shall
have the sole obligation to maintain and pay ampfiegble taxes on the Workstations during the Tard the Workstations shall be considered
part of the Premises for purposes of this Lease.

[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exetths Sublease Agreement as of the day and yesamfiove written.
SUBLESSOR

Amylin Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a Delaware corpora

By:

Name:
Title:

By:

Name:
Title:

SUBLESSEE

KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC., a Delans:
corporatior

By:

Name:

Title:

By:

Name:

Title:

Exhibit A
Prime Lease

(TO BE ATTACHED PRIOR TO SUBMITTAL)




Exhibit B

Sublet Premises

4820 2 Floor

Amylin Test Fit (Draft)
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Exhibit C

CONSENT TO SUBLETTING

[To be provided by Prime Lessor]




Exhibit D

WORKSTATIONS

Amylin 10x12 Office
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Amylin Existing Office




Amylin Typical Cubicle

Series 2 Storage tower
Series 2 Pedestal
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EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our reports dated Marcl2Q00, with respect to the consolidated financialeshents and internal control over financial
reporting included in the Annual Report of Kratosfénse & Security Solutions, Inc. on Form 10-Ktfog year ended December 27, 2009. We
hereby consent to the incorporation by referencgaaf reports in the Registration Statements ofdér®efense & Security Solutions, Inc. on
Form S-3 (File No. 333-161340, effective August 2d09) and on Forms S-8 (File No. 333-90455, eiffedlovember 5, 1999, File No. 333-
54818, effective February 1, 2001, File No. 33302, &ffective October 17, 2001, File No. 333-9185&ctive July 2, 2002, File No. 333-
116903, effective June 28, 2004, File No. 333-1Z4@%ective May 16, 2005, File No. 333-127060¢efive August 1, 2005, File No. 333-
155317, effective November 12, 2008 and File N@-337826, effective March 10, 2009).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Diego, California
March 10, 2010
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Eric M. DeMarco, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual reporform 10-K of Kratos Defense & Security Solutiolms,.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsinot contain any untrue statement of a matigalor omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmjisletding with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineltiéh this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifyinfadr(s) and | are responsible for establishing eraintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportiag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controlsodedures, or caused such disclosure controlpargdures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durithg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control oveafficial reporting, or caused such internal cordgxar financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thggateant's disclosure controls and procedures a@skpted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure containts procedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changéhie registrant's internal control over financggorting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regyig's fourth quarter in the case of an annualntguat has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regastt's internal control over financial reportingdan

5. The registrant's other certifyinfadr(s) and | have disclosed, based on our masinteevaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theétaxmmmittee of the registrant's board of direct@anspersons performing equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and madweaknesses in the design or operation of iatezontrol over financial reporting whi
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materiaiatinvolves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 10, 201

/s/ ERIC M. DEMARCO

Eric M. De Marco
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Deanna H. Lund, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual reporform 10-K of Kratos Defense & Security Solutiolms,.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsdnot contain any untrue statement of a matigalor omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmjisletding with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineltiéh this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifyinfadr(s) and | are responsible for establishing eraintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-(f))for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls@odedures, or caused such disclosure controlpaogdures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control oveafficial reporting, or caused such internal cordgrar financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thggateant's disclosure controls and procedures a@skpted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changéhie registrant's internal control over financggorting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the tgant's internal control over financial reportiagd

5. The registrant's other certifyinfadr(s) and | have disclosed, based on our masinteevaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theétaxmmmittee of the registrant's board of direct@anspersons performing similar functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and madweaknesses in the design or operation of iatezontrol over financial reporting whi
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materiaiatinvolves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 10, 201

/s/ DEANNA H. LUND

Deanna H. Lund
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Offi
(Principal Financial Officer)
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of K Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. (the "Compaon Form 10-K for the fiscal year

ended December 27, 2009 as filed with the Secaréiel Exchange Commission on the date hereof Rbpdrt™), I, Eric M. DeMarco, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuanii8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursugdettion 906 of the Sarban@sdey Act of

2002, that to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with theguirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), of the S&earExchange Act of 1934; and

2. That the information contained ie Report fairly presents, in all material respettts,financial condition and results of

operations of the Company.

Date: March 10, 2010

KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY
SOLUTIONS, INC.

/s/ ERIC M. DEMARCO

Chief Executive Office
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of K Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. (the "Compaon Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 27, 2009 as filed with the Secsariiel Exchange Commission on the date hereof Rapdrt”), I, Deanna H. Lund, Chief

Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursugmtl8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursugsettion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with theguirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), of the S&earExchange Act of 1934; and

2. That the information contained ie Report fairly presents, in all material respettts,financial condition and results of

operations of the Company.

Date: March 10, 2010

KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY
SOLUTIONS, INC.

/s/ DEANNA H. LUND

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Offi
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